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This Review sets out our performance over the year and our
contribution to the BBC, reports progress on our three strategic
priorities: brands, content and digital, looks at how we support the
UK’s creative sector and sets out the transformation that our company
is undergoing to remain effective in the future.

Highlights
HEADLINE SALES* HEADLINE PROFIT*
£1,001.8m £138.6m
(2013/14 £1,042 3m) -3 9% (2013/14 £157 4m) -11 9%
RETURNS TO THE BBC PROFIT BEFORE TAX EXCLUDING GAINS AND

£226 . 5m LOSSES ON DISPOSALS
(2013/14 £173 8m) +30 3% £1 07.9m

{2013/14 £122 1m) -11 6%

What we do

We are the main commercial arm and a wholly owned subsidiary of the BBC We exist to buiid the BBC brand around the
world, support the BBC public service mission and maximise returns on its behalf while ensuring all activities are
conducted in a way that 1s consistent with BBC standards and values

BBC Worldwide 15 a company with content at its heart We invest in, commercialise, market and showcase content from
the BBC and the wider UK television industry around the world

Where we operate

Our business Is structured across four geographical regions the UK, North Amenca, Australia and New Zealand, and the
rest of the world, known collectively as Global Markets We have 18 offices around the world, plus BBC Advertising sales
representatives in a further three locations

*Throughout this Review, head!ine sales refers to groas revenue including the Group s share of revenues from joint ventures Headline profit refers to aperating profit before
spocific items and wnclugding the Group s share of operating profits from joint ventures and associates Specific dems are sst out on page 13 A reconclieton betwean headline
profit and profit before tax 13 prasanted in the Chuef Financia) Cfficers’ réview on page 12

Qur geographical reportable segments reflect management reporting ines The Group s headline sales and profit remam consistent with the pnor years Annual Review The
2013/14 segment comparatives for headline profit have been recalculated to reflect tha revised mathodalogy by which tha cost of content 1s atfocated acroas regwons for
management reporting to the Wordwide Executive Committee [WEx) from 2014/15 onwards
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Chairman’'s statement

| am pleased to report on a year of positive progress at BBC Worldwrde Over the 12 months, and against a backdrop of market transformation that
presented scme challenges the company took significant stndes both to bang its strategy to life and to re-shape its business for the future These
moves — mvesting in premium content, ampifying the BBC brand overseas, and transforming digitally — wall underpsn profit and shareholder returns in
the years ahead, and come at a tme when the BBC 1s more determined than ever to ensure we extract the maximum sustainable future contribution
from all our commercial subsidianes

BBC Worildwide defivered a very respectabla financtal performance As set out elsewhere in this Annual Review, reported numbers are complicated by a
number of factors, pnnapally the part-disposal of BBC AMERICA - a partnership with AMC Networks (AMCN), which will be visible on UK screens
through co-developed programmes as well as secunng the future of our independent channel in the world's largest media market Overall, resulls were
In line wath the Board's expectations and represent a good outcome

Most importantly, 2014/15 saw a step-change n financial fiows to BBC Worldwides parent BBC Worldwade invested £94 4m in BBC commussions
(2013/14 £88 9m) from both BBC Production and from UK Indepandents And at £226 5m (2013/14 £173 8m), shareholder returns were up by aimost
one-third, equivalent to 12 6% of total BBC Telewvision content spend, up fram 10 1% the previous year

Vitally, as a resuft of this financial contnbution, audiences in the UK were able to enjoy Investment [n programmes at a higher level than the licence fee
alone can prowde Among these enhanced shows was Doclor Who, seen in the UK by an average consalidated audience of 7 4m, ainng in over 70
other countnes, and achieving record ratings on BBC AMERICA and Space channel In Canada Meanwhile Life Story, from the BBC Natural History Uit
— which was over 70% funded through commercial investment via BBC Worldwide - was seen by a domestic consolidated audience of & Sm, with rights
to broadcast the senes acquired by intemational broadcasters for 151 terntones

However, BBC Worldwide is not just significant for the financial contnibution it makes to the Corporation In ‘bringing the UK to the world’ - one of our
public purposes -~ it provides a route to market for UK programme makers through its sales force, on BBC branded channels mtemationally, and via the
successful UKTV channels In the UK part-owned by BBC Worldwide In total, its indie payments, covenng all commissions, rights acquisitions and
royatties, remained strong at £113 1m (2013114 £116 4m) BBC Worldwide champions the cause of UK content and culture both in the UK and outside
And research demonstrates that business leaders who consume the BBC have increased propensiy to trade with UK firms suggesting economic
dividends, beyond telewision, for the UK as a whole

We believe BBC Worldwide is the most successful commercial subsidiary of any Public Service Broadcaster in the world  Although commercial retums
are a small part of the BBC's funding mix, we are nonetheless deterouned to maxanuse therr impact Therefore, looking ahead 1o the next phase of the
BBC's development, and a new Charter period, it Is the Board's aim to sustain annual financial returns at around this new level, even without the cne-off
benefit of BBC AMERICA proceeds This will not be easy, but it s important that we utlise all the BBC’s financial levers to ther very maximum and
BBC Worldwide has ambrtious business plans to support this We are therefore looking to BBC Worldwide to generate around £1bn in returns for the
Corporation in the five years starting from 2014/15 — an increase of almost one quarter on the previous half-decade

In support of that am, the year ahead will see further momentum from BBC Worldwide's strategy A continued focus on premium content will include
Wer and Peace, natural ustory landmark The Hunt, and the retum of Sherlock on the slate Global BEBC brands will remain at the heart of BBC
Wortdwide, with results coming through from the three new mternational channel feeds launched in 2014/15, a further four since year end, and others to
follow As well as continued exploitatfon of world-class programme brands from Dancing with the Stars to Doctor Who And digital developments wilt
take the form of BBC Store, enabling UK customers to buy and keep the BBC programmes they love, as well as plans for further digitai BBC senaces in
selected markets cutside the UK

Finally, | would tike to acknowledge BBC Worldwide's staff, in the UK and outside its many partners and chents arcund the werld, and all those who
have played a role in helping BBC Worldwide to support the BBC in the year

Tony Hall
Chairman, BBC Worldwide
and Director-General BBC
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Chief Executive’s review

Highlights
« Overli, we have had a good year, balancing the delivery of solid finanaal results with investment to transform the business for a more competitive
global marketplace

«  Our commitment to a high level of content investment, coupled with a solid aperating performance and the proceeds of our equity partnership with
AMCN, gllowed us to mcrease our returns to the BBC by 30 3% to £226 5m

«  We made significant progress in our core areas of sirategic focus high quality content, delnvering strenger brands and increased digial capabiiities

« investing in premium content continued o be the comerstone of the business, and we were proud to deliver and represent a nch mix of bold and
mspinng titles

2014/15 has been a significant year of nvestment and transformation for BBC Worldwide We began to deliver our strategy, first set out in Oclober
2013, of bulding our supply of high quahty content for clients and our own services alike, developing stronger global brands and accelerating digital
innovations All his puts us in a better posibon to deliver sustainable financial returns to the BBC and generate even befter vaiue for UK licence
fee payers, both this year and in the future

Overall, we have had a good year, balancing the delivery of solid financial results — including significant growth In retums to the BBC, our pnmary
financial priority — wath investment to transform the business for a more competitive global marketplace Notably, our new venture with AMCN has
significantly enhanced future prospects for our BBC AMERICA channel while also enabhng us to boost shareholder returns for the year

Beyond the AMCN deal, we continued to lake steps to dnve innovaton and underpin the sustainabilty of our operations This is essental work in the
context of a global media market undergoing structural and systemic changes, some of which constrain our trading and outiook in certain areas This
has led to iniatives such as growing investment with the independent sector, both in programmung and in selective equity mvestments to support our
long-term content supply We launched our new strengthened BBC genre channel brands into lead markets dunng the year, and delivered significant
innovation, such as the BBC Earth platform on BBC com and BBC co uk We also accelerated parinership deats on core brands such as CBeebies, with
a successful launch of CBeebies Land at Aiton Towers as well as our planned roll-out of CBeebies Enghsh language learmung centras in China

Within the company, we have focused hard on the culture of our business, encouraging new ways of working These are delivening world-class
processes with propnetary programmes such as Adding Vatue across our sales function, which maximises content revenues across all windows and
channels, Brand Labs, our marketing and brands best practice hub, and new procurement practices Ve have also priontised the attraction and

development of the best global talent In our industry

Finally, across every elament of our bugingss, we have continued to focus on nurturng the UK creative industries through initiatives hke BBC Woridwide
Labs, our start-up programmae, showcasing UK creativily overseas and supporting the independent production sector

Returns to licence fee payers

Qur commiment to a high level of content iInvestmant, coupled with a solid operating performance and the proceeds of our equity partnership with AMCN,
allowed us 0 increase owr retums to the BBC by 30 3% io a recond £226 5m As detailed by Tony Hall on page 2 this funding also reflects BBC Worldwide's
increased contnbubion io BBC commissioning spend, both from in-house producton teams and Brtish indies, which enhances the hours and creative amtntion
from key tiles that UK audiences can enjoy This year alone we have supported the BBC in-house production team as well as over 250 mdependent producers
n delivering a number of notable ttles such as The Honourable Woman Wolf Hali, Life Story and Human Unwverse

The year's results

While headhne sales and profil both dechned due to the AMCN transaction and to currency movements adjusted for these effects, our operating perfonmance

was broadly fiat year on year

Headline sales of £1,001 3m were down 3 8% (2013/14 £1,042 3m) reflecting the absence of BEC AMERICA revenue for most of the second half of the year
However, our revenue perfarmance on ongong operations was up 0 4% to £948 1m {2013/14 £944 5m), helped in particular by continuing growth from digital
sales, channel advertising revenue and UKTV In North Amerlca, digital sales exceeded linear TV sales for the first time, while strategic partnerships brought a
sales upliftin Australa and New Zealand Digitat fnvestment in the UK supported successes forour ecommerce offenng, BBC Shop, while
careful management of our OVD slate, coupled with targeted marketing support, somewhat offset ongoing pressure from the industry-wide deciine in the
category Meanwhile, difficul! trading conditions in Russ@a coupled with economie sanchons Impacted owr performance in that market Currency movements

reduced sales by £19 5m in aggregate

Headline profit of £138 8m (2013/14 £157 4m} was 11 9% down on the previous year, again Including the impact of the AMCN venture Excluding this effect,
headline profit on ongoing operations recorded growth of 4 1% at £127 2m (2013114 £122 2m), including the benefit of just over five months of BBC
AMERICA's coninbution as an associate Foreign exchange movements hit headfine profit by £3 2m in the year

Strataglc focus

We made significant progress « our core areas of strategic focus high quaiity content, defivering stronger brands and increased digital capabiliities

Investing in the ghest quality content

Investing In premium content continued to be the comerstone of the business, and we were proud to deliver and represent a rich mix of bold and inspinng tittes
from acress drama — accounting for almost half our total investment — as well as natural tustory, factual entertainment, comedy, music and children's Our lop-
selling shows of the year included Doctor Who, Top Gear, Orphan Black, Life Story, The Musketeers, Atlantis, Calf the Midwife, Ripper Street, Sherfock and
The Honourable Woman - a range of titles that speaks to the breadth of appetite for Bntish content from global audiences Doctar Who S8 was licensed to
189 temntones in the year
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Chief Executive's review (continued)

Content investment of £180 5m (201314 £200 6m) declined due to cur venture with AMCN, which means we no longer report BBC AMERICA's content
spend — a matenal element m our overal investment — as welt as some inewitable vanabdity m the timing of commussioning decisions for new content
We still delivered an merease n investment in BBC-commissioned content to £94 4m up 8 2% (2013/14 £88 Sm) This contnbuted to producton of the much
antcpated dramas War and Peace, Dickensian and S5-GB, all of which will arr in 2016

Parinerships such as that with AMCN for BBC AMERICA are imperative for ensunng we can sustan long-term investment in premium conterd, and grow both
the future reach and profile of BBC AMERICA, the BBC and the titles we represent. The partnership atso enables us jointly to increase the volume of intelligent
drama, foved by fans both of AMCN (which airs the US record rating drama series, The Walking Dead) and of the BBC, through a shared agreement to co-
develop future tites, which wall comptement those we have already co-produced, meluding Gelden Globe wanning senes Top of the Lake and The Honourable
Woman

n the coming year we intend to build on these successes, keep mvesting in the ighest qualty British programmes deepen our relabonships with the UK
creative sector and look forward to distributing 2 wealth of exceptional programmes, such as the final instalment of Waflander, as well as forthcoming natural
fustory landmark The Hunt, and the much antictpated Sherfock special and subsequent fourth senes, to audiences across the worlg

Beyond programmes, this year we made some strategic investments into developing independent businesses such as Lookout Point and Curve Media This
signals our desire to partner with those producing and making the tighest quality UK content Overseas we are focused on buillding our formats busmess and
growng our production capabilitres in core markets so that we can exploit oulstanding UK creatrve work The strength of our French production am, for
example, is set out on page 11

Strengthening our global brands

In 2013/14 we overhauled our channel brands and began investing i pilot markets to support the launch of new channel brands such as BBC First, BBC Bnt
and BBC Earth These brands are concentrated on genres where we have glabal strength, and the potential to build strong consumer francheses in a mare

competdive marketplace
Ve have been encouraged by the rutial audience reaction to both the inear TV launches of BBC Earth and BBC Bnt m Poland and the debut of BBC First on

the Foxtel subscription platform In Australia.

in the year ahead we will coninue to roll-oul the BBC genre brands across muttiple platforms Linear offerings of BBC Bnt and BBC Earth faunched post year
end in the Nordics in Apnl and BBC First's linear debut outside Austraia came in the Netherlands in May Beyond linear, we will continue to buld our suite of
immersive experiences for audiences of all ages, which this year included a Top Gear Track Expenence at the show's iconic track at Dunsfold

Digital innovation

Within the year BBC com celebrated reactung 100 8m urique browsers for the first trme in January and generated 1 3bn page views across all platforms for
the month of March Qur feature sections played a key role in ths, dmng audiences to 8 3m, up 76 6% (201¥14 4 7m) BBC Earth’s launches on BBC com
and BBC co uk In September and October respectively made it the first of our genre brands to debut online It offers fans of the natural world a nch mix of shont
-form content and editonal insight and complements the linear transmussion of tittes such as Life Story It aiso offers fans an opportunity {o share inspinng
content of the natural world through the EarthCapture app, launched i March in partnership with Seemit, one of this year's BBC Worldwide Labs start-up
companies Within Its first few weeks, app users had submitted over 1,200 pieces of content a mix of video and imagery Our finance and sclence
and technology sections, BBC Capital and BEBC Future achieved record numbers of unique browsers at year end, at 2 5m and 3 Sm respectively up on the
previous year (201314 Capital 1 6m, Future 2 5m) Qur YouTube network has continued to engage fans of our cantent, with total views increasing n the year
by 53 5% lo 80Sm (201¥14 527m)

In 201415 we commenced our joumey Into the {ransactional landscape, with the development and inihal testing of BBC Store as well as eary
stage deveiopment of our mtemational plans for direct-to-consumer sernces BBC Store will be the first of these ambitions to be reaksed, in autumn 2015 The
sernce will be available to UK audlences, and will offer the: option to buy and keep a wealth of iles, including a number of well-loved classics that to date have

not been avaitable commercially

Looking forward, our intemational digtal plans are focused on the roll-out of TV Everywhera seraces i collaboration with our partners as well as evaluating
over the top pdots in one or two lead markets

Bullding a world-class media company

Last year we also tasked ourselves with building on our strong company culture, ensunng all our employees have access to the best training and oppartuniies
to develop thelr careers We have accomplshed a great deal in this area as you can read on page 7 Ths work has led to strong staff engagement scores,
which place us at the upper end of benchmarks, although we hope to keep sething standards in this area

Looking to the future

As we look to the year ahead, we remain very focused on effective execubon of our strategy while remaining agile enough to explot opportunities as they
anse In the rapidly changing market, this will require us to balance the need to invest and innovate with our deswe to achieve consistent financial retums  This
will be challenging, as traditional markets face upheaval, but our outstanding contend, the quality of our brands and the strength of our team puts us n a good
place to defiver success and buid a world-leading creative media business

Tim Davle
Chief Executive, BBC Wortdwide
and Director, Global
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Strategic progression

Highlights
¢ We successfully launched BBC First in Australia on the Foxtel subscaption TV platforr and BBC Bnt and BBC Earth as inear channels in Poland

s  Our commitment to deliver ambttious premium content reached new heights, while forrnats also delivered an impressive slate

» Video views across BBC com averaged 36 6m per month across all platforms, up 48 7% year on year

New genre brands

In 201314 we set out an amiibious plant to faunch three genre brands, BBC First, BBC Earth and BBC Bnt offering audiences premium first runs outside the
UK of the very best in drama, prermum factual and faciual entertainment Within the year we successfully launched BBC First in Australia on the Foxte!
subscnption TV platform and BEC Bnt and BBC Earth as Imear channels m Poland That was marked with a unique promotional stunt involving a gant statue
of Top Gear's The Stig crossing Europe to Warsaw BBC Earth launched on BBC com and BBC co uk. The site has reached an average of 3 1m unique
browsers per month since launching In September

Stand-out achvevements for our core brands included Doctor Who The World Tour Buikding on the success of the 50th annversary we embarked on a 12-day
global promotional tour for seres exght We wisited South Korea, Australia, USA, Mexico and Brazl mtroducing the Twelfth Doctor, Peter Capaidr, and
companion Clara, Jenna Coleman, to intemational fans Trus was a first for a Britsh TV senes and featured a creative social medsa programme with actnaty on
Facebook generating 130m post impressions and more than 2m wdeo views across Facebook and YouTube

As part of the launch activity for Top Gear S22, we produced an exclusive wdeo with LEGOR that has to date been viewed S 4m tmes on YouTube and
Facebook and held the exclusive "An Evening With" Top Gear in London wath afl three presenters The event was watched by 1 1m fans on BBC iPlayer

Promium content

Content remained at the heart of our strategy this year and the commitment 1o deliver ambrious premium content from both BBC in-house and indies reached
new heights Titles included the Golden Globe-wmning drama The Honourable Woman with Maggie Gyllenhaal, Wolf Hall with Damian Lews and Mark
Rytance the cntically acclaimed Happy Valfey with Sarah Lancashire, wnter Jimmy McGovem's Barushed, natural history landmark Life Story, comedy sequel
The Wrong Mans S2, new children's titles Hey Duggee and Neidly & Nora, and the ground-breaking music titte Sorve Highways from The Foo Fighters We atso
welcomed back Doctor Who S8, Orphan Black S2 and Top Gear S22 We also announced new co-development, first-ook and distnbution partnershups wath a
varety of ndependent productron companes across a range of genres including Curve Media for factual entertanment, King Bert for comedy and Red Planet
Cuba Pictures and Lookout Point for drama

Our formats business also delivered an impressive slate with new BBC Worldwide commisstions [aunching wathin the year including Mud, Sweat and Gears and
You're Back in the Room

Digital innovation

We continued to embrace the opporturtes of an increasingly digital landscape Growth of third party streaming services contmued to increase demand for our
programming, as compeling and exclusive content became the key lo winning consumers’ attention This year we continued to supply content to leading
intemational services mciuding Amazon Pnme Instant Video and Netflix We also formed partnerships with start-up services, such as Stan in Australia

In the UK work commenced on ocur own digital ownership service BBC Stere which wall launch in autumn 2015, expanding BBC Waorkdwide's portfolio of
direct-to-consumer digital services and complementing BBC Shap, our ecommerce platform in the UK, USA and Australia We are also developing new
opportunities to launch BBC branded digital wdeo services that complement our globat brands

BBC com celebrated another year of growth, reaching a monthly average of 85 Sm uruque browsers, up 8 3% year on year and peaking in January at 100 8m

Video views across all platforms averaged 36 6m, up 48 7% year on year, with a peak of 48 7m in January These was also strong growth from mobile and
tablet browsers, up 38 5% and 34 9% respectively wathin the year The feature sections aiso flounshed, atiracling an average of 8 3m urique browsers up

76 6% year on year (201314 4 Tm)
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Supporting creativity
Highlights
» Inthe UK, we buoyed the inde sector, working waith over 250 independent producers, sefling their shows mtematenally and retuming £113 1m to the
sector

+ Intenationally we acted as a spearhead for the UK's creative industnes around the world, offering a platform for the best of Batish creatraty
This year, we had an increasingly important role to play at the heart of the UK s thiving creative and digital eco-systemn, both at home and overseas

The creative industnes are a major success story for the UK, generating £76 Sbn Gross Vaiue Added, the measure of direct contnbution to the economy,
£17 3bn service exports and 1 71m jobs and growing faster than the rest of the UK economy Alongside the public service BBC, we supported, parinered wath
and showcased the best of British creativity

In the UK, we buoyed the indie sector working with over 250 independent producers, selling thesr shows intematronally and refurming £113 1m to the sector, as
set out on page 2 The minonty equity postions taken m Lookout Point and Curve Media, refermed to on page 4, enable us to further enrich our content supply
through first-took nghts and offer development and distributon opportunities to programme makers

BBC Worldwade Labs, our digital media start-up programme, supported a further six innovative UK entrepreneunal teams looking to grow this year Al
benefitted from office space, mentoring and access to experts and, to date, ten partnership deals have been signed with BEBC Worldwide Labs compames to
work on our own brands and projects

We facilitated in brnging the UK's creative industnes together to speak with one, more impactful vaice with Tim Dawe co-chainng UK Trade & Investment's
Sector Adwisory Group and leading the Creative Industnes Council's intemnational work. Trus year we glso became a founder supporter of the Creative
Industries Federation

Intemationaly, we acted as a spearhead for the UK's creative mndustnes around the world, offenng a platform for the best of Brtish creativity as the UK's top
distnbutor, cperator of over 40 channel feeds in over 120 territones, through our own BBC channels intematanally, our UK jomnt venture UKTV with Scripps
Networks Interactive, Inc, BBC AMERICA with AMCN, BBC Kids with Knowledge Netwerk Corporation and BBC Canada with Shaw Communications Inc In
total, our ntemational channels have 152 im {excludng the BBC World News channel) subscnbers across the world As well as this, we have a global
presence across digilal and social medla platforms

Exports were increasingfy /mportant fo the UK's tefevision mdustry, with TV trade body PACT reporting total sales of UK telewiston to intematonal markets up
5% to £1,284m 10 2013714 We generated exports for tha BBC and the wider TV industry, with over 700 intemational delegates attending BBC Worldwide
Showcase 2015 in Liverpool and an increase of 3 2% to £345 3m in TV and digital headline sales this year A survey of intemationat business leaders showed
that aver half agreed that the BBC plays a direct role in influencing their business decisions in favour of the UK.

We supported a number of creative industries export intiatives this year, Including tha GREAT Festival of Creatvity in Shanghat and the Technelogy
Innovateors Forum n China and Los Angeles £150m of business deals, plus further UK-China partnerships such as the operung of our CBeebies English
language leaming centre in Shangha), were announced as part of the GREAT Festival

Over the year, we have used our presence to acl a3 & trailblazer for the wider UK creative industnes in new markets, with the BBC brand and iis association
with prermium content shuring a bght on the talent and creatmty carming from the UK
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Business transformation

Hightights
« Deloitte estrmates that in an average month, over 360bn hours of long-form video will be watched globally
*  We pnde ourselves on delivering the best of Bntish content and BBC branded services to audiences across the world

»  Itis well known that world-class organisations stnve for a high performance culture by setting a clear direction, pronding development opportunilies and
a creative working environment, BBC Worldwade s no exception

Market contoxt

We operate in a fast-paced and ever-changing media landscape While the television ndustry remains very smmificant globally — Deloitte estmates that in an
average month, over 360bn hours of long-form widec will be watched globally — short-form content should account for a further 10bn hours 1n aggregate of
monthly play-out In 2015, with estimates of US households accessing subsenption VOD (SVOD) range from 40-57%

The past year has witnessed a nse in hybnd content service taunches, further consolidation of media orgarusations, with aggregate value of European media
deals in 2013 and 2014 worth three imes more than in the three preceding years combined, continued appette for ¢rama globally, and increasing competiton
n sales and disinbution

We pride ourselves on delivering the best of Bnush content and BBC branded services to audiences across the world, as the number one content distnbutor in
Europe and the home of premmum content and innovative BBC branded services To maintain our pesiten we need to evolve in kne wath the market, and we
took active steps m the year to re-shape our business to that end

Strateglc positioning

While BBC AMERICA's ratings and critical acclaim had continued to climb i recent years, we concluded that joming forces with a company which places a
tugh value on premium intefigent and distinctive content, would better secure the channel's future growth in an increasingly challenging enviranment for
independent channe! operators The partnershup gives BBC AMERICA opparturities to grow reach further, as part of a compeliing and unique channe! portfolio
and a more potent force in the US market Closer to heme, we tock an equity stake in independent production company Lockout Paint, and in two more UK
independents since year end, intended to support thetr growth and secure our iIndependent pipeline m a consolidating market

We also started the transfermation of our direct-to-consumer portfolio, developing and launching the new genre brands descnbed on page 5§ rolling out three
new channels by the year end, and a further four by start of June with more to follow in 2015/16 Brand-burlding in the inear TV world will give us an mportant
foothold i audiences’ hearts and minds as the transihon to digital continues

Culture

It 18 well known that world-class organisations strive for a lngh-performange culture by sethng a dear direchion, providing development opportunities and a
creative working environment to engage therr people BBC Worldwide 15 no exceplion and in the year we engaged the vast majonty of our employees
in a senes of workshops around the world to identify those areas we could put more focus on o achieve our alm of high performance

A number of areas were identifled, including leadership behaviours, recogriion and development As a result, we have already started work on this,
developing a leadership commiment made up of s high-performance behaviours which all our employees can expect of our leaders We have put in place a
number of new development programmes — for senor leaders, and emerging leaders — all aimed at building leaderstup and management capability

For the whole company, we aiso mtroduced a new development mtranet site and tools to enhance wrtual and face-to-face leaming along with a complete
curnculum of new courses In the area of recognition, we have launched a new global awards scheme to highlight and recogrise excellence The coming year
will see further pregress in all these areas

Finally we wanted to enhance the creativity of our work space and the year saw a number of office moves, including the mergmg of our two London sites into
the refurbished iconic Telewision Centre, as well as new offices in Warsaw, Johannesburg and Singapore By removing assigned desks and putting teams
into more efficient, open-plan and creative work spaces we aim to encourage a more flexable way of working both in situ and remotely, and interaction
between different teams
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UK
PERFORMING WELL

Highlights

»  Sygnficant nvestment made in BBC Store, which launches in the UK i autumn 2015
«  Newlicensing deals included Doclor Who partnership with LEGO®

«  Taodate there have been 7 9m downioads of our Top Gear mobile games

QOur UK actmbes complement British audiences’ emjoyment of welHoved BBC content, primarily through our jaint-ownership of UKTV and our TV sales,
consumer producis and Ive events businesses This year we announced a number of significant new parinerships and events and developed our digital
offenng through increased investment in digital imbatives, most significantly BBC Store

Overall the UK performed well We reduced our dependency on physical and focused on key titles and brands Headline sales were stable at £361 8m (201314
£362 2m), while headline profit was £52 7m (2013/14 £56 2m), with eight out of the ten business areas recarding profit growth

We secured a number of second window deals for BBC content, beginning a new partnership with Amazon Pnme and continuing our relationship wath Netfibe
UKTV, the award-winning media comparny, of which BBC Worldwide owns 50% along with Scnpps Networks Interactve, inc, celebrated its 22™ year with
anather excellent performance, growing its share of the commercial TV market to an all-bme high, up from 8 2% to 9 0% in 2014, achieving cntical acctaim and
ratings success for onginal comnussions and launching new digital service UKTV Play

BBC Store, a new digita? senice which will allow consumers in the UK to buy and keep BBC programmes, wall launch auturmn 2015 with up to 10,000 hours of
content indudmg new programmes, titles from our catalogue and previously unavallable gems from the BBC's archive Revenue from our estabiished
ecommerce business BBC Shop was up 15 4% to £4 6m

In DVD from January 2014 to Decernber 2014, we finished ahead of all other UK TV studios, with 11 titles in the lop 50 best-seling TV ttles of the year Top
Gear — The Perfect Road Trip 2 look the top spol, a second year runmung for the brand, achieving more than double the sales of the nearest compelitor,
meanwhile Miranda Hart's My, What [ Call, Live Show, was the second highest selling stand-up comedy title of the year

We progressed two new ive event ventures CBeebles Land, a partnerstup with Merin Entertainments, opened at Alton Towers in May In August we
launched the Top Gear Track Experience n partnesstup with Brandscape Group, based at the Top Gear track in Dunsfold We also signed an agreement wath
London Paramount Entertainment Resort, working towards the inclusion of a range of BBC brands in a major new entertainment park in Kent

We secured some exciting new bicensing deals for core BBC brands including a Doctor Who partnership with LEGO® Master toy bcensee Golden Bear
produced our new Hey Duggee range for pre-school children and there have been 7 9m downioads of our Togp Gear moblle games The Games business
retumed a E1 4m increase i profil, despite a reducton n headime sales

As BBC Good Food celeprated s 25% anniversary, bbegoodfood com ncreased s urique reach by 37 0% to 16 Om (2013714 11 7Tm) unique browsers
TopGear com reached 6 8m unique browsers per month, an increase of 59 5% on last year

Our Radiy & Music business had a good year, with the BBC Radio 1 Live Lounge album going platinum and BBC Radio 2 Sounds of the 80s and Dave Arch
and the Strctly Come Dancing Band releases both going siver Demon Music Group also had success with the box set release for Donna Summer BBC
Worldwide Leaming, which icenses BBC content for educational purposes outside the UK, completed deals with the Minisines of Educaton m Smgapore
and France and continued to work with educational publishers from acress the globe BBC Motion Gallery successfully established our partnerstup wath Getty
Images, growing online sales by 13 7% to £1 2m
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North America
CHAMPIONING CHANGE

Highlights
+  Digital content sales reperted another successful year surpassmg inear TV sales for the first tme i the region
»  Senes two of Orphan Black, the ongmal award-winning BBC AMERICA programme, deubled its series one ratings

+« BBC AMERICA successfully achueved its 10th consecutive year of ratings growth in 2014 whilst over half of US cable networks experienced year-on-
year declines

BBC Worldwice North America is our largest business outside the UK It includes content sales and co-productions, consumer products, BBC com, and BBC

Worldwide Productions
2014/15 was a significant year, prmanly due to our entering into a long-term strategic agreement with AMC Networks (AMCN), which invested US$200 Om for

a 49 9% stake in BBC AMERICA Ina market that has witnessed increased consolidation, this venture was an important next step for the cable channel
and posiionad it for future growth as one of a slate of successful channels operated by AMCN

Headline sales for the region declined by 12 5% from £342 5m to £299 9m and headline profit saw a year-on-year dechne from £44 1m to £32 9m, almost solely
due to the reduced ownership stake in BBC AMERICA under the venture in the last hatf of the year At constant currency these declines wers 10 7% and 16 9%
respectrvely

On BBC AMERICA, Doctor Who cantinued to grow with the debut of the Tweifth Doctor, Peter Capaldy, and aunch of senes eight delivenng the show's highest
ratings to date — up 19 7% wversus pnor senes, with an average of 2 2m viewers each week — while hcensing sales on the title retumed year-on-year growth
of 28 1% Qrphan Black, the original awand-wnning BBC AMERICA senes became the first drama on US ad-supported television to double its series
ona audience in key advertising demographics (Adults 1849, Adulls 25-54) when it retumed for a second senes — establishing itself as a core franchise for
North Amenca

BBC AMERICA successfully achieved its 10™ consecutive year of ratings growth in 2014/15 - viewership grew 3 0% i the key pnmetime viewing slot, while
over half of US cable networks expenenced year-on-year declnes

Qur focus on extending fan engagement with premium: tittes such as Doctor Who, Orphan Black and Top Gear reached new heights BBCAmenca com wsiors
increased by 9 9% and Facebook followers doutied to 24m Doclor Who remains the number one TV brand on Tumbir and ranks among Twatter's top five most-
tweeted about onginal dramas

Building on our suite of successfut co-productions, this year we secured a significant deal between the BBC and PBS 1o create upwards of ten factual
programmes per year

Digital content sales reported another successful year, seeing gains of 54 1% and surpassing finear TV sales for the first tme in the region which highirghts the
growng demand on digial platforms and audiences’ appetite for greater chorce in how they consume our content Core revenue dnvers included exclusive SVOD
deals for Sherlock and Happy Vafley, defivery of over 3,000 episodes licensed to Hulu smce 2010, and a significant mufli-year Netfix catalogue deal spanning
multiple genres including BBC Earth titles

While the DVD market in the tenflory has seen severe declines n revenue across the board, our consumer products division has seen only a marginal decline
and the success of digital content sales has hetped to balance this out

The feature sechons of BBC com contmued to draw new users — an increase of 86 3% in the LISA and Canada — reaching over 5 1m unigue browsers each month
This growth 15 supported by the introduction of more wdeo nch content and the launch of a BBC Earth section that averaged 1 1m urique browsers per month
across the USA and Canada since launching m September

Revenue from the production business in Los Angetes dechned slightly, dnven by a shift in scheduting of the hit show Da Vinci's Demons on Starz However,

the appetite for popular UK show formats remained strong  seeing commission renewals for the much-loved programme Dancing with the Stars for ABC, which
celebrates its 10™ year and 20™ senes in 2015 as well as a fourth senes of the US version of Top Gear Onginal unscnpted commussion renewals included Life

Below Zero and Ladies of London
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Australia and New Zealand
STRONG GROWTH
Highlights
«  Anexcellent performance, with headline sales up 11 8% and headiine profit up 13 2% in local currency and up 7 8% and 22 6% after translation
into sterling

«  Strategic partnerships dehvenng well across sales, channels and TV formats
= Very strong global debut for BBC First on the Foxtel subscnption platfortn in Australia and further benefits from resulting re-tienng of BBC UKTV

In BEBC Woridwide Australis and New Zealand, we wholly own and operate six BBC branded channels, distributa content to all the local platform providers and
focus on growth across afl cur core busmess areas Wa work with partners to bring DVDs, five everds, enterttainment formats and consumer products to the
market, as well as offenng advertising oppartunities on BBC com

Our Australia and New Zealand business delivered excellent growth in bath revenue and profit in local currency, up 118% and 13 2% respectively, as the
benefits of new strategic pnentes and partnerships fed into our financial results Translated into sterfing, headiine sales of £81 9m {20114 £76 Cm) were up
7 8% and headline profit of £16 3m (2013/14 £13 am) Increased 22 6% Thus was largely attnbutable to our channels and digital TV sales businesses, with
both ines showing double-digit growth, well ahead of the Australian media market

The principal dnvers of growth were a number of key partnerships formed in 2013 and 2014 Our partnership with Foxtel saw the debut of BBC First In August
become the platform's most successful non-sport channel faunch since 2006 Stand-out ratings successes include launch ttles The Musketeers and Peaky
Binders, along with series four of the long-funning BBC senes Call the Miawife and catically acclaimed The Missing, which was supponted by a publicity wisit
from lead actor James Nesbitt

Mearmhile, BBC First's maiden co-commission, Jimmy McGovern's Bansshed, with BBC Two, was partly filmed n Sydney BBC First advertising sales were
strong dunng the year as a resuit of prermium partnerships, and the renewed key sponsorshup deal with Audi

The launch of BBC First saw general entertalnment channel BEC UKTV move onto Faxtel's entry level Entertainment tier, resuiting in an uplit to ds audience,
while this year BBC Knowledge broadcast senes 22 of Top Gear just mmutes after the UK In New Zealand, UKTV achweved Sky TV's number two
entetainment channel ranking dunng the year In February ouw perfolre of Austraken channels launched on high-growth IPTV platform Fetch TV We
anticipate future success from further growth In BBC First, and are evaluating opporturvhes for additional channel launches in the region

The retum of Doctor Who S8 on the ABC in August, with more opporturnities to view on hinear and digital, delivered an increased audience, and Sydney was
one of five nternational stops en the Word Tour A Doctor Who Symphonic Spectacular tour visited Perth, Adefaide, Auckland and Sydney in February Other
stand-out BBC tties on the ABC included Caff the Midwife, Silent Witness and Death in Paradise, while our natural history programming continued to do well
with Life rating highly on Channe! Nine five years after its original broadcast.

TV format sales this year encompassed a range of welHoved Bntish factual and entettainment ttfes appearing on a wide vanety of channels This included a
second senes of Coast Austraha on The History Channel, and also available to UK audiences on BBC Two, a 14 sedies of Dancmg with the Stars on Seven,
and Laang with the Enemy on SBS New format commissions, generated since we entered into a general entertainment production pastnership with
FremantieMedia Austratia, included The Great Australran Bake Off on Lifestyle FOOD and Rachel Khoa's Kitthen Notebook Meibourne on SBS in Austrafia In
New Zealand we sold Coast New Zealand to TV ONE and Dancing with the Stars to TV3

We achieved a record resut across digital TV sales, up fourfold m the year Our digital reach was also extended In the year with new deats incluting OTT
platforms Stan , Netflx and Lightbox, meaning that our content 1s now available on over 15 digital platforms in the region The strength of our catafogue should
underpxn future sales actvly, both in finshed programmes and formats
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Global Markets

REACHING NEW AUDIENCES

Highlights
*  Sohd underiying performance, despite headwnds of adverse currency movements and economic downtum in Russia, including impact of sanctions
+«  Good growth in international versions of Bribish formats, with a stand-out five UK formats commissioned from BBC Worldwde Productions in France

¢  Year of nvestment in channels — BBC Bnt and BBC Earth debuted in Poland in February with encouraging eardy performance — and in strengthemng
our local presence by upgrading and opeming new offices

Compnsed predominantly of the non-English speaking word, our Global Markets business encompasses Westem Europe, Central and Easlem Europe,
Middle East and Afnca (CEMA), Asia and Latin Amenca Business actimties range from TV sales and channel operation to production and intellectual property

expioitation

In a difiicult year, dunng whuch our business was affected by adverse cumency movements and exceptional condiions In some markets, sales were still
broadly flat at £276 3m (201314 £279 1m), a decine of 1 0% Profit, however, was down 27 0% at £32 2m (2013414 £44 1m), reflecing both external
headwinds and significant nvestment in cortent and marketrng for new channel brands Re-stating at constant cumency, revenue was up 1 5% while headline
profit decreased by 5 0% The year saw real progress made in Asia and Latin Amenca, key channel renewals in important temtories and an increased reach
through wader distribution the rofl-out of new brands and higher TV sales

Wastern Europe

Westem Europe delivered sates of £160 1m (201314 £156 2m) and headline profit of £27 Om {201%/14 £34 3m) due to euro weakness and planned
channels investment Restating at constant cumrency, revenue was up 6 3% with headhine profit down 2 8%

Westem Europe 15 a key sales market, with local and intemational SVOD customers becomung increasingly important Stand-out tles included The
Musketeers, Omhan Black, Tog Gear and Misfits We renewed a long-standing factual content partnership with France Téléwsions and extended a BBC Earth

branded block — one of 13 BBC blocks globally — with Pro7Maxx in Germany

Qur French production busmess increased revenue by over 50%, with local versions of five much-loved BBC programmes - BBC production Dancing with the
Stars, Antiques Roadshow, The Weakest Link and Love Productions Sewing Bee and Bake Off — on screen In the same month These generated a total
prnmetime average audience of 18 4m Top Gear France also emjoyed good ratngs and our German jont venture, Tower Produchons, received a first
commussion for onginal format One i a Thousand from ZDF

Resat of World

Challenges in the Russian market which rmpacted the wider broadcast industry, alongside channels investment and foreign exchange, affected CEMA This
was offset by good revenue and headline profit performance in Asia and Latin Amenca As a result of the factors in CEMA, total RoVY revenue was down at
£116 2m (2013114 £122.9m) and headine proft down at £5 2m (2013/14 £9 8m)

CEMA
Poland became the debut market for our new genre brands with BBC Brit and BBC Earth launching as linear channels n February Both outperformed

established nvals, breaking into the top three in their competiive sets Advertising revenues on our African and Polish channels continued to grow
Format sales included Great Bake Off to Israel and Turkey and Dancing with the Stars to Sloversa and Romama The latest senes of Dancing with the Stars in
Poland achieved a 24 1% audienca share up from 23 §% on 201314

TV sales markets showing a strong upfift mciuded Israel, taking The Honourable Woman, Happy Valley, The Musketeers and Sheriock; Turkey, buying Intruders
Doctor Who and Frozen Pianet, and Afiica, with Orphan Black S1 and 52 and Atlantis S1

We atso entered our first VOD deals in Afnica and Poland and secured a number of digital deals across the Middle East and Central & Eastern Europe

Asia
The year saw success across fimshed programmes and formats, BBC branded channels and blocks as well as local production Sherfock S3 passed 90m

views on Chinese digrtai platform Youku

Significant deats included programme sales and VOD deals across multiple platforms to Tawan while Japan's NHK signed a co-production agreement for the
Natural History Unit's Wil Japan Through a partnerstup with Singapore-based Popular Education we entered the Chinese English language leaming market.
Audiences enjoyed local versions of formats, with Indta adding a thind version of Dancing with the Stars produced by BBC Wortdwade Productions in Kamataka
for ETV Kannada, and local versions of Top Gear and Danging with the Stars retumed to China

Latin Amenca
BBC Entertanment was named by nulenio newspaper as the Best Pay TV Channel in Mexico for a third successive year Degital sales growth continued,

inciuding new deals with Enter Play Brazil and Veo Mexico Format sales remained strong, eaming free-to-ar pnme-time scheduling for What Not to Wear in
Brazil and for Dancing with the Sters in Panama and Costa Rica Doctor Who and Sherfock were sold to Brazi's TV Cuitura, while deals with major pan-
regional TV networks including TNT, HBO, Fox, History and A+E, hefped BBC content reach new audiences across the region Natural history tiles receved
theatrical release as well as a programmung block on Ecuador's Ecuavisa

11




BBC Worldwide Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements

Chief Financial Officer’s review

Financial performance

BBC Worldwide's overall operating performance for 2014/15 was positive,
and our shareholder retum set a new record

Headling results

The agreement reached in October with AMCN for its purchase of 49 9%
of BBC AMERICA has had a significant effect onour year-on-year
performance In order to demonstrate the impact of this transact:on on our
resuits and loprovide a more meanngfd year-on-year companson, we
have analysed the income statement and the related notes between
BBC AMERICA and the ongomng operations The strategic rationale for this
transaction 1s set out on page 7

Headline sales of £1,001 8m were down by 3 9% (201314 £1,042 3m), and
headline proft of £1386m was down by 119% (2013114 £1574m) as
detalled In tables 1 and 2 Adjustng for the effect of the AMCN venture
ongaing headline sales were broadly flat at £948 1m (2013/14 £944 5m) with
ongang  heading  profitof £1272m (201344  £1222m), showng
a4 1% increase These results were m spte of movements in foreign
exchange, wihich adversely impacted headline sales by £19 5m and headiine
profit by £3 2m, pnmarly dnven by significant fluctuations i our three main
frading currencies, the euro, US dollar and Australian dollar exchange rates, to
which we are matenally exposed

Regional segmental results are reporfed on pages 8-11 in the Strategic
Report and reflect the geographical way in which we manage our busmess
To ensure that management has the fullest nformation, we also track our
global performance in the major business areas where we operate In the
year we increased total TV and digital headiine sales by 3 2% to £3453m
(2013/14 £334 6m), reflecting our continuing high levels of investment in
premium content along with an ever-ncreasing focus on global sales activity
and expertse Headline sales across our total channels business decreased
by £42 4m to £356 9m (2013114 £389 3m) Of this decrease, £44 1m relates
to BBC AMERICA, refiecting underying good performance at UKTV and our
channels achvities elsewhere 1n the world CQur total production business
grew 3 7% to £161 6m (2013/14 £155 9m), with excellent growth in France
more than offsetting the deferral of a third senes of Da Viner's Demons into
the next financial penod in our US production business

Our headiine profit margin for the ongoing business increased to 13 4% in
the year (2013/14 12 9%) despie organic revenue investment an BBC Store
and the first year of roling out new channel brands, which requires additional
investment i both content and marketing

Statutory results

We inchuxde our share of revenues from joint ventures, principally these of
UKTV, in headiine sales and the pre-tax and pre-interest resuits of our joint
ventures and associates in headline profit because we view these operations
as a fundamental part of our ongoing actvibes

Headline resulls are used by management to measure financial
performance, and are reported to the Board The segmenta! analysis of
results for 2013/14 has been resfated to refiect the rewised methodology by
which the cost of content s aflocated across the regions  Statutory revenus
of £851 3m (2013/14 £892 Om} excludes our share of joint venture revenue,
and operatmg profit includes our headline profit as well as specific tems,
discussed below A reconciliation of headline profit to profit before tax 1s
shown opposite

Specific items

Specific tems are not defined under IFRS and may not be comparable to
similarly ttled measures used by othes companies Spedfic ltems are
material ters which are highlighted by wirtue of their size or importance m
order to enable a full understanding of our performance These items are
detailed in table 3 on page 13, and inciude our share of the interest and tax
of jmnt ventures and associates, and addrtional deficit reduction payments to
the BBC pension scheme, of £8 4m and £8 1m respectively (2013/14 £9 7m
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1. Headline sales
Region 14115 1314
£m £m
Umted Kingdom 3518 3622
North Amenca 2999 3425
Austraha and New Zealand 819 780
Western Europe 180 1 156 2
Rest of World 1162 1229
Eliminations {18 1) {17 5)
Total 1,001 1,042 3

2 Headline profit
Region 14115 1314
Em £m
United Kingdom 527 562
North America 29 441
Austraha and New Zealand 163 133
Western Europe 27¢ M43
Rest of World 52 98
Elmunations 45 {0 3)
Total 136 6 1574

RECONCILIATION 2014/15
im
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and £2 3m) Other specific tems include £26m of reorgarisation costs,
pnmanly assocated with the relocation of our head office, as well as £2 Om
relating to impaiments of investments In assocrates The presentation of
these dems i1s consistent with previous years

Corporate activity

On 23 October 2014, we sold a 49 8% controling stake in BBC AMERICA to
the US entertainment group, AMC Networie We retained a 50 1% non-
controling interest in BBC AMERICA and receved proceeds of US$200 0m
{£123 Om), recognising a disposal gan of £1159m, foliowmng the agreed
settlement of certain disposal-related hatilhes and transaction costs The
proceeds included US$1600m of cash received dunng the year, and
US%40 Om of deferred consideration, received in Apri 2015

Employees

Average headcount in the year was 1,829, up by five on 201314 Ths
movement represents the transfer of New York-based employees working on
BBC AMERICA to AMCN in October 2014, offset by hires {0 prncipally
suppart our new digial intiatives Employee costs are outlined in table 4 on
page 13
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Tax

Our total tax charge was £38 3m (2013/14 £28 1m), including £26 6m
{2013/14 £13 8m} in respect of BBC AMERICA. The effect of the BBC
AMERICA disposal mcluding the mpact of non-taxable goodwill, offset
the increase i overall profits from the USA, a higher {ax rate jurisdiction
than the UK This, tegether with high-end telewision tax rehef of £7 8m
(2013714 £5 1m}, contnbuted to a reduction m the total effective tax rate
o 17 1% (2013/14 22 3%} as noted in table 5

The total tax charge for the year includes £19 1m (2013/14 £24 Om) current
tax, and net tax pawd in the year amounted to £26 5m (2013/14 £37 6m),
due to iming differences between tax accounung and settternent

Cash and net debt

Operating cash flow of £191 0m (2013/14 £150 5m) reflects a reduction in
tax paxd of £11 1m to £26 5m (2013/14 £37 6m) and an increased focus on

working capital management.

Cur move fo new London headquarters in TVC dunng the fourth quarter
resulted in a one-off mcrease in cash expendidure on property of £9 5m in the
year The increased capital and operatng mvestment n BBC Store and
channels, refemed to above, also impacted the company's cash flow in the

year

The most significant movement in cash dunng the year was an infiow of
£64 5m net proceeds in relation to AMCN's purchase of its interest in BBC
AMERICA Together with our underlying performance, this has allowed us to
return a total of £226 5m to our parent in the year, an increase of 30 3% of
which £111 3m was paxd by way of dividends

Average net debt throughout the year was £32 4m (201314 £418m) and
we ended the year with net debt of £69 2m (2013/14 £54 3m) Our debt
facility wath BBC Commerual Haoldings Limited provides us with a maximum
facility of £202 2m, of which the final £30 Om s conditional on an equivalent
helding in cash

Balance sheet

The net assel increase from £314 7m fo £4056m 18 for the most part
explained by the BBC AMERICA transaction, wath the recogniion of an
associate (bvtially at £119 9m) less the BBC AMERICA, assets sold (pnmanly
£54 8m of programme nghts and other inventories)

In addion, we have furthered our investment m premium content, wath key
acquisthons on tilles such as Doctor Who, Omhan Black and
The Musketeers, contnbuting to an increase in distribution nghts of £32 7m

Going concern

The company ended the year, following a creditable operating performance
and the AMCN transaction, with a robust balance sheet, and able to dedlare
a record retum to our shareholder Looking ahead, with the focus on delwery
of our stated straleqy, coupled with finanoal dscipline and careful
management of our cost base, we expect to drve continued value for our
sharehoider The Dwrectors of BBC Wordwide remain confident tn our abslity
to operate with our existng financial resources, and we therefore continue
to adopt the going concem basis in preparing the accounts

Andrew Boft
Chief Financial Qfficer

Year ended 31 March 2015
3. Specific items
14115 114
Em £m
Share of interest and tax of joint ventures
and associates 94 @n
Pension defict reduction payment 81) (2 3)
Other
Reorgansation costs {2 6) (70
Amounts wntten off interests in joint ventures
and asscciates (20} (22
Transaction fees (0 2) {06
{4 8) @8
Totat (22.3) {218)
4. Employee costs
14118 114
Em Em
Salanes and wages (120 0) (121 4}
Social secunty costs (107) (1086
Other pansion costs (18 2) (12 5}
Total {148 9) {144 5)
5. Reconciliation of tax rate
14/15 13/14
UK corporate tax rate 21 0% 230%
Disallowable expenditure 15% 15%
Non-taxabie mcome (5 1%) -
High-end television tax relief {3 5%) (4 0%)
Tax-exempt disposals - (1 0%)
Higher overseas tax rates 7 2% 33%
Tax effact of share of resulis of joint ventures
and associates (2 7%) (17%)
Reduction in UK tax rate - 03%
Adjustments in respect of pnor years (1 3%) 05%
Total 17 1% 22.3%
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BBC Worldwide Executive Commiittee

Background

Marcus Arthur
President, UK & ANZ

Marcus moved into his current role In 2013 He rs responsible for BBC Woridwide s businesses in the UK and ANZ Marcus
joined BBC Worldwide m 1991 and has held roles including MD of Brands Consumers and New Ventures, Digital Delivery
and before that Managing Direclor, BBC Magazines

Andrew Bott
Chief Financial Officer

Andrew was appomnted to tus current role in 2014 Pnor ta this from 2007 to 2013 he was CFO of BBC Worldwide Nerth
Amenca He joned in 1998 and w1 2000 moved to New York Prewiously, Andrew held positions
at PrcewaterhwouseCoopers and Pearson

Tim Davie

Chief Executive, BBC
Worldwide and Director, Global

Tim took up his current role in 2013 He 1s also Chairman of Comic Relief and Vice-Chair of the RTS Dunng hs ten years
at the BBC, Tim has held the positions of Acting Director-General, Director of Audio & Music and Drector of Marketing,
Commurcations & Audiences

Paul Dempsey
President, Global Markets

Paul took up tus current role in 2013 He ts responsibie for bullding BBC Worldwide's portfolio across predominantly non-
English speaking temtones, known collectively as Global Markets Paul joined BEBC Worldwide in 1998 His previous roles
include Interim CEQ and MD Consumer Products

Charlotte Eiston
Director of Communications

Charlotte jomed BBC Worldwide as Director of Commurications n 2010 She oversees all areas of communications
globally inchuding extemal and intemnal communications, corporate affars and events Chariotie has previously worked at
Aegis Group plc, Pearson Brunswack and Edelman PR

Martyn Freeman

General Counsel &
Coampany Secretary

Martyn was appointed to his current role in 2011 He has responsibilty for all legal, business affairs, policy and regulatory
matters, and from January 2015 became Company Secretary Previously, Martyn held a vanety of roles across the BBC,
ncluding Head of Business Affairs, Radio & Music, Factual & Learming and News

Kirstin Furber
People Director

Kirstin ts responstble for Human Resources across BBC Worldwide She was appointed to this position in 2013, having
previously been SVP HR Prior to joining BBC Warldwide, Kirstin held rofes at Twentieth Century Fox, Discovery Channed,
Ziff Dawis, Warner Bros and Granada Media Group

David Glbbons
Director of Global Operations

David oversees Consumer Digital Technology, Global Technology, eCRM and Analytics, Property, Procurement and the
Global Content Supply Chain He joined BBC Wortdwide it 2013 Pnor to this he held ieadership positons in SEEK, GE
Capital, Gap and Nike

Amanda Hilt
Chief Brands Cfficer

Amanda s responsibie for developing the overarching brand strategy for BEC Werldwide Amanda manages the cument
brand partfolo as well as development and bulding of new brands  She also oversees audience nsight, trade and content
marketing

Helon Jackson
Chief Content Officer

Helen became Chuef Content Officer in 20H3 She oversees the creative and commercial wision for BBC Worldwide's
Conlent strategy covenng commissionung, development and acquisibon actvty, channels curatton and editonal standands
Heien previously estabished BBC Worldwide's Indie Unit

David Moody
Director of Strategy

David 1s responsible for all aspects of the company's drection and strategy Dawd joned BBC Worldwide in 2004 He
previously hetd roles in BBC Ventures, The LEK Partnership, Singapore Telecom tntemational and United News & Media
and co-founded Dataroam

Herb Scannell
President,
BBC Worldwide North Amernica

Herb)s responsible for BBC Worldwide in the USA and Canada Prior to joning BBC Woridwide 1n 2010, he was CEO of
Next New Networks a digital media company he co-founded in 2006 Herb was formerly Vice Chairman of MTV Networks
and Preament of Nickelodeon Netwarks
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BBC Worldwide Limited

Risk management

We are committed to supporting effective and efficient nsk management practices to safeguard owr people, reputation, assets and commercial performance
Risk management protects the reputation of the BBC brand as we showcase it intematonally, and ensures stabdity of commercial returns to our parent, the
BBC Our risk management approach Is afigned to the BBC, ta s public purpose and values and its editonal standards Ttus approach s used throughout our
businesses, projects and in the fosmabon and management of jomnit venture (JV) relatonships

Tim Davie, Chief Executrve, BBC Worldwide and Director, Global, afong with the Worldwade Executive (VWEx), sponsor nsk management Divasional and
intemational boards take ownership of local nsk management processes, supported by senior managers who have clearty defined nsk accountabifittes

A Risk Management and intemal Controts Committee compnsed of WEx members and senior managers reviews and challenges the corporate nsk register as
part of the format quarterly nsk management process

Risk Themes Strategic Impacts Mitigation
Reputation and standards Harm to our reputation, Leadership and management behaviours that promote the BBC values
Resk that audiences lose confidence in our relationship with as a platform for the company’s culture Emphasis on honest and open
the integnty of our business or our audiences and to the communications Policy framework, company communications and HR

content. Risk we fal to represent the

credibity of the BBC

processes requinng and demonstrating the appropnate behawviours

character of the BBC to global brand

audiences

JV & associate relationships Under-delivenng against  JV formation 1s always backed by a detalled definution of the JV/

Risk we don't maxmise the potential audience expectations benefits, purpose, mecharucs and governance, with appropnate

from our JV and assaciate refatonships, and our ambntions for safeguards over editonal contrel Approvals framewark, encampassing
the principaf enes being UKTV, BBC the JV and assoctate BBC Pubfic Service and alignment, ensure that potential deals which
AMERICA and Immediate Media relationshups benefit the UK hcence fee payer are explored

Content supply pipeline Reduced drama and Dedwcated Content division with experttse in content acquisition and
Risk that ongoing acquisibon and factual entertainment relationship management. Qutput deals with a imited number of key

consoldation across the ndependent
sector restncts the addressable market

for nghts in key genres Potential
changes to BBC Producton

content, impact the
brand and channel
strategies

independent producers and minonty iInvestment stakes to increase the
pipeline of creatve output. We are commuitted to maximising ndie
returns notwithstanding the BBC Store and channels strategy

Execution of company strategy

Risk that in-region we do not get the
most from our affiiate relationships, or
the nght brand wvisibility or the nght
premium vs free-to-air channel mix Risk
that we do not achieve sufficient scale in
some regional markets Risk from
launching new direct-to-consumer
service such 2s BBC Store

Reduce our abdty to
showcase BBC content.

More vuinerable to
disruptive digital
senices

Risk operating with sub-
scale regional
businesses

International channe! team who iead negobations and manage channe!
launches Regions have extensive knowledge of the affiiate landscape
and the expertise to get the nght channel mix, platforms and
relationships Leadership experience and insight into markets to ensure
we secure the nght partners, build the nght relationships and evolve the
nght propositions in the context of a global ambition and strategy

Information security

Risk that our mformation assets are
compromised Risk that content assets
are disclosed or used malciousty Risk
of content piracy

Disclosed assets have
reduced editonal or
commercial value
Disruphon to business
operatons

New content path defined for hugh-value content, including dedicated
infrastructure and content handiing tearm New centralised giobal
solution for regional post-production actvities (e g localisaton and
dubbing) Enhanced information secunty roles and responsibilibes,
additonal resources, and global network convergence

Trading performance and growth
Business performance i1s sensitive to
UK and internabonal economic
conditions, especially the USA and
Austraba, and exchange rate
movements

Adverse impact on cash
flows and reported
financial results

Business 15 diversified across both regions and revenue streams Rusk-
averse approach to foreign curency management Central
management of budgets and performance, cash-flow forecasting,
careful debtor management and hedging policy

Reguiatory and comphance
Potential for non-compliance with UK,
and intemational laws, especially
regulatory changes and legislation with
exira-terntonal reach

Cwl or ciminal
challenge Financial
penaltes

Reputational damage

Comprehensive and enforced policy framework including Executive
sponsorship, mandatory traiming programme, gurdelines, regular
reporting, specialist committees and steenng groups Oversight by
Board, Executive and Risk Management Committee Central Business
and Legal Affairs resources to support

Busness continuity and safety
Major incident with nsk of disruption to
operations, infrastructure and loss

of revenue

Potantal for injury or
death Distuption to
business operations

Reputatonal damage

Safety management arrangements supported by policy framework,
communications, forums and guides and specialist safety adwice
Extensive continuity plans encompassing all offices and business
operations Tramning on international travel safety
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Corporate responsibility

Highlights

«  Team Worldwide, our employee engagement programme, s centred around the three pillars of Commumity, Sustainatslity and Challenge
« In 2014 we joined the Ethical Trading Iniiative and will be working with them to report on our ethical sourcing actwites

«  We are working on ensuring that a sustainable way of operating becomes ‘business as usual' at BBC Worldwide

We believe in being a responsible corporate ciizen by embedding best prachices in the way we work and continuously working on improving them over trme

Ethical sourcing programme

Ethical sourcing rs a core element of our consumer products business We encourage long-tenn relationships with supplier factones n order to buid trust and
a commitmernt to contruous mprovement All our suppliers and icensees are required to submit ther manufacturers for approval through our ethical sourcng
programme in advance of production We review detailed, independent audits for factorfes in hugher risk countnes and work with our suppliers and censing
partners to comect any issues that may be highlighted Factones that do not meet our mimimum standards are not approved for manufacture untl these

standards have been met
in 2014 we joined the Ethical Trading Inftiative and will be working with them over the coming year to report on our ethical sourcing activities

Environmental Issues

We are workmg on ensunng that a sustainable way of operating becomes 'business as usual at BBC Worldwide We collect data from our offices around the
world to enable us to monitor our energy and water consumption and our waste management.

In Mareh, our London headquarters moved mto TVC in West Landon Reducing cur environmenrtal impact was an important consideration in both the move
process and In setting up our new office We reused most of cur existing IT equipment, workstations, chairs and storage fumiture, and envirenmental
credentials were a key consideration when we purchased new fittngs, furmshings and equipment.

Looking ahead, we intend to implement robust momtanng at TVC and our offices globally to build on the understanding of our emaronmental rmpacts and put in
place processes to reduce them further

Team Worldwide

Team Worldwde, our employee engagement programme, was launched m February 2014 Centred around the three pillars of Commurity, Sustainability and
Challenge, it has enabled our employees to make contnbutions to tncrease our positive impact en society and reduce our negative impact on the environment,
whiie helping employees collaborate, expand their honzons and have fun Through the year, our gicbal offices undertook actwities tarlored to thesr local areas

These ranged from physical challenges such as sporting and endurance events, to contnbuting to the local community by donating tme and goods in Cologne,
Hong Kong, London, Mianm, Mumbai, New York, Singapore and Sydney As well as providing tme and goods through Team Worlkdwide, staff raised over
£20,000 for Comic Relief and BBC Children n Need in the UK and partner chanties in our global offices

Tim Davie
Chief Executive, BBC Worldwide
and Director, Global
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Corporate governance report

Highlights

+» The BBC Executive Board and its board committees have responsibility for the overall assurance and supenvision of BBC Workiwide However, during
the coming months it is proposed that the authonty to consider and approve the operational matters of the company will be delegated to the BBC
Worldwide Board

+  We take our legal and regulatory obligations senously and we have developed dear policies, practices and traring and awareness programmes to
ensure the protection of personal information

¢  The 4CC approvals framework embedded within our govemnance structure ensures that key projects and investments are subject to ngorous
avaluation, ensuring compliance with each of tha 4CC prior to launch

Corporate governance i3 about the structure and ralationships which determine the corporate direction and performance At BBC Worldwide
the board of directors is ¢central to our govarnance as is its relationship to the other key participants, BBC Pubiic Service, BEC Worldwlide
and staff

In the Annual Review of 2013114 we reported that the number of directors of the statutory Board of BBC Worldwade Limuted had been reduced in keeping with
the policy to streamfine boards and committees across the BBC Group

However, in view of the size and significance of BBC Woridwide, the BBC Executrve Board decided that the composition of the BBC Worldwide Board should
be strengthened to include two addittonal Non-executive Directors

The BBC Executive Board and ts board commitlees have responsibiity for the overall assurance and supervision of BBC Worldwde However, during the
coming months it 1s propesed that the authonty to consider and approve the operatonal matters of the company will be delegated to the BBC Worldwide
Board For further detail on the actiiies of the BBC Executive Board go to www bbe. o uldabouithebbe

As of 31 March 2015, the Board was composed of Tony Hall (BBC Director-General} as Chaiman, Tim Dawe (Cheef Executive and Director, Global), Andrew
Bott (Chief Financal Officer) Anne Bulford (Managing Director, Fnance & Operations for the BBC) and from 16 February 2015, Dharmash Mistry
and Sir Howard Stanger, bath of whom are also Non-executrve Cirectors of the BBC Exacutive Board

Statutory matters, such as the approval of the company’s statutory accounts, the payment of a dwdend and the appointment of a director are already reserved
to the Board of Directors

The Worldwide Executive Committee (WEX) has principal responsibilty for the day-to-day management of the company WEx 1s chaired by Tim Dawe WEx
meets weekly to discuss operational matters impacting the business

Dunng the year matters under review included plans to launch the global genre brands BBC First in Austratia and New Zealand on Foxtel and BBC Bt
and BBC Earth in Poland, and mvestments in The Muskefeers S3 and Docfor Who S10 Addittonally, dunng the year WEx reviewed people policies and

development opporturslies across the company

VWEx approves expenditure of up to £5m, beyond which the matter 1s reviewed by WEx and referred to the BBC Worldwide Board or to the BBC Executive
Board as appropriate for approval This ensures greater scrutiny of performance and hwghlights the needs of the regional businesses to be addressed These
quarterly performance reviews also serve 1o strengthen connections between the regions and Content, Brands and other central funchions

Content 1s central to our strategy and one of our most signfficant areas of expenditure The Content Investment Group (CIG), chaired by the Controller of
Content Investment, 1s responsible for approving investments of distribution and certain broadcast rights CIG also monitors the content pipeline in the context
of performance and strategic development i the business, and recommends changes in global content strategy and execution when necessary CIG
approves nvestments between £500,000 and £2m For investments greater than £2m, CIG reviews and recommends the investments to WEx for approval
WEX also delegates authonty to the Investment Review Group, which considers and approves non-content financial investments between £1m and £2m

Privacy and Information Security

Consumers, talent, partners and employees trust us with their personal mformation and faifure to meet these expectations would lead to a serfous loss of trust
in the BBC brand Our global privacy and information security prograsmmes govern how we collect, use and manage alt forms of personal information across
our operating territones, from collecting nformation in a fair and transparent way to ensunng that this information remains protected and secured at all trmes
This extends to information that does not directly identify an individual but which may mmpact on an individual’s pavacy and there has been a significant amount
of work in thus area i the last 12 months across the organisation

We take our legal and regulatory obiigatrons senously and we have developed clear policies prachices and traming and awareness programmes to ensure the
protection of personal nformation These are regularty reviewed to ensure that we are transparent to mdividuals and prowde clear choice on how we use their
data Qur key focus over the next year will be preparing for the incoming EU General Data Protection Regulabion which is due to be finalised 1n the next six
months As part of our compliance programme, our privacy and data protection functson will be audied this year

In terms of broader information secunty we stnve for contnual mprovement in the protection of our busmess information assets, especially in respect of
content Ensuring that these assets are protected at ali stages of their lifecycle [s vitat (o the success of our business, and that of our contant partners, and {o
maintaining our reputation as a trusted orgarusation with high standards of care  This 3 especially imporlant where we share content with thind parties around
the world and we have developed robust processes for evaluating these nsks and ensunng that these partners have adequate secunty measures i place Qur
progress in this ared s routinely scrutimised by the BBC's Intemal Audit function to ensure we are managing nsk effectively
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Corporate governance report (continued)

Four Commerclal Criterla

The BBC's Royal Charter and Agreement requires all of the BBC's commerncial actvites to comply with the four Commercial Cntena (4CC} Our activties must:
s fit with the BBC's Public Purposes,

= not jeopardise the good reputation of the BBC or the value of the BBC brand,

» extubit commercial efficiency, and

s comply with the BBC Trust's Fair Trading Policy, the BBC's Fair Trading Guidehnes and, n particular, avoid distorting the market

The 4CC approvals framework embedded withn our govemance structure ensures that key projects and investments are subject to rigorous evaluation,
enswing compliance wath each of the 4CC pnor ta launch

The BBC's Faw Trading arrangements {which include the 4CC approvals arrangements) have been accredited with the SO 9001 2008 quality standard BBC's
Fair Trading arrangements are subject to scrutiny by independent auditors commissioned by the BBC Detanls of this year's independent Fair Trading auit,
undertaken by Delaitte, together wath the audit opiruon, are available in the BBC Annual Report and Accounts for 2014/15

Editorial Standards
We are required to comply with the BBC Editorial Guidelines and the Advertising and Sponsorship Guidelines for BBC Commercial Services We have an
editorial framework which sets out clear editonal accountability for each business area and a dedicated Editorral Standards team that offers support and advice

to our businesses During the year we contmued to deliver both onfine and face-to-face traning explaining the editonal commercial and advertising standards
that we expect
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Directors’ report

The Direclors present thetr report and the audited consohdated financial statements of BBC Worldwide Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiary
undertakings (together the “Group”) and the Group's interest in associated undertakings and jont ventures for the year ended 31 March 2015

Principal activitles of the Group

The trading actwties of the Group focus on the acquisition, development, exploitation, icensing and sale of intellectual property Rights are acquired
from BBC Public Service and from independent owners of Intellectual property, and are exploited through a number of businesses, both wholly-owned
and partly-owned through associates and joint ventures, across multtple formats The business is structured across seven geographical regrons these
regions are grouped into four areas UK, North America, Australia and New Zeafand and the rest of the world, pnncipally non-English speaking markets
known collectively as Global Markets The two global business areas Content and Brands set the strategic framework and parameters for activiies
within the regions and keep a close connechon inte BBC Warldwide's ultimate parent, the British Broadcasting Corporation

Strategic Report and Rrsk

A review of business performance, including likely future developments, 1s included in the Strateglc Report on pages 3 to11 The management of the
business and the execution of the Group's strategy are subject to a number of risks The key business risks and uncertainttes affecting the Group are

discussed on page 15
Results and dividends

The consohdated profit for (he year attnbutable to the equity shareholder of the Company was £185 5m (2014 £98 1m)
Dividends of £111 3m (2014 £88 3m) were pad dunng the year

The Directors do not propose any further dividend in respect of the year (2014 £mil), resulting n a total dividend of £111 3m (2014 E58 2m) in respect
of the current financial year and £nit (2074 £30 1m} in respect of the prior year

Acquisitions and disposals

Duning the financial year the Group sold a 49 9% stake in its BBC Amenca channels busiess to AMC Networks Inc ("AMCN®) and, due to the transfer
of control over the key decision-making achvities to AMCN, the Group’s remaiming 50 1% tnvestment in the BBC Amenca channels business was
reclassified as an associated undertaking Further details of this transaction are set out in Note 27 on page 63

Directors

The Directors who served dunng the year and unhl the date of this directors’ report were
Tony Hall (Chairman)

Tim Davie

Anne Bulford

Andrew Bott

Dharmash Mistry {appointed 16 February 2015)

Sir Howard Stringer {appointed 16 February 2015)

Jane Earl resigned from office as Company Secretary on 31 January 2015 Martyn Freeman and Anthony Cornette were appointed as Company
Secretary and Deputy Company Secretary respectively with effect from 1 January 2015

Going concern

After making enguirles, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the business has adeguate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future, and accordingly the going concemn basts continues to be adopted in the preparation of the accounts Further information about
the gaing concem assumphan 1s given in note 1(b) to the consoildated financial statements

Directors’ intarests and indemnities

No Director had any interest in the share capital of the Group at 1 Apri 2014 or 31 March 2015 No nghts to subscnbe for shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other Group company were granted to any of the Directors or their immediate famiiles, or exercised by them, during the financial year
Directors’ and Officers insurance ¢over was in ptace throughout the finangial year as appropnate Additionally, an ndemnity is in ptace for the Group s
nominated Directors on the board of Australlan entities and for BBC Worldwide Limited Directors and Officers in respect of Branch operations in
Australia The nomnated Directors are heid harmiess in relation to legal claims against them in their capacity as Directors and Officers, except in the
event of fraud, dishonesty or wilful default The indemnity covers all hability incurred by nominated Directors and Officers to the fullest extent permitted
by Australian law and 15 intended te offer protection to the nominated Directors and Officers in addition to the cover under the Group's Cirectors’ &

Officers’ insurance policy
Disabled employees

The Group gives full consideration to apphcations for employment from disabled persons where the candidate’s partricular aptitudes and abilties are
consistent with adequately meeting the requirements of the job Opporiurities are available to disabled employees for training, career development and
promotion Where existing employees become disabled, 1 is the Group's policy to provide continuing employment wherever practicable in the same or
an alternative position and to provide appropnate training to achieve this am
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Directors’ report (continued)

Employee involvement

The Company operates a framework for employee information and consultation which complies with the requirements of the Information and
Consuttation of Employees Regulations 2004 Dunng the year, the paolicy of prowiding employees with information gbout the Group has been continued
through the BBC's intranet service, and employees have alse been encouraged to present their suggestions and wiews on the Group's performance
througts staff surveys Regutar meetings are held between local management end employees to allow a free flow of information and ideas Employees
participate directly in the success of the business through simplified bonus arrangements

Statoment as to disclosure of information to auditor
The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there s no relevant audit

information of which the Group's auditor 1s unaware and each Director has taken ail the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group s auditor is aware of that information

Auditors

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 20086, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and Emst & Young LLP wiil therefore continug in
office

By order of the Board,

Martyn Freeman Registored office

Campany Secretary Telewision Centre

9 Jdune 2015 101 Wood Lane
London W12 TFA
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Report on Directors’ remuneration

BBC Wordwde is not funded by the hicence fee but we are keenly aware that, as part of a publicly-funded organmsation, it 1s not appropnate or desirable to
lead the market on pay, and that our remuneralion policy must be both moderate and justifiable

Over the last three years, we have been progressively samplifing our Reward offenng  2014/15 saw the finzl payments under the Profit Share Plan and no
matching payment was due under the Deferred Bonus Plan Both plans are now closed and wall not be replaced Cirectors, senior managers and all other
employees now have very simply structured pay packages with a basic satary and a performance-related bonus that s at ask ff the required results are

not achieved

Wherever possible we use salary survey data to identify the pay range in the market for a particular rode m a particular location We continue to pay at or below
the market median in the UK and no more than 10% above the local markel median elsewhere

As part of the focus on identrdying career paths across the whole BBC, we are working to design a job grading structure that will help us ensure that pay is
comrectly positioned at all levels in BBC Worldwide This work, along with greater alignment between the BBC's commercial operations and public service

broadcasting, forms a key part of aur visicn to create ‘one BBC'

The Sales Compensation Framework, developed with the aim of consistently focusing our sales teams on delivering the best possible retum to the BBC, was
Implemented n 2014/15, paying a bonus to sales staff i proportion to targets achieved We will continue to monstor the scheme, refining it as necessary, to

ensure that 1 is delivering maarmurn value for the BBC

Governance

There were no significant changes to remuneration governance arrangements in 2014/15, with decisions affecting members of the WExX team ang company-
wide reward being taken by the BBC Executive Remuneration Committee Salary decrsions affecting other staff earmng more than £125,000 (or focal
equivalent) per year, and severance payments in excess of £75,000, continue to require approval by the BBC Senior Management Remuneration Committee
The BBC Worldwide Pay Forum, compnsing the Chief Executve Chuef Finanoal Officer and People Director, continues to review other significant pay
decisions

No indwvidual 15 responsible for setting his or her own remuneration
Full detaiis of all the above governance matters can be found in the BBC Annual Report and Accounts

Executive Directors
Thss repert summanses the remuneration of the CEQ and CFQ of BBC Worldwide, who are the sole Executive Directors of BBC Worldwade

Tim Davie was CEQ for the full year Andrew Bott was Intenm CFQ and Executive Director of BBC Worldwade from the start of the year He was appointed to
the role permanently on 4 June 2014, mowving from the USA to the UK cn 1 September 2014

Base salary

Tim Davie’s annual base salary remained unchanged throughout 2014115 Andrew Bott's salary also remaned unchanged dunng the year, though it was paid
n sterling rather than US dollars (converted at GBP1 = USS$ 1 50) after his transfer to the UK on 1 September

Annual incentives

Annual Incentives are provided through the BBC Worldwide Annual Bonus Plan, tin which all staff participate (other than those on sales schemes)
The Plan s a relativety simple design with a ‘Minmum Growth Hurdle' (a threshold level of performance), a Target Performance level (set to be stretchung but,
with substantial effort, achievable), at which Target Bonus 1s payable, and a Maximum Bonus Performance leve! (above which no further bonus 15 payable),

set significantly above Target.

Targel Banus for the CEO and the CFO 15 50% of base pay earmings Bonus for both Executive Directors 1s wholly dependent on the performance of BBC
Worldwide as this 1s deemed to be the most appropriate indicator of therr performance
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Report on Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Components of reward

The followang table summanses the current key fixed and vanable components of reward (exciuding sales incentives) for Executives and employees

ELEMENT PURPOSE & LINK PERFORMANCE OPERATION
TO STRATEGY PERIOD

Base Salary Maintaur a competittve package, at Not applicable Revtewed annually taleng into account the ndustry in
the agreed position for the relevant which BEC Worldwde operates, location, indvidual
local market, recognising indndual performance and respensibilives, and affordability
contnbution and the scope of the role

REWARD FROM CURRENT INCENTIVE PLANS

Annual Incentives Reward achievement of short-term 1 year Bonus, calculsted as a percentage of basa pay eamings,

strategic goals and profit growth

18 payable for achevernerd of profit targets' and, other
than for members of the WEx, an agreed level of personal
performance The percentage vanes by grade (and, at
lower levels, by country, n some cases)

A reduced bonus 1s payable for achuavement below
Target, subject to reaching a threshold leve! of
perfonmance below which no bonus s payable, with
additional borws avalable for achievemnent above Target
For members of the Executive, bonus 1s between 20%
and 70% of base pay eamings, with the top of that range
payable at alevel of profit considered to be achievable
only in exceptional aroumstances

The levels of profit performance attracting threshold,
larget and masarnum bonus are set by the BBC Executive
Remuneration Committee

REWARD FROM DISCONTINUED INCENTIVE PLANS

Profit Share Plan Dnve profit performance and retums 5 years The scheme is now clased Balancing payments (eamed
to BBC Worldwide s shareholder gver dunng 2008-2013, but deferred for two years) wil be
the long-term while promoting the mada in July 2015, after which no further payments will be
retenton of key managsment. made

The Plan will not be replaced by any ather Lang Term
Incentive Plan

BENEFITS?

Pensions Pensions are offered in line Ongoing Pensions are offered in aocordance with the all employee
with normal market practioe pension arrangements.

Life assurance Life assurance 1s offered n lina Ongomg 4x salary for those who join the pension plan,
with normai market practce 2x salary for those who don't.

Private healthcare Prvate healthcare rs offered Ongaing Farmily cover for senior executives, single cover for other
n line with nomnal market practice at ehghble employees.
muddle management level and above

Car allowance With effect from 1 Apnl 2014, BBC - Thosa who were already n receipt of a car allowance
Worldwide removed the car have retaned it Nerther of the Executive Directors
allowance benefit for all new recewves the allowance
Executive Directors and senior
managers, to align with arrangements
for 21 BBC employees.

1 Basert on headiina profit

2 Andrew Bott waa employed on a US contract dunng the period 1 Apni to 31 August 2014 dunng which time he received standard US benefits — medical, dentai hfe accidental death and

dismembermant dependent kfe and short-term disabifity insurances
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Report on Directors’ remuneration (continued)
Long-term Incentives

Proft Share Plan

The Company's Profit Share Plan (PSP), which covered the five-year period beginning in 2008/08, provided participants wath a share In profits above a set of
absolute profit (PAIT, profit after interest and tax) hurdles inked to the five-year strategic plan Annual payments commenced after three years of parbicipation
in the plan, with balancing (1 e deferred) payments made after the end of the five-year pencd For eligible participants, the payments shown on page 22 will be
made after year end in July 2015 These are the second and final of two balancing payments due under the PSP Balanang payments are equal to 50% of the

final, full-year payments
The annual cash PSP pay-out was capped at 100% of base pay for each participant
The PSP will not be replaced by any other Long Term Incentive Plan

Pension

Executive Directors who joined the BBC before 1 December 2010 are eligible to participate in the BBC Pensicn Scheme (the Scheme), which prowdes for
pension benefits on a defined benefit basis Executive Directors who joined the BBC on or after 1 December 2010 are elgible to join LifePlan which 15 the
BBC's defined contnbution arrangement The BBC pays matching cantnbutions to LifePlan for employee contnbutions between 4% and 5% Employee
contributions between 6% and 7% are matched plus an additional 1% Employee contnbutions of 8% or more receive the maxmum employer contnbution of
10% There s no maximum pensicnabile safary for contnbutions to LifePlan

Executive Directors who deaide not to join LifePlan or are not already an existing member of the Scheme are, subject to meeting the relevant cntena,
automatically enrolied into the National Employment Sawings Trust (NEST) The BBC and employees currently pay 1% of qualifimng eamings lo NEST

indwiduals can choose to opt out of this

Executive Directors’ penston arangements may be reviewed and amended in response to changes n legistation or simitar developments
Features of the BEC s pension amangements, inciuding nermal pension age, are prowvided in the table on page 24

Details of the BBC Pension Scheme are available at www bbc co uk/mypenston and details of LifePlan can be found at www friendsiife co uk/microsita/bbe
Tim Davie became an active member of the CAB 2011 section as at 1 January 2012, and retains a deferred pension in the New Benefits section for service up
to that date The information in the lable on page 25 reflects his CAB 2011 benefits but includes the penod before he was appointed as a director

Until 31 August 2014, Andrew Bott was employed on a US contract and participated in the BBC Worldwide Amencas 401(k) Retirement Plan, under the terms
of which employees may, immediately on joining the orgarusation contribute up to 70% of pay, to a maamum of US$17,500 per annum BBC Worldwide
Amencas provides matching contributions equal to 100% of the first 5% of employee contnbuttons Employee contnbutions are always 100% vested 20% of
matching contributions vest each year, becoming fully vested after five years Andrew joined LifePlan on his return to the UK an 1 September 2014 and retains
a deferred pension In the New Benefits section for service before his transfer to the USA in 2006

CHANGES TO CEO REMUNERATION
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Report on Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Scheme ‘Old” Benefits ‘New' Benefits CAB 2006 Defined CAB 2011 Defined LifePlan Defined  National
Defined Benefit  Defined Benefit  Benefit Benefit Contribution Employment
Savings Trust
(Auto Enroiment
Arrangemeny)
Defined
Contribution
Date Closed 30 September 31 October 2006 30 Novermnber 2010 1 January 2012 Open to ali ehgible  QOpen to &ll ebgible
1596 employees employees
Accrual 60" accrual B60™ accrual 1 87% accrual 1 67% accrual 8BC will coninbute  BBC will contribute
a maximyum of 1% of qualfyng
Adjusted in ine Adjusted in line 10% of salary «f eamngs
with inflation with CPI employee
contnbutes 8%
Salary Final pensionable” Fina! pensionable  Career average  Career average mthlalowar sliding
revalued eamings  revalued eamings  5%@
Normal &80 60 65 65 N/A N/A
Pensionable Age
Earnings Cap Date of joining Capped at Capped at Capped at Uncapped Mimmum Eamings
before 1 June £145800 £145,800 £142,200 £5668 p a
1989 uncapped,
capped otherwise Maximum Eamings
£41,450p a
Pensionable salary Limitedat1%pa Lmitedat1%pa Lmitedat1%pa No restrcton N/A N/A
growth before the
Earnings capis
applied
Employee 75% 75% 4% 6% Minmmum 1% of qualifying
contnbution (% of employee earnings
pensionable salary) contnbution 18 4%
Employment contracts

Employment coniracts of Executive Directors recently employed by BBC Waorldwide In the UK have a maxmum notice pencd of soc months Contracts are
subject to earlier termunation for cause In the UK, if temmunation anses through redundancy, Executive Direclors are enbied to one month's pay for each year
of continung senvice, up 1o a maximum of 24 months’ base pay (or 12 months’ base pay for Executive Directors empioyed on or after 1 January 2013) This s
now subject to a cap of £150,000 In total

Outside intorests

Where there 13 no potential for conflict of nterest, and wath the prior agreement of the Chair of BBC Worldwide, Executive Directors may hold one paid external
directorship Remuneration which anses from directorships may be retained by the Executive This policy s to encourage the take-up of extemal Non-
axacutive appointments as part of the Executrve Directors’ development as well as bninging broader business skilts to BBC Worldwide

Cunng the year, no Executive Directors held paid external directorshups
Non-axecutive Directors

The Non-axecutrve Directors of BBC Wondwade dunng the year were Tony Hall, Anne Butford, Dharmash Mistry (from 16 February 2015) and S Howard
Stnnger (from the same date), none of whom received any remuneration in respect of their duties in this capaaty from BBC Worldwide
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Report on Directors’ remuneration (continued)

Remuneration samead in the year ended 31 March 2015

Fee/base Annual PSP Texable Pension- Total Totai Total

pay banus benefits Related 2014-15 2013-14 2013-14

Single (inciucling  (exciuding

Figure Pension- Pension-

Related Related

Single Singla

£'000 Frgure) Figure)
Executive Directors

Tim Dawvie’ 400 201 - 2 k¥4 640 870 633

Andrew Bott? 288 145 29 4 23 489 124 121

688 346 29 6 860 1,129 794 754

Non-Executive Directors - - - - - - - -

Former Executive Directors - - - - - - 252 224

Total 688 348 29 6 60 1,129 1,046 978

1 Tha BBC introduced a salary sacnflce arangament on 1 June 2008 for Ofd and New Benafits members who joned Lhe Pension Scheme before 1 November 2006 and for all Career
Average Banefit members From that date terms and conditions of employment wera changed for thosa employees opling for the salary saciifice arrangement and as a result employee
pension contributions made via the satary sacnfica have been treated as empioyar contributions with a coresponding reduction in salary Tim Davie s base salary has not been adjustad ta
refiect the unpact of the satary sacnfica Hs total salary sacrifice was £8 532 (2013/14 £8,280)

2 Andrew Bolt was an Executive Director of BBC Worldwatte throughout the year but was empiloyed on a US coniract uptil 31 August 2014 The figures in the lable above include his
remuneration up lo and indluding that date converted from US dallars al the rate prevaling at the ume of paymnent togethar with s remuneraton from 1 September 2014 onwards, m

sterling
Penslon entittements

Age as at Section Accruegd Accrued Defined Pension-
31 March pengion pension benaefit related
2015 31 March 1 April contributions single
2015 2014  (via salary figure

£000 sacrifice}
Tim Dawvie 47 CAB 2011 8 5 9 kY

Tim Dawie became en actve member of the CAB 2011 seclion as at 1 January 2012 and retains a delared pension in the New Benafits section for sarvice up to thal date The pensions

shown relate to CAB 2011 only but Include the penod before he was a director

Untd 31 August 2014 Andrew Bott participated i ihe BBC Werldwade Americas 401({k) Retirement Plan He joined LifaPlan on his returm to the UK on 1 September The employer
contributi to these two sch warn EBi and £17k respectively He retains a defared pension in the New Benefits secton for serwice before his transfer to the USA in 2008
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are respansible for prepanng the Annual Report and the Group and parent Company financlal statements m accordance with applicable
law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law they have elected Lo prepare the Group
financial statements in accordance with Intemationa! IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare the Company
financial statements in accordance with LUK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements uniess they are satisfled that they give a true and farr view of the state of
affairs of the Group and parent Company and of their profit or lass for that period In prepanng each of the Group and parent Company financial
statements, the Directors are required to

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

+ make judgements and esbmates that are reasonable and prudent,

« for the Group financral statements, slate whether they have been prepared in accardance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

+ for the parent Company financial statements state whether appircable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explamed in the financial statements, and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concamn basis unless it 13 inappropnate to presume that the Group and the Company will contmue
m business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting recards that are sufficient to show and explain the parent Company’s transactions and
disclase with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position of the parent Company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibillty for taking such steps as are reasonably open to tham to safeguard the assets
of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irreguianties

The Directors are responsibie for the maintenance and integnty of the corparate and financial information included on the Company's website
Legistation i the UK goverming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legistation in other jurisdictions
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Independent Auditor’'s report to the members of BBC Worldwide Limited

We have audited the financial statements of BEC Worldwade Limited for the year ended 31 March 2015 which compnse the Consalidated income
statement, Consolidated statement of comprehensive income, Consalidated balance sheet, Consolidated cash flow slatement and Consohidated
statement of changes in equity the related notes 1 to 36, the Company balance sheet and the related notes ato p The finantial reporting framework
that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial
statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Acsounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body tn accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audt
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpose  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsiility to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opintons we have formed

Respective responsibiities of Directars and auditor

As explaned more fully in the Drrectors’ Responsibiliies Statement set out on page 26, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
finangial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibiiity 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements 1n accordance with applicable law and Intemational Stangards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scopa of the audit of the firancial stataments

An audit mvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or ermor This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the group s and the parent company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In additton, we
read all the financial and non-financial nformation in the Annual Report to identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financiat statements and
to identify any informaton that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally mconsistent with the knowledge acquired by us in the cowse
of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

in our opinion
« the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Company's affairs as at 31 March 2015 and of the Group'’s
profit for the year then ended,
« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
« the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
« the financial statements have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opimion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the (nfarmation given in the Strategic Report and the Directors” Regont for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
Mattors on which we ara required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinton
- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us, or
+ the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retumns, or

« certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made or
» we have not receiwved all the tnformation and explanations we reguire for our audit

Ly dh.

Richard Wilson (Senwor statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

9 June 2015
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2015
Ongeing aat Ongoing [:1:1:3
businsesss ANERICA Totad businsses AMERCA Totd
218 2015 018 Wi 204 04
Note &m &m L on Im m
Headline sates including joint ventures 2 48 1 537 10018 944 5 978 10422
Less Share of revenue of joint ventures (150 5) - (150 5) {150 3) - (150 3)
Ravanug 7978 537 8513 794 2 978 8920
Totat operating costs 3 (728 5) (423) (7708) (719 7) (626) (7823)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 358 - 358 259 - 259
Operating profit 104 9 14 1163 1004 35.2 1366
Analysed as
Headimne profit 2 1272 114 1386 1222 352 157 4
Share of interest and tax of joint ventures and associates 4 94) - (94) @7 - 87
Penson deficit reduchien payment 4 81 - 81) 23 - (23)
Other specific ilems 4 {4 8) - {4 8) (88) - (68)
1049 14 1163 100.4 182 1358
Gains on disposals 27 - 1159 1159 41 - 41
Other gains and losses 8 57 - 57 93) - (8 3)
Finance ncome 9 08 - a8 04 - 04
Finance expense 9 (35 - (35) (46) - (4 6)
Profit before tax 86 5 1273 2238 810 352 126.2
[Profit before tax excluding gawns and losses on dispasals 98 5 114 107 9 86 8 352 1221
Tax charge for the year 10 nmn {26 8) {38 3) (14 3) {138) (28 1)
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholder of the parent
company 5 84 8 1007 185§ %7 214 2981
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2015
Ongoing BRC Ongoing BEC
Busingsans AMERIC A Tots businesses AMERICA Totw
0 nts 015 o 4 o4
&m &m Em Em £m Em
Profit for the year B4 8 1007 1855 767 214 281
Itams that a2re or may be reclassified to profit or logs
Recycling of translation reserves on dispoasal of business - 81 81 - - -
Recognitton and transfer of cash flow hedges (109) - {(109) 164 - 164
Tax on cash flow hedges taken directly to other comprehensive Income 23 - 23 @an - @7
Exchange differences on trans!ation of foreign operations 164 28 192 (15) {5 6) 71)
Other comprehensive incomae for the year 78 89 167 112 (58) 56
Tetal comprefhiensive income for the year attributable to equity
shareholder of the parent company 926 109 6 202.2 879 158 1037

* BBC AMERICA this comprises the results of New Video Channel Amenca LLC (NVCA} up to the date of disposal, together with the Group’s gain on
dispesal {see note 27) Whiist the transaction does not meet the cnterta of a discontinued aperation under IFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Orscontinued Opersations , it s considered to be of sufficent importance as to Justfy the presentation of a separate column for BBC AMERICA i order to
provide a better understanding of the profit and other comprehensive income for the current and the pnor year
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Consolidated balance sheet

as at 3t March 2015

wis M14
Mot Em &m
Non-current assets
Goodwll 12 334 341
Distnbution nghts 13 2028 1701
Other infangible assets 14 278 210
Property, plant and equipment 15 286 169
Intarests in joint ventures and associates 16 148 8 128
Investments 17 131 85
Deferred tax assets 10 42 s
Denvative financial assets 24 29 4
4617 2703
Currant assets
Programme nights and other inventories 18 673 1026
Trade and other recevables 19 367 2 3154
Current tax recevable 2086 127
Denvative financial assets 24 84 95
Cash and cash equivalents 666 451
Assets classified as held for sale 21 30 -
5331 4853
Total assets 9848 7566
Current llabllities
Interest-beanng loans and borowings 23 Q3 07
Trade and other payables 20 405 2 3278
Curren! tax liabilites 46 26
Provisions 22 53 47
Denvative financial liabilities 24 102 11
4256 3367
Non-current labilities
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings 23 1355 987
Trade and other payables 20 08 na
Prowsions 22 19 05
Denvative financial habilities 24 62 20
Deferred tax habilihies 10 192 22
163 6 104 2
Total liabtlities 589 2 4409
Neot assots 4056 3147
Equity
Share capital 25 02 02
Hedging reserve 26 (0 58
Translation reserve 26 121 (132)
Retained eammings 26 3963 3221
405 6 47

Total equity

These consolidated financial statements of BBC Worldwide Limited, registered number 1420028, were approved by the Board of Directars on 8
June 2015 and were signed on its behalf by

=N

Androw Bott
Chief Financtal Officer
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2015
2018 Ma
Note tm Em
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 28 2175 1881
Tax pawd {26 5) {37 6}
181 0 150 5
Cash fiows from investing activitios
Interest received 08 04
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates 16 265 182
Purchases of distribution rights 13 (145 9) (142 2)
Purchases of other intangible assets 14 (117 an
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 15 (20 3) 19
Proceeds on disposal of availabie-for-sale investments - 18
Disposal of operations net of cash disposed 27 64 5 57
Acquisiion of interests n joint ventures and associates 16 16 (04)
Acquisition of investments (54) {26)
Amounts advanced to related parties {01) {0 4)
Repayment by related parties 03 20
(94 9) (107 1)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest pard {33) (4 6)
Drawdown of toans and borrowings B4 255
Egquity diwdends pad 11 (111 3} {83 3)
{78 2) (67 4)
Not Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 179 (24 Q)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 451 747
Foreign exchange translation gainsi{losses) 36 (5 6)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 668 451

Cash and cash equivalents is comprised entirely of cash at banks and on hand
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 March 2015

Share Hedglag  Tramsiation Retsined Total
capital marve reagrve ammings -quity
tm [ £m £ £m
‘Balance a1 1 Aprd 2013 02 (7 1) (61) 3123 2993
Profit for the year - - - ag8 1 98 1
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges - 164 - - 164
Tax on items taken directly to equity - {37 - - @3n
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - W ), - {7 1)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 127 r1) 0B 1 1037
Dridends paid (Note 11} - - - (883) (88 3)
Balanca at 31 March 2014 02 56 {132) 3221 3147
Profit for the year - - - 1855 1855
Recycling of translation reserves on disposal - - 61 - 61
Recognition and transfer of cash flow hedges - (109} - {109)
Tax on items taken cirectly to equity - 23 - - 23
Exchange differences on tranglation of foreign operations - - 19 2 - 19 2
Total comprehensive Income for the yaar - (8 8) 253 1855 2022
Dwidends paid (Note 11) - - - (113 (1113
Balance at 31 March 2015 02 {30) 121 3963 4056
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Principal accounting policies

BBC Worldwide Limited (the "Company”} s a company domiciled and incorporated in the United Kingdom, and its registered address 1s Televigion
Centre 101 Wood Lane, Londorr W12 7FA The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015 compnse the
Company and ts subswhary undertakings (tegether the “Group”) and the Group's interest In joint ventures and associated undertakings

These financtal statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the pnmary economic environment in which the Group
operates Foreygn operations are included in accordance wath the policies set cut below

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union (the EU), the Companies Act 2008 and Article 4 of the EU International Accounting Standards Regulatona

The financial statements are principally prepared on the histornical cost basis Areas where alternative bases of accounting are appiled are identfied n
the accounting policies below

The BEC AMERICA column included in the Income statement and the relevant notes compnses the results of NVCA up to the date of disposal,
together with the Group's gam on disposal (see nate 27) Whilst the transaction does not meet the cntena of a discontinued operation under IFRS 5
MNon-Current Assets Held for Sale end Discontinued Operations , it is considered to be of sufficient importance as to justify the presentation of
separate column for BBC AMERICA in order to provide a better understanding of the profit and other comprehensive mcame for the current and the

pnor year

{b) Going concern

The Board remains satisfied with the Group s funding and hiquidity position The disclosures on page 19 In the Directors’ Report in respect of going
concern form par of the audited accounts

As at 31 March 2015, the main source of debt funding was an unsecured credit factity with BBC Cammercial Holdings Limited (BBCCH) expiring in
September 2016 Further information in respect of this facility is included in note 23

On the basts of its forecasts both base case and adjusted, and having regard to available and anbcipated financing facilities, the Board has con-
cluded that the going concem basis of preparation continues to be appropriate Further information in respect of hquidity nsk 1s included in note 33

{c) Basis of consgolidation
i Subsrdianes

The consoiidated financial statements incorporate the flnancia! statements of the Company and entities conirelled by the Company {and its
subsidianes) made up to 31 March each year Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operaing policies of
an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities

The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of duning the year are included 1n the consoiidated income statement from the effective date of
acquisitron or up to the effective date of disposal as appropnate Where necessary adjustments are made fo the finantial statements of subsidianes
to bring the accounting pokcies used into ine with thase of the Group Al intra-group transactions, balances, Income and expenses are ehminated on
consolidation

Nan-contrailing interests in subsidianies are identfied separately from the Group's equity therein The interests of non-controlling shareholders are
inibalty measured at their proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identiflable net assets Subsequent to acquisition, the carmying amount
of non-controlling interests 1s increased or decreased in propartion to the non~controlling interests’ share of any subsequent changes in equity

Changes n the Group's interests in subsidianes that do not resuit in a loss of controt are accounted for as equity transactions The carryfng amounts
of non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect any changes in ther, and the Group's, relative interests in the subsidiaries  Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controiling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideralion paid or received 1s recognised directly in equity
and attributed to the owners of the Company

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (1) the aggregate of the falr value
of the conswderation receved and the fair value of any retamed interest (net of disposal costs), and (11} the previous carrying amount of the net assets
of the subsidiary (Including attnbutable goodwail) and any non-controlling interests Amounts previausly recegnised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are reclassified to the income statement or transferred drectly to retained eamings as appropriate The fair vaiue of any
intarest retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control 1s lost 13 regarded as the cost on initral recognition of an investment in a joint
venture or associate
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1 Principal accounting policies (continued)

{c) Basis of consolidation (continued)
it Joint ventures and assocmates

A |oinl venture 15 a type of joint amangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have nights to the net assets of the jont
venture Jont control 1s the contractually agreed shanng of control of an amangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activibes
require unarmmous consent of the parties shanng control An associate 1s an entity aver which the Group has significant influence  Significant
influence 15 the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but 18 not control or joint control over those policies

The results and assets and habilities of joint veniures and associates are Incorporated into these financial statements using the equity method of
accounting, except when the investment 13 classifled as held for sale, in which case it 1s accounted for in accardance with IFRS 5 Non-cument Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

Under the equity method, investments m associates are carned in the consolidated balance sheet at cost, adjusted for post-scquisition changes in the
Group's share of the net assets of the joint venture or associate, less any impairment in the value of indiwdual investments

Where the Group's share of losses exceeds the carmying amount of the joint venture or associate, the camying amount is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses Is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the jeint venture or associate

Where a group entity transacts with a jornt venture or assoctate of the Group, unreakised profits and losses are eiminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the relevant joint venture or associate

The Group accounts forits share of the results and net assets of nis joint ventures and associates using information as of 31 March wath the exception
of Children’s Character Beoks Limited, Woodlands Books Limited, Educational Publishers LLP and JV Programmes LLC which have been included
using information from unaudited accounts drawn up to 31 December The impact of these non-coterminous year ends 18 nol considered matenal

{dy Adoption of now and rovised standards

Af the beginning of the current period, the Group adopted the followang accounting pronouncements, none of which had a significant impact on its
results or financial position

* IFRS 10 (2011) Consofidated financial staterments

* IFRS 11 (2011) Joint arrangerments

« IFRS 12 (2011) Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

« IAS 27 (2011) Separate Financia! Statements (Revised)

+ |AS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Jont Vantures (Revised)

«  Amendment to IAS 32 (2011} Financial Instruments Presentation

= Amendment to IAS 36 (2013) impament of Assets

+  Amendment to |IAS 39 (2013) Financeal Instruments Recognidion and Measurement
= [IFRIC 21 (May 2013) Levies

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not baen apphed in these financial
statements were in 1ssue but not yet effective (and 1n some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU)

»  Amendments resuling from Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle (2013) (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 July 2014)

*  Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle {2013) (effective for perlods commencing on or after 1 July 2014)

+ Amendments to |AS 19 (2013) Employee Benefits (effective for penods commencaing on or afler 1 July 2014)

» Amendmenis to IFRS 7 (2011 and 2013) Financial instruments Disciosures { effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2015)
+ IFRS 14 (2014) Reguifatory Deferral Accounts (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

+  Amendmenls to IFRS 10 (2014) Consoldated Financial Statements (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

+ Amendments to IFRS 11 (2014) Jomt Armangements (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

+  Amendments o IFRS 12 (2014) Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2016}

+ Amendments to IAS 1 (2014) Fresentatron of Financial Statements (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2018)

« Amendments o [AS 16 (2014) Property. Plant and Equipment (effeclive for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

+ Amendmenits lo IAS 19 (2014) Employee Benefits (effective for perlods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

*  Amendments to IAS 27 (2014) Separate Financial Statements { effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

+  Amendments to IAS 28 (2014) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for pencds commencaing on or afler 1 January 2016)
+ Amendments to IAS 38 (2014} Intangible Assets (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

» Amendments to IAS 41 (2014) Agnculture (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

+  Amendments resulting from Annual Improvemnents 2014 Cycle (2014} (effective for peniods commencing on or after 1 January 2016)

+ IFRS 15 (2014) Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2017)

= IFRS 9 (2014) Finangial Instruments Classification end Measurement (effective for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2018)

= |AS 38 (2013) Financial Instruments Recogmtion and Measurement (effective from date of application of [FRS 8)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

1. Principal accounting policies (continued)

(d) Adoption of new and revised standards (continusd)

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the standards listed above will have a matenal impact on the finanoal statements of the Group in
future periods, except as follows

» {FRS 9wl mpact both the measurement and disclosures of Finanoial mstruments, and replaces the existing IAS 39 {2013) Financraf
instruments Recogniion and Measurement,
+ IFRS 15 willimpact revenue recogrition n particular royalty based income

Beyond the information above, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of these standards untl a detailed review has been
completed

{6} Non-statutory financia! performance measures

The Group believes that 'Headline sales' and ‘Headline profit' are addiional non-statutory measures of financial performance that provide further
gudance to help understand the performance of the business on a comparable basis year on year

Headline sales includes the Group's share of the revenues of its joint ventures, which are closely monitored by the Directors Headline profit excludes
significant items affecting aperating profit (termed “specific items™) which In the Directors’ judgement enable a more complete understanding of the
Group's financial performance Specific items are identified separately by wirtue of their size, nature or incidence

Specific items are not defined under IFRS and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies |tems which have been
highlighted far consideration include the impaimment of goodwill, the Group's share of the interast and tax of joint ventures and associates, and other
non-routine items which help to facilitate a consistent view of the Group's results

The Group also digcloses profit before tax excluding gains and losses on disposals This measure reflects the overall profitabiity of the group on a
statutory basis, before taking into account business disposals

(N Business combinstions

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method The cost of each acquisiton (3 measured at the
aggregate of the fair values {al the date of exchange) of assets given and liabilities incurred or assumed In exchange for control of the acquiree
Acguisihion related costs are recogmsed in the income statement as incurred

Where apphcable, the consideration for the acquisitton includes contingent consideration, measured at its acquisibon-date farr value Subsequent
changes In the fair value of contingent consideration are recorded in the income statement

Where a business combination 1s achieved in stages {i e where the Group acquires an entity which was previously a joint venture, assoctate or held-
for-sate Investment) the Group remeasures its pre-existing interest in the antity to fair value at the acquisition date (| e the date the Group attaing
control) The resulting galn or loss, if any, 13 recognised in the income statement Amounts previously recognised ¢ other comprehensive income in
respect of the entity, prior to the acguisition date, are elsa reclassified to the income statement where required

The acquired entity's identifiable assets, liatvlitles and contingent liabllitles that meet the condittons for recegnition under IFRS 3 (2008) Businass
Combinations are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except that assets {or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale are
measured m accordance with IFRS 5 Non-cumrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

{g} Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if thair carrying amount wall be recovered prnincipally through sale rather than
continuing use, they are available for immediate sale in their present condition and a sale 18 highly probable Management must be cammitied to the
sale which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification

When the Group 1s committed to a sale ptan invohang loss of control of a subssdiary, all of the assets and habilibes of that subsidiary are classified as
held for sale when the cntena described above are met, regardless of whather the Group will rataln a nen-cantrolling interest in Its former subsidiary
after the sale

Once classified as held for sale, non-current assets and disposal groups are measured at the lower of cammying amount and fair value less costs to
sell No amortisation or depreciation 1s changed an non-current assets (including those in dispesal groups) classified as held for sale
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(h) Goodwlli
Goodwll ansing on acquisition (except pnor to 1 April 2007) is recogrised as an asset at the date that control 1s acquired (the 'acquisiion date’)

Goodwill 1s measured as the difference between (1) the consideration paid, the fair value of any interest held in the acquiree pror to acquisition, and
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, and (i) the farr value of the ldentifiable assets acquired and habiities assumed at the acquisition date

Goodwill ts not amorhised but 1s reviewed for impairment at least annually For the purpose of impairment tesiing, goodwall 1s allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination Cash-generating units to which goodwll has been aliocated
are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there 15 an indication that the unit may be impaired Testing for impairment nvolves a
companson of camying amount of the cash-generating urit with its recoverable amount, being the higher of its value in use or fair value less costs to

sell

Where impairment testing indicates that the cammying amount of a cash-generating unrt exceeds s recoverable amount, the unit 1s wntten down ta the
recoverable amount An impairment loss 1s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwall allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit Anumparrment loss recogrised for goodwill 1s not reversed in

a subsequent penod
On disposal of a subsidiary, the attnbutable amount of goodwall 15 included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal

{i) Revenue recognition

Revenue 15 measured at the far value of the censideration recerved or receivable and represents amounts recewable for goods and serices provided
in the normal course of business, net of discounts, returns, VAT and other sales-refated taxes Revenus Is recogmised when the sigmficant transfer of
risks and rewards has occurred

The Group's mam sources of revenue and its pohcies for the recognitson of such revenue are summansed as follows

= Licence fees are eamed by the Group from programme content and programme formats Cnce a contract has been signed, hcence fees are
recogrised on the later of the start of the licence penod or when the associated programme is available for delivery

= Subscrphion fees from the broadcast of the Group's channels on pay telewision platforms, and from subscriptions to print and onfine publications
and senvices, are recogmsed as eamed, pro rata over the subscription penod

= Advertising revenue generated by the regional Channels operations and from websites are recognised on transmission or publication of the
advertisement

+ Producton fees and participation royalties eamed by the Group are recognised as eamed Production fees are recogmsed on delivery of the
programme or on a stage of completon basis, depending on the nature of the contract with the customer Royaities are recognised on receipt or
on an aceruals basis where sufficient reliable information 1s avallable

+ Revenue generated from the sale of physical and digital products through regional consumer products operations 13 recogrused at the time of
delivery Revenue from the sale of goods 1s stated net of deductions for actual and expected retums based on management judgement and
tustoncal expenence

(i Foreign currencies

The individual results and financial position of each group company are presented in the currency of the pnmary economic enviranment in which the
company operates (its functional currency) For the purpose of the consolidated financiat statements, the results and financial pesition of each group
company are expressed i pounds stering which 1s the funchional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the apphcable functional cumrency of each entity of the Group at a monthly average exchange
rate Monetary assets and liabdities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling on that date Foreign
exchange differences which anse on translation are recogrised in the income statement

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and labilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated at exchange
rates prevading on the balance sheet date (the ‘closing rate’} Income and expense items are translated at the weighted average rates for the year
Exchange differences ansing on the retranslation of the opening net assets and income and expense for the year to the cosing rate are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropnate)

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences mn respect of that operation recogrised in equity are reclassified to the
income statement and included in the catculation of the gain or loss on sale

Goodwll and farr value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and habilihes of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate, as descnbed above
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(k) Rotiremont benefit costs
Contributions to defined cantribution pension schemes are charged to the Income statement as they fall due

Emplayees of the Group also participate in defined benefit schemes operated by the Group’s uttimate parent, the Brtish Broadcasting Corporation
{the "BBC"} The defined benefit schemes provide benefils based on pensionable pay The assets of the BBC's main pension scheme, the BBC
Pension Scheme, are held separately from those of the BBC Group

The defined benefit schemes provide benefits based on pensionable pay The assets of the BBC's Penston Scheme, to which the majarity of
employees belong, are held separately from those of the BBC Group The BBC Pension Scheme 1s a Group wide scheme and there 1s no contractual
agreement or stated policy for charging the net defined benefit cost to scheme participants  The contnbution rates are set by the pension scheme
trustees based on valuations which take a longer-term visw of the assets required to fund the scheme’s habiites Valuabons of the scheme are
performed by Towers Watson, consulting actuanes, with formal valuations undertaken at least every three years Therefore as required by IAS 19
Employee Benefits BBC Worldwide accounts for the contributions payable to the scheme for the year

(I} Cther employoe banafits

The Group cperates a number of incentive schemes, including the former long term incentive scheme whereby senior executives received a
proportlon of their remuneratien in the form of a share of the Group's profits, which vested over a number of years Where settlement of such
amounts Is contingent on continued service to the Group, the cost of the arrangement is expensed on a straight-ine basis over the sernce penod
Where no service conditions exst, the cost of the scheme 1s incurred over the penod in which it i1s earmed

{m) Taxation

The Group's llabiiity for current tax 15 based on taxable profit for the year, and is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the mcome statement because it excludes tems of income or
expenditure which are not taxable or deductible or which are taxable or deductble in other years

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverabie in future periods and ts recognised using the balance sheet liabiity method This
method pravides for tempaorary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and hiabilibes i the balance sheet and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit Temporary differences ansing from goodwill and the iitial recognition of assets or habilibes that affect
nesther accounting profit nor taxable profit are not prowided for

Deferred tax liabllities are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidianes, joint ventures and associates except
where the Group I1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probabie that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future

The carrying value of deferred tax assels 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the axtent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

The amaunt of deferred tax provided 1s based on the manner in which tax 1s expected to anse and using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the income statement, except where it relates to items
recorded wathin other comprehensive income, in which case the defarred tax 1s also recorded within other comprehensive Income

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable right to such offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authonty and the Group intends to settle on a net basis

(n) Distribution rights
Distribution rights represent rights to programmes and associated intellectual property acquired with the prmary intention of exploiting the rights
commercially as pan of the Group s lang-term operations

Distnbution nghts acquired by the Group are either purchased, generated internzlly or licensed followang the payment of an advance on royalties
Where the Group controls the respective assets and the nsks and rewards attached to them, nghts are intially recogrised at acquisition cost or
production cost The carmying amount is stated at cost less accumnulated amortisation and provision for imparment

Amortisatron of distribution rights is charged to the income statement to match the average revenue profile of the programme genre over its estimated
average marketabie lfe The expected lives of distribution nghts range from one to ten years in the case of royalty advances amaortisetion 18 charged
as the advances are recouped

Where the camying value of any individual set of nghts exceeds management's best estimate of future exploitation revenues, a provision for
impairment 15 recorded 1n the income statement immediately

For self-produced content, distnbution nghts exchide co-production costs borme by third paries These costs are deferred wathin current assets and
expensed upon recogmtion of the associated production income  Production tncome 15 recognised in accordance with the Group's revenue

recognition policies
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{o) Other intangible assots
1 Acquired mtangibles

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business acquisition are capitalised at fair value at the date of acquisitton The fair value of such mntangthle
assels is valued by reference to external market vatues or income-based methods Income-based methods estimate the future econormic benefits to
be denved from ownership of the asset by identifying, quantifying and separating cash flows attnbutable to the asset and capitalising their present
value Purchased mtangible assets acquired separately are capitaised at cost After inibial recogrition, all intangible fixed assets are measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any acaumulated mparrment losses

#  internally-generated intangtble assets development expenditure

An mternally-generated intangible asset ansing from the Group'’s development, including software and website davelopment, 1s recognised when the
asset s technically and commercially feasible, sufficient resources exist to complete the development and it s probable that the asset will generate
future economic benefits Any expenditure on research or development actties that does not meet the aferementtonad critena 1s recogrused as an
expense in the penod in which it is incurred

w  Amortisahon

Intangible assets with finte lives are amortised over their useful ives using the straight-ine method Amortisation expense s recorded within total
operating costs in the income statement The useful kives used for Intangible assets are as follows

= Carrier agreements Unexpired term of agreement
« Software (including intemally-generated software) 1-5 years
* Other 3-8 years

Usefu! lives are reviewed every year and adjustments are made, where applicable, on a prospective basis

(p) Property, plant and equipment ("PPE")

Owned PPE 13 stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, cther than those items that are classified as
held for sale

Freehold land 18 not depreciated Depreciation is charged on other PPE so as to wnte off the cost of assets to their residual value, over their expected
useful ives, using the straight-ine method When an item of PPE comprses major components hawing different useful economic lives, the
components are accounted for as separate items of PPE Depreciation commences from the date when the asset 18 available for use

The useful ives for depreciation purposes for the prnncipal categones of assets are

= Short leasehold buddings Unexpired lease term
» Plant and machinery 3o 8years
+ Fidures and fitings 3107 years

Assets held under finances leases are (reated as PPE and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or their useful economic {ife
The Group capitalises borrowing costs with respect to amounts incurred duning the construchon of qualifying property, plant and equipment
{q) Impairment of tangible and Intangible assets excluding goodwlll

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the camying amounts of its tangible and mtangible assets (including distribution nghts) to determtne
whether there 1$ any indication that those asseta have suffered an imparment loss !f such inchcation exists, an impairment loss 18 recognised in the
income statement for the amount by which an asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount Where an asset does not generate cash
fiows that are independent of other assets the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating urit to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount 1 caiculated as the higher of an asset's value in use and its fair value less costs to sell Value in use 1s based on estimated
future cash flows discounted to ther present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the nsks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have nol been adjusted

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash generating unuts are allocated first to reduce the carying amount of goodwill aliocated to those units
and any balance to reduce the carrying amount of other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis An imparment loss I8 reversed if there has been a

change in the estimates used to determme the recoverable amount An impairment loss s reversed only to the extent that an asset's carmying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised
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{(n Programme rights and other Inventones

Programme nghts in this context refers to programme nghts acquired for the pnmary purpose of broadcastng through the regionaf channeis
operations The camying amount is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and prowision for mparment The Group's esbmate of the benefits
received from these nghts 1s determined to be most appropnately aligned with a straight-line amortisation profile for the majonty of the programme
inventory held The cost s recogrused in the income statement on a straight-line basts over the penod of the hicence, which is usually three years

Programmes in the course of production represent the costs incurred by the Group on the creation of new content where such costs will be recovered
from third parties Costs are ordinarily recovered through co-production agreements or through contracts for the prowvision of production services
Costs borne by the Group with a view to exploiting the resulting content through licensing agreements are presented within Distnbution rights

Other inventones, compnsing CDs, DVDs, raw matenals and work in progress, are stated at the lower of cost (determmned on a {irst-in-first-out basis)
and net reallsable value

(s) Financial instrumants

Financial assets and financial liabliitles are recogrised in the Consolidated balance sheet when tha Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the mstrument

Financial assets and habilities are initlally measured at fair value less any directly attnbutable transaction costs, except for those financial assets
classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are inially measured at fair value

Financial assets are derecognised from the balance sheet when the Group's contractual rights to the cash flows expire or the Group tranafers
substantally all the risks and rewards of the financial asset Financial habilities are derecognised from the Group's balance sheet when the obligaton
specfied in the contract 1s discharged, cancelled or exprres

1 Classfication and Measurement
Financial assets and llabilites are classified into the following categones specified by IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recogrution and Measurement

+ Loans and receivables - trade recervables, loans and other receivabies wath fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted n an active
market These are measured at amortised cost usmg the effective interest method, less any impairment Interest mcome 13 recogrised by
applymng the effecive interest rate, except for short-term recevables when the recogrition of interest would be inmatenal

= Available for sale financial assets - isted and uniisted shares stated at farr value that are either traded in an achive market or for wihich a fair
value can otherwise be reliably measured Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised \n other comprehensive income
with the exceplion of impairment losses, interest calculated using the effective interest method and foregn exchange gains and losses on
monetary assets, which are recogrused directly in the income statement

= Held to matunty investments - the Group does not currently carry any financial instruments classified as held to maturty Such instruments might
include bills of exchange and debentures with fixed or determinable payments and fixed matunty dates and would be measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less any impairment

* Financial assets/latihitles at fair value through profit or foss ("FVTPL") - assets and lialiies which are held for trading An asset or hability 1s
classified as held for trading if () it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or {ii} on initial
recognition it ts a parl of a portfohio of dentified financial mstruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actuat pattem of short-
term profit-taking, or () it 1s a dervabive that 1s not designated and effective as a hedging instrument Financial assets and Habilities at FVTPL
are stated at fair value, with any gains and losses ansing on remeasurement recognised in the income statement

» Other financial habilities - financial habilities, including trade payables and borrowings, which are not classified as financial liabiibes at FVTPL )
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recogmsed on an effective yield basis

n  Effective intersst method

The effective interest method 18 a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument or financial ability and of allocating interest income
of expense over the relevant peniod The effective mterest rate 1s the rate that exaclly discounts estimated future cash flows over the expected hife of
the instrument to the net carrylng amount on rbial recognition X

w  Impairment of financial assets

Financial assefs other than those held at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date Financial assels are
impaired where there is objective ewmdence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recogmition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected

For certain categones of financial assets, such as trade recewvables, assets that are assessed not to be impared individually are, in addition
assessed for impairment on a collactive basis Objective ewndence of impairment of a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments or an increase tn the number of delayed payments

The carrying amount of a financial asset 1s reduced directly by any impairment loss, for afl financial assets except trade receivables where the

carmyng amount 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account When a trade recewvable 13 considered uncollectible, it 1s wntten off against the

gllowance account Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the alfowance account Changes in the camying

amount of the allowance account are recogrised in the Consolidated income statement |
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(s) Financial instruments {continued)
w~  Denvabve financial instruments

The Group enters into a vanety of denvative financial Instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange nsk, including foreign
exchange forward contracts and interest rate swaps

Derivatives are initlally recogrised at fair value at the date a denvative contract 1s entered into, and are subsequently remeasured to therr fair value at
each subsequent balance sheet date Changes in fair value are recogmsed immediately in the Consolidated mcome statement, except where a
denvative 1s designated in an effective hedging relationship, as descnbed below

A denvative with a positive fair value 1s recognised as a financial asset whereas a denvative with a negative fair value 15 recognised as a financtal
fiabiity Derivatives are presented as non-current assets or Uabilities if the date of maturity of the instrument 1s more than twelve months after the
balance sheet dale Other denvativas are presented as current assets or current habilities

v Embedded Dernvatives

Derivatives which are embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their nsks and
charactenstics are not closely related to those of the haost contracts, and the host contracts are not camed at fair value Embedded denvatives are
carried in the Consolidated balance sheet at fair value from inception of the host contract Unreahsed changes in fair value are recognised as gains or
losses within the Consohdated income statement duning the period in which they anse

vi  Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain dervatives as cash flow hedges by documenting the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item
aiong with the risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions Where the hedge 13 deemed to have been
effective, the effective portion of any changes m the fair value of the derivatives that are designated in the hedge are recognised in other
comprehensive iIncome Any ineffective portion 18 recognised immediately in the Consolidated income statement

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated 1in equity are reclassified to the Consolidated income statement in
the penods in which the hedged tems are recognised in the Consolidated income statement, in the same ine of the Consolidated income statement
as the recognised hedged item However when the forecast transaction that 1s hedged results tn the recognition of a non-financiai asset or a non-
financial liability, the gans and ivsses previously accumulated in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost
of the nen-financial asset or non-financial liabibty

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the Group de-designates the hedging refationstup, when the hedging nstrument expires or 1s sold,
terminated, or exercised, or when the relattonship no longer qualifies for hedge accounting Any gain or loss recognised m other comprehensive
income upon discontinuation of hedge accounting 1s erither recogrised in the Consolidated income statement at the same time as the forecast
transaction affects profit or loss, or 1s recogmsed in the Consolidated income staternent immediately If the forecast transaction is no longer expected

to occur

(t} Provisions

A prowision 1s recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obiigahion arising from past events and it Is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obiigation Prowvtsions, other than those for deferred tax, that are payable
over a number of years are discounted to net preseni value at the balance sheet date using a discount rate appropriate to the parhcutar provision

concemed

(u)} Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease are such that the lessee assumes substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assels held under finance leases are capitalised and depreciation is charged accordingly Such assets are tnitially recogrused at their fawr vafue or, if
lower, at the present vaiue of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease The corresponding llability to the lessor is recorded as a finance
lease obligation Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reductions of the lease obligation so as to achleve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the hability

Lease income or expense ansing from operating leases 18 recorded in the mcome statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, with
any assoclated lease incenbves being recorded on a straight-ine basis over the lease term as a reducbion in the rental income or expense
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{v) Critical accounting estimates and key judgements ‘

The preparatton of financial statements in conformuty with IFRS requires the use of certain cntical accounting assumptions, and requires management
to exercise iis judgement and to make estimates in the process of applying the Group's accounttng policies The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complesxty, or areas where assumptions and eshmates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed below

1 Basis of consolidation

Judgement 1s required m determining whether certain entibes in which the Group has an economic interest should be considered to be subsidianes,
associates or joint ventures In such crcumstances, the Group has assessed its ability to control or mfluence those entities The Group controls an
investee If, and only if, the Group has power over the investee (i e existing rights that give it the current abiiity to direct the relevant activities of the
Investee), exposure, or nghts to vanable retums from ds invotvement with the investee, and the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its
returns Where such palicies are reserved such that an economic partner has the power 1o velo key strategic financal and operating decisions, the
entity 1s considered to be a joint venture or associated undertaking

i Carmying value of goodwill

The deterrunation of whether goodwill 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value [n use of the cash-generating units to which goodwll has been
allocated The value in use calcufation requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected 1o arise from the cash-generating unut and a
suitable discount rate that reflects cument market assessments of the risks specific to the asset and the time valus of money, in order to calculate
present value Further mformation about assumptions used In determining the carrying value of goodwill can be found in note 12

w  Revenue recognition

The timing of revenue recognihion requires judgement, as does the amount to be recognised This may involve estimating the farr value of
considerahon before 1t 13 received In making these judgements, the Group considers the detailed criteria for the recognition of revenue set out in
IAS 18 Revenue and, in particular, whether the Group has transferred the significant nsks and rewards of the goods or services to the customer

v Distnbution nghts snd programme nghts

The assessment of the appropnate profile over which to recognise the amortisation of distribution nghts and programme rights involves a certain
degree of Judgement Amorhsation 1s charged to the income statement to match the average revenue profile of the programme genre over its

estimated average marketable life

v Far value of financial instruments

Certain financial instruments are carned on the balance sheet at far value, with changes in farr value reflected in the income statement Fair values
are estmated by reference in part to published price quotations and in part by using valuation technigues Further information about fair vatue

measurements is provided in note 33

vi  Accounting treatment and valuation of NVCA as an asscciate

As described in note 27, in October 2014 the Group sold a 49 9% interest 1n its former subsidiary NVCA tc AMCN Despite the BEC Worldwide
residual 50 1% shareholding in NVCA, AMCN obtained control over the key decision-making activities of NVCA NVCA has therefore been
deconschdated from the date of disposal and due to the significant influence retained by the Group, NVCA has been equity accounted as an
associate from that same date The carrying value inihally ascribed to NVVCA as an associate was based on the Board's assessment of the fair value
of NVCA at the date of disposal taking mto accoun! the proceeds receved for the sale of the controlling interest the significant mfluence retained by
the Group, and the retained nght to vanable retums from the investment in NVCA As disclosed in note 27, the iniial fair value recogused for NVCA
as an associate generated an £89 2m upift over the book value of the net assets retained, which has been recognised as part of the gain on disposal
The carrying value of NVCA at 31 March 2015, mcluding the Group's share of equity eamings arising since NVCA's reclassification as an associate,
1S a key judgement area for the Board, to ensure that there are no mdicators of imparment in the vatue of NVCA that might require 2 wnte-down of

the Group’s investment
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2.  Segment information

Whilst not required by IFRS 8 Operating Segments to present segmental information, such information has been prowided below as 1t 1s considered
meaningful to the users of the accounts

An operzating segment 18 a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses The results
of all operating segments are rewewed regularly by the BEBC Woridwide Board (the 'Board’) which has been identified as the Group's chief operating
decision maker in accordance with IFRS 8 Operating Segments

With effect from 1 March 2013, the Group changed from diwisional to geographical reporting lines across seven regions, balanced by strong glabat
functions for content and brands Each geographical region 1s responsible for business development and delivering sales and profit growth across all
activities in the area

Management has determined the reportable segments based upon reporis reviewed by the Board All segments reported meet the quantitative
thresholds required by IFRS 8 The reportable segments are

»  United Kingdom

«  North Amenca

+  Australa and Mew Zealand
*  Westem Europe

*  Rest of World

Segment information as presenfed 18 consistent with the Group's internal reporting to the Board

The Board assesses the performance of reportable segments based on Headline sales and Headline profit as defined in note 1 Inter-segment sales are
conducted on an arm's length basis Specific tems non-trading gains and losses, and net financing ¢osts are not allocated to segments

Information regarding the assets and habiities of reportable segments 1s not reported to the Board

Australls and Weztern

Unstad ngdom North Amarica Naw Zeaiand £urope Rext of World Elmmnations Totel
215 [ £m [ £m Em £m £m
Headline salas 3618 2999 819 160 1 116 2 {181) 10018
Share of revenue of joint ventures {148 9) (0 8) (0 8) - - - {150 5)
Revenue 212.9 299 4 8114 160 % 116 2 18 1) 8513
Hoadline profit 527 329 163 270 52 45 1386
Specific tems (22 3)
Operating profit 1163
Gans on disposals 1158
Other gains and igsses 57
Finance ncome 08
Finance expense {3 5)
Profit bafore tax 223 8

Austrwtly snd Westam

United Kingdom North America Mew Zesisnd Europa Rest of Workd ERminstions Toul
014 £m £m im £m £m £m £m
Headline salas 362.2 3425 760 156 2 122.9 {17.5) 1,042.3
Share of revenue of joint ventures {146 1) {3 0) (12} - - - (150 3)
Reovanue 2161 3385 748 156 2 1229 (17 5) 8920
Headline profit/(loss) * 56 2 441 133 43 98 (0 3} 1574
Specific items (21 8}
Operating profit 1356
Gains on disposals 41
Other gaing and losses (93
Finance income 04
Finance expense (4 6)
Profit before tax 126 2

* The regionat analysis of headline profit for 2014 has been restated to reflect the rewised basis of aliocation of content charge with effect
from 2015, for management reporting to the Board

The allocatian of revenue to geographic segments 13 based upon the business regian in which the sales are generated
inter-reglonal revenues are eliminated upon consolidation and are reflected in the *Eliminatons’ column above
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2. Segment information (continued)

Whilst, as noted above, the Board now manages the group by region rather than by business classification, the additiona! data set out below presents
the headline sales by business classification in order to prowvide an understanding of the size of each of the major business types

Sales and Procucton & Cousurner
Channala Distribution Forinats Products Other Efindnsilons Totel
2018 £m £m £m Em £m m £m
Headline sales 3569 Mus3 1616 124 4 673 537) 1,001 8
Share of revenue of joint ventures {143 9) (0 7) - {0 1) (58 - (150 &)
Revenue 2130 3448 1616 124.3 613 (33 7) 8513
Sales and Produchon & Consurmer
Channels Distribution Formats Products Other Elrmnations Totad
2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Headline sales 3993 336 1559 1461 598 (83 4} 1,0423
Share of revenue of jomnt ventures (139 2) (2 7) {0 3) (8 1) - {150 3)
Revenue 260 1 3319 1559 1458 517 (53 4} 8920

Inter-segrment revenues are ellminated upon consoldation and are reflected in the ‘Eliminations’ column above

The Group's geographical reportable segments reflact management reporting lines and do not solely correspond to the country or region afler which they
are named The Group's revenue by country of destination was as follows

Hasdlna Bhaw of ¥ Hendiine Shers of JV

siles by Revenus alny FEVEOUS Revanus

wis 2818 20156 e 04 014

Em Em Em Im m m

Umited Kingdom 3392 (1451) 1941 3637 (1417) 2220
Umnted States of Amenca 2785 (0 8) 2777 3167 (30) 327
Austraha 724 (086) 718 666 21 645
Rest of World 317 (4 0) 3077 296 3 (3 5) 2928
1,001 8 {150 5) 8513 1,082 3 (150 3) 8920

The Group's noncurrent assets, other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets, located in the UK are £298 8m (2014 £241 6m) and located

outside of the UK are £155 8m (2014 £21 8m)

Further analysis of the Group's revenues by product or senace line 18 not pravided as this infermatton 1s not routinely reported to the Board
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3 Total operating costs
Operating costs from continng operations compnse the followng categones of expense
Ongeing Ongolng
businessas HBC Amwrice Tetsd busnesses BBC Amarice Total
e s s M4 04 014
tm tm tm Em £m m
Cost of sales 4990 290 5280 482 7 420 5247
Distnibution costs 789 48 835 732 69 861
Admimstration costs 150 6 87 159 3 157 8 137 1715
Total operating costs 7285 423 770 8 7197 8286 7823

4, Specific items

Share of intarest and tax of joint ventures and associates

The Group wiews its investments as being a fundamental part of its ongoing operations IFRS requires that the Group reports its share of the resuits of
jaint ventures and associates on an afler-tax, after-interest basis The interest and tax charges borne by joint ventures and associates have been added
back within Headline profit as a specific item, in order to present an operating profit measure wiuch more appropnately represents the way in which the

business 1s reviewed and assessed infernally

Ponsion deficit raduction payment

As described in note 31, the Group accounts for contnbutions to the BBC Pension Scheme as if it were a defined coninbution scheme In March 2015,
the Group made an addibonal tax-deduchble cash payment of £8 1m {June 2013 £2 3m) to the BBC in conrection with the BBC's deficit reduchion plan
As this payment i1s not reflective of the ongoing service cast of active scheme partictpants, management believes it is appropriate to present this cost as
a specific tem Further payments are expected to be made in future years as descnbed n note 31

Other specific items

Ongoing Ongoing

busipmsxay and  businenses and

fotml [~ 1)

e /14

£m Em

Reorgarusation cosls 28) (7 0}
Amounts wntten cff interests in jont ventures and associates (20) (22)
Transaction fees {0 2) (C 6)
(4 8) {2 8}

Reorganisation costs in both years are tax-deductible and settled in cash, and include redundancy and similar costs ansing as a result of changes to the
Group's organisation structure, and costs associated with the relocation of the Group's head office

Amounts wntten off interests in joint ventures and associates m the year ended 31 March 2015 were denved from a companson of thewr respective book
values with discounted cash flow forecasts The charge in the prior year related to the assocrate AudioGO, which was written down to £mil due to that

company being in admirustration Such write-offs are non-cash and non-deductible for tax purposes
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5 Profit for the year
Profit for the year 1s stated after charging/(crediting)
Ongoing Ongoing
Susimesses BBC Anwrica Totsd Bt s BEC Amrics Totmd
ne - 11 ms 014 me W14
tm [ ] £m Em Em Em
Rentals on operaling leases and similar amangements 137 04 14 1 109 08 17
SutH-ease rentals received on operating leases 02 - 02) ©8) - (08}
Net foreign exchange (gains)/osses {©5) - {0 5) 61 - 61
Govemment grants receivabie {01} - (01) (10) - (10
Depreciation an property, plant and equipment (note 15) 78 02 80 76 01 77
Impairment of property, plant and equipment {note 15) - 09 09 - - -
Amortisation of intangible assets
Distribution nghts (note 13) 1130 - 1130 1034 - 103 4
Intemally generated software assets 34 - 34 30 - 30
Other intangible assets 10 - 10 17 - 17
Programme nghts and other tnveniories
Cast recognised as an expense
- programmes in the course of production 830 as 835 B0 3 14 817
- broadcast nghts and other inventories 488 148 634 432 223 75
Write-downs recogrused as an expense 38 08 44 41 12 53
Employee costs (note 7) 142 8 61 1483 1331 114 144 5
Impairment loss recognised on loan receivables 01 - 01 06 - 06
Impawment loss recognised on trade recevables (note 19) 10 g1 11 33 - 33
Reversal of impairment losses recognised on trade recevables (note 19) {2 8) - {2 8) (0 9) - (09)

Amoitisation of distribution nghis is recorded within cast of sales Amortisation of other intangible assets, including intemally generated software assets,
18 recorded within administration costs

6 Auditor's remuneration

Ongaing Ongoing
businesses BAC Amenca Total businessas BEC Amenca Total
w18 016 w1s M4 w4 w4
(2] (<] £m iLm Em m
Feos payable to tho Company's auditors for the audit of the Company's
annual gecounts 04 01 05 03 - 03
Feas payable to the Company’s auditors and their associates for other
sarvices to the Group
The audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legisiation 02 - 02 02 - g2
Total audit fees 06 01 0.7 05 - 05
Tax services 02 - 02 01 - o1
Other services 01 - 01 - - -
Total non-audit feas 03 - 03 01 - 0t
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7. Employee costs

The average number of employees dunng the year was as follows

Ongoing Ongowng
businésses BBC Americs Totad busnessas BBC Amarica Total
wnis 113 2018 e 2014 014
Numbar Numbar Number Number Number Numbar
United Kingdom 438 - 438 453 . 453
North Amernca 360 a5 446 363 151 514
Australia and New Zeafand 197 - 197 179 - 179
Western Eurcpe 324 - 324 288 - 288
Rest of World 424 - 424 380 - 390
Total number of amployees 1,743 86 1,829 1,673 151 1,824

Within the averages above, 93 (2014 98) part-ime employees have been inciuded at ther full-time equivalent of 66 (2014 64), including casual staff

The aggregate remuneration recognised in the Consalidated income statement in respect of these employees, including casual staff, compnsed

Ongoing Gngowng

businesses BBC merics Taotsl businesses BBC Amenca Total

s ms mE F- 11 mi 2014

£m Im Em Em £m &m

Salaries and wages 114 4 56 1200 1109 105 1214
Social secunty costs 104 03 107 100 06 1086
Other pension costs 180 02 182 122 03 125
1428 61 1489 1331 114 144§

in addition to the above, redundancy costs and compensation for loss of office payments totaling £1 3m (2014 £5 1m) were incurred in the year

The remuneration of the Directors dunng the year was as follows

Cngolng
businesses and businessas and
ot total
e 014
000 £000
Emoluments 1,040 a71%
Long-term ncentive schemes 29 7
1,068 978
The number of Directors to whom retirement benefits have accrued throughout the year under the followang schemes 1s as follows
Ongoing Ongolng
businesses and businessas and
lotal fotal
e 2014
Number of Kuviber of
Oirectors Directors
Defined benefit schemes 1
1 1

Money purchase schemes

Further details of Directors' remuneration are prowided in the Report on Directors’ remuneration on pages 21 to 25

compensation eamed by key management can be found in note 34

The Group contnbuted £23 000 (2014 £3,000) to meney purchase schemes for its Directors in the year

The remuneration of the hghest paid Director during the year was £603,000 (2014 £633,000)
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8 Other gains and losses

Omgaing Ongoing
Sauiresses snd  businessas snd
1ot totel
014 2014
&m tm
Change in farr value of derivative financial instruments 40) 61
Change in farr value of available-for-sale financial assets - 11
Recognitton of share of net habilties of joint ventures (note 16) - {16 5)
Increase in eam-out payments due in respect of prior acquisitions {13) -
Reduction in eam-cut proceeds recevable on prior disposals {0 4) -
{57) {93)
9. Net financing costs
Ongomg Dagobg
busimasses and Busin ey and
ot totsd
o 014
Em Em
Interest recevable o8 04
Finance income 08 04
Interest payabie on loan from parent undertaking 18 17
Interest payabie on denvative financial instruments 12 23
05 06

Other interest payable
Finance expanaa 38 46
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10. Taxation
Tax charge for the year
Ongoing Ongaing
businaises BBC America Total businesses BEGC America Totat
I8 2018 1 014 014 2014
Em Em Em &m tm €m
Curront tax
UK corporation tax - 57 57 42 - 42
Foreign tax 135 33 168 64 138 202
Adjustments in respect of pror years {3 4) - (34) {0 4) - (0 4)
101 80 191 102 138 240
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of tming differences 09 1786 185 28 - 26
Reduction in rate of UK corporation tax 01 - 01 04 - 04
Adjustments i respect of pnor years 06 - 06 11 - 114
16 176 192 41 - 44
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 117 266 3813 143 138 281

The UK corporation tax charge 1s net of a credit of £7 8m (2014 £5 1m) in respect of High-end telewision tax relief
Atax credit of £2 2m (2014 £2 2m} s included in the Cansolidated income statement m respect of specific items (note 4)

In addition to the amount charged to the Consolidated income statement a tax credit of £2 3m (2014 charge of £3 7m) has been recognised n other
comprehensive income n respect of financtal instruments treated as cash flow hedges

Reconciliation of tax expense
The total tax charge for the year [s lower (2014 lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 21% (2014 23%) The tax charge can be
reconciled to the profit per the Consolidated income statement as follows

Ongaing Ongaing

businwssas RBC Ammnca Totsd businasses BAC Amanca Total

218 2015 2115 2014 o1 EL)

&m &m Em Em L] Em

Profit befors tax 965 1273 2238 910 352 126 2
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 21% (2014 23%) 203 267 470 208 81 290

Effects of

Disallowed expenditure 17 15 3z 23 - 23
Non-taxable income - (11 3) (11 3) - - -
High-end television tax relief (78 - (78 51 - (51)
Tax-exempt disposals of businesses - - - {12) - (12}
Tax differential on wholly-owned overseas eamings 63 a7 16 0 (1 6) 57 41
Tax effect of share of resuits of joint ventures and associates 6 1) - (61) 217 - 21
Reducton in rate of UK corporation tax 01 - 01 04 - 04
Adjustments in respect of previous years 28) - (28) 07 - o7
Tax charge for tho year "7 288 g3 143 138 281
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10. Taxation (continued)

The amount of tax pawd in the year is different from the tax charge, due mainly to the tmings of payments UK corporation tax 1s payable in four
instalments, two of which are made afier the end of the year in which the tax arises i e some of the tax included in the 2013/14 tax charge was pawd
in 2014/15 The payments are based on the best estmate of the tax charge at the tme the payment 1s made The final tax hability 1s determmed when
the tax return for the year 1s prepared and submitted to HMRC some time after the year end In addiion, the tax charge in the accounts is a best
estimate at the time the accounts are prepared The charge is then adjusted in later years to reflect the actual tax lability ansing from the subrmitted
tax returns

Factors affecting future tax expense

The UK Govemment has announced a phased reduction in the main rate of corporation tax in the UK On 1 Apnil 2014, the rate was reduced from
23% 10 21% A further annual reduction 18 expected to follow in the next year, reducing the corporation tax rate to 20% from 1 Apnl 2015 Deferred tax
has been calculated applying the tax rates that have been enacted at the balance sheet date with no matenal effect on the group

Deferrad tax
The following are the major deferred tax iabuiltes and assets recognised by the Group, and the movement thereon, during the current and prior year

Fined asast
temporary Financhet
differences Provisions Inatrumwnats Qthar Total
Em £&m Lm €m Em
At1 April 2013 38 34 31 {(14) 8.9
Charged to the income statement {0 &) (0 5) (13) (17 41)
Charged to other comprehensive income - - (37) - 37
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses 04 12 - (14} Q2
At 31 March 2014 aé 41 19 {4 5) 13
(Charged)/credited to the iIncome statement 03 15 08 (21 2) (19 2)
Credited to other comprehensive income - - 23 - 23
Foregn exchange transiation gamns and losses - 11 - {0 5} 06
At 31 March 2015 33 67 12 (268 2) 1] 5.63'

Other deferred tax balances predominantiy relate to deferred tax on deferred capital gains and fair value interest in joint venture intangibles

Deferred tax is recorded in the balance sheet as follows

018 2014

Em £m

Deferred tax assets 42 35
Deferred tax liabilities (19 2) {2 2)
Net deferred tax (llability)/asset {15.0) 13

Deferred tax assets in respect of fax losses carried forward are racognised to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits 1s probable The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets ansing on capital losses tolaling £170 0m (2014 £170 Om) These
assets have not bean recognised on the basis that there 1s nsufficient certainty that capital gains wilt anse against which the Group can utilise these
tosses There s no time limit for the utiisation of those losses

Al the balance sheel date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earmings of subsidianes for which deferred
tax liabliiues have not been recogmsed was £0 3m (2014 £0 1m) No hability has been recognised in respect of these differences because the Group
15 in a pasition to cantrol the trming of the reversal of the temporary differences and those differences ara not expected 1o reverse in the foreseeable
future

Temporary differences ansing in connection with the Group's interests in the undistnbuted retained earnings of associates and joint ventures are not
considered to be matenal in either year

48




Annual Report and Financial Statements

BBC Worldwide Limited
Year ended 31 March 2015

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

11. Dividends
018 214
m Em
Amounts recognised as distributions to aquity holders in the period
Intenm dividends far the pnor year of £nil per share (2014 £120 24 per share) - 301
Interim dwvidends for the current year of £445 36 per share (2014 £232 80 per share} 1113 58 2
111.3 883
12 Goodwill
e 014
Em Em
Cost and net book value
At beginning of the year 341 361
Foreign exchange translation iosses {en 20
Carrying amount 334 341
Goodwill ailocated by eash generating unit {"CGU"), is analysed as follows
218 014
£m tm
Consumer distnbution 254 254
Australran Channels 80 87
334 341

The Group tests goodwll for impairment in the accounting penod in which a business combination takes place, thereafter annually, or more frequently
if there are ndications that gocdwill might be impasred

The recoverable amounts of the CGLUI's are determined from value mn use calculations The key assumpbons used for these calculations are those
regarding discount rates and growth rales Management eshmates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market agsessments of the

time value of money and the nsks specific to each CGU
No goodwill imparment has been recognised to date

Consumer distribution business

The goodwall in this CGU arose as a result of the acquisthion of 2 enterta:n on 6 August 2009 The cash flow projections used in determiming value in
use are based on the cwment business plan approved by management, which covers a five year penod after which cash flows have been extrapolated
using an expected long term growth rate of -6% (2014 -6%)

A discount rate of 11 7% (2014 14 4%) has been applled to the cash flows

Management 1s of the view that any reasonably possible change In key assumptons would not cause the carrying amount to exceed s recoverable
amount

Australian Channels business

The goodwidll in this CGU arose as a resuit of the acquisihon of UK TV on 1 July 2008 Cash flow projections used in the recoverabie amount
calculation are based on financial budgets approved by management covenng a penod of five years (2014 five years) and a discount rate of 11 9%
(2014 14 9%} Cash flows beyond the forecast period have been extrapolated using an expected growth rate of 1 0% (2014 1 0%) The terminal
growth rate assumes contractual rates remaining in place and a modest growth of subscnbers as per external sources Cash flow projections are
consistent with the business acquisition plans and these used In the previous year

The main assumption on which the forecast cash flows are based 1s license fee rates In forming its assumptions about license fee rates, the Group
has used a combmation of long term trends and recently contracted terms

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the value in use of UK TV 15 based would not resuit in
any impairment
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13. Distribution rights

o1 bl

&m tm

Cost
At 1 Apnl 474 6 3269
Additions 1459 142 2
Foreign exchange translation gams 17 55
Fully amorised nghts wniten off 02) -
At 31 March 6220 474 8
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 3045 1953
Charge for the year 1130 103 4
Foreign exchange translation losses 19 58
Fully amorhsed rights written off (02) -
At 31 March 4192 304 5
Not book value 2028 1701

Included within disinbution rights 15 seif-funded content in the course of production totalling £5 3m (2014 £9 8m)
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14. Other intangible assets

Agresmanty Soltware Othar Tatal
w1k tm &m m Em
Cost
At 1 Apnl 92 451 a7 560
Additions - 17 - 17
Disposals - {137) - (137)
Foreign exchange translation fosses {07) - - {07)
At 31 March 85 441 07 533
Amortisation
At 1 April a1 313 06 350
Charge for the year 08 a8 - 44
Disposals - (137) - (137)
Foreign exchange translaticn gains (02) - (0 1) {03)
At 31 March kX 214 05 254
Not book valug 50 227 02 278

(=

Agreemants Softwere Gther Total
2014 Em &m Em Em
Cost
At 1 April 113 398 09 520
Additions - 77 - 77
Disposals . (t5 - 15
Foreign exchange translation (losses)/galns 21) 01 (0 2} (22}
At 31 March 92 46 1 07 560
Amortisation
At 1 April 31 2087 o7 325
Charge for the year o7 40 - 47
Dispasals - {15) - {15)
Foreign exchange transtation (gans}/losses {07) 01 {0 1) (07)
At 31 March 31 M3 06 350
Net book value 61 148 01 210

Other assets comprise advertising relahonships and non-compete agreements
Of total software addiions recognised dunng the year, £10 6m (2014 £7 5m) related to ntemally developed software
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15 Property, plant and equipment

Frashold  Bhort leassivold Plant and Fixturws Assats under

s Y and fitings conSLrCUon Total
218 m &m & m m &m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 02 127 304 115 14 562
Additons - 122 68 13 - 203
Disposal of subsidianes - 02) - - - {02)
Other disposals - {0 4) (20) 0 4} - (28)
Transfers - - 14 - (1 4) -
Fareign exchange translation gains - 02 04 01 - 07
At 31 March 02 246 3ro 125 - 742
Depreciation
At 1 April - 90 209 94 - 393
Depreaaton charge for the year - 30 38 12 - 80
Impairment charge for the year - 09 - - - 09
Disposal of subsidiaries - {0 1) - - - (R}
Other disposals - 04 (20 04 - (28)
Foreign exchange translation losses - - 02 01 - 03
At 31 March - 124 229 103 - 456
Net book value 02 121 141 22 - 286

Froshold  Shor! leasshold Plant gnd Flxtures Assets under
£ad fittings construction Totst

014 m £m Em Em m m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 02 136 331 118 22 610
Additions - - 15 a4 - 19
Disposals - (01} (41) 04 - (46)
Transfers - - 08 . {0 8) -
Forelgn exchange iranslalion lgsses - (0 8) (0 9) {0 4) - 21
At 31 March 02 127 4 15 14 56 2
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl - 68 219 88 - 375
Charge for the year - 27 3s 12 - 77
Disposals . 01) 41) (0 4) - {4 6)
Foreign exchange transfation gains - {0 4) 07 (0 2) - {(13)
At 3 March - 90 209 94 - 393
Net book vaiue 02 37 95 21 14 169

At 31 March 20156 the Group had contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment totaling £1 3m (2014 £7 9m)
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16. Interests in joint ventures and associates

A list of the Group's significant interests in joint ventures and associates including the name, country of incorporation and proportion of ownership
nterest, 1s given in note f to the Company financial statements

The movements in joint ventures and associates during the year were as fallows

Jont ventures Associstes Total Jont ventures Agsocisise Tola)
I ms 018 4 F- 1 F 21
£m &m tm [ &m Em
At 1 Apnl o7 121 128 193 16 ¢ 353
Additions 06 1229 1235 04 - 04
Disposals - - - {99 (14) (113)
Recogrutron of share of net latilities - - - (16 5) - (16 5)
Reclassification from other investments - o8 08 - - -
Share of results 276 82 358 254 05 259
Adjustment to prowvision for unrealised profits 11 (0 5) 08 (0 1) 01 -
Dividends recevable (29 6) (24) (32 0) (17 9) 03 (182)
Foreign exchange translaton gains/{losses) 02 121 123 - {0 6) (0 6)
Amounts written off - 20) (2 0) - {22) (22)
At 31 March 08 151 2 1518 07 121 128
JoInt ventures and associates ame recorded In the balance sheet as follows
Jomt ventures Associztes Totzl Joint venlzres Ansociatas Total
18 s s 214 2014 2014
£m £m &m tm Em Em
Interests n joint ventures and associates a5 148 2 1488 o7 121 128
Non-current assets held for sale (note 21) - 30 30 - - -
06 151 2 1518 07 121 128

Interests in joint ventures
Interests in joint ventures in the current and previous years included the followang matenal operations

UKTV

BBC Worldwde has a major parinership deal with Scnpps Networks interactive ("Scnpps®) for the production, marketing and supply on a wholesale
basis of free-to-air and subscnption channels [n the UK The partnership eperates thraugh the joint venture company UKTV Medla Holdings Limited
{CUKTV)

UKTV 15 financed by Scrpps and has both trade with and debt in @ number of subsidiary operating comparues These comparnies previously formed a
number of discrete legal groups with ownership of each held directly by the joint venture partners In accordance with I1AS 28 Jomt Ventures and
Associates , BEC Worldwde equity acceunted only for those joint ventures which were cumulatively profitable Accordingly, the Group did not account
for two companies within the UKTV group which had net llabllities and where BBC Worldwide had no obligation o prowide further funding

Ouring the prior year, UKTV management agreed in pnnciple to a regrganisation of the unyfied UKTV Group, which involved collapsing the disparate
trading subsidianes into a single trading entdy As a resuit of this change wiich became effective on 30 November 2014 BBC Worldwide recogmised
a 50% share of those net liabilities not prewvtously recogrised, recording a charge of E16 5m i the Consolidated income statement for the year to 31
March 2014 As at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015, the consolidated UKTV group was in an overall net asset postion

UKTV was the only matenal joint venture undertaking held by the Group n both the current and the pnor year

Ragdoll Worldwide Limited

In April 2006, BBC Worldwide entered into an agreement with Ragdoll Worldwide Linited to form a joind venture The purpose of the joint venture was
to exploit and manage existing Children's intellectual praperties and to mvest in the developmerd of new tnteflectual property nghts

in May 2011, the Board resolved to dispose of the Group's interast in the joint venture and the joint venture was classified as held for sale The joint
venture was disposed of in {he year ended 31 March 2014 (see note 27)
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16. Interests in joint ventures and associates (continued)

The following represents the Group's aggregate share of jint ventures dunng the year

UKTY Ohw Vs Totnt unTv Othar IV Totsl
2018 2018 b1l 3 e mid 2014
&m £m m £m Em Em

Non-current assets 56 03 59 28 142 170
Current assets (including UKTV cash and cash
equivalents £13 5m (2014 £24 6m)) 1865 47 1912 1891 93 198 4
Current habalities {(iIncluding UKTV financial liabilhes
£125 2m (2014 £76 4m)) (127 8) (49) (1327) 831) {9 5) (92 8}
Non-current labiities (including UKTV financial abiities
£53 5m (2014 £94 am)) (53 5) (11) (54 6) (94 4) {14 8) {109 2)
Net assets of [oInt ventures 108 {10) 88 14 4 (0 8) 136
Group's share of not assets of joint ventures 53 03 56 T2 {0 4) 58
Provision for unreahsed profil (50) - (50 {6 1) - {61)
Interasts In joint ventures at 31 March 03 0.3 06 11 {0.4} 07
Revenue 2880 120 3000 2784 26 3010
Expense (UKTV including depreciation £2 1m {2014 £ 3m)) (216 4) {11 1) (227 5) {210 1) (227) (232 8)
Interest payable 37 - 37 37 - 37
Taxatign {14 1) 01) {14 2) (14 8) 03 (15 1)
Profit after taxation 538 08 546 498 (0 4) 49 4
Results not recognised ~ - - - 07 Q7
Profit from |oint ventures {all from continulng operations) 538 08 548 498 03 50.1
Profit from joint ventures atinbutable to other parties (26 9) {0 4) (27 3) (24 9) {02) (251)
Other adjusiments - 03 03 - 04 04
Group's share of profit from Joint vantures
mco_g‘nlssd n Consolidated Income statemant 269 a7 276 249 05 254
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16. Interests in joint ventures and assaciates {continued)

Interests in associates

Interests i associates in the current and previous years included the followng matenai operation

NVCA

As set out in Note 27, on 23 Octaber 2014, the Group sold a 48 9% stake in NVCA, formerty a wholly-owned subsidiary of BBC Worldwide Amencas
Inc , and retained an mvestment of 50 1% in NVCA Whilst the Group retains significant influence over NVCA, and has the right to vanable retums, it
no langer has control, and hence the Group has deconsolidated NVCA from the date of the sale and accounls for its retained interest since that date

as an assoclate

The following represents the Group's share of assocrates held dunng the year

NYCA Othar Tatal Total
218 Wi mis 14
Em tm &m om
Aggregation of 100% of each assoclate
Non-current assets 2518 81 258 0 300
Current assets 842 341 98 3 473
Current llabihties (26 5) (17 9) (44 4) (23 3}
Non-current kabilibies 73 81) (15 4) {44 6}
Net assets 282.3 142 296 5 94
Group's shara of net assots 1414 4.0 1454 3s
Goodwill on acguisition - 105 105 82
Provision for unrealised profit (3 5} - (3 5) -
Other 12 - {12) 04
Interests in associates at 31 March 136 7 145 1512 121
Revenue 428 99 a7 533
Resutt for the year 150 42 19 2 46
75 07 82 05

Group's share of results of associates (all from continuing operations)

The Group has board representation and parhicipates in pelicy-making decisions affecting Educational Pubhishers LLP and Woodlands Books Limited
The Group has concluded that it exerts significant influence over these busmesses despite holding less than 20% of the voting power Accordingly,

the Group has classified its interests in these entities as associates
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17. Investments

018 2014
Em Em
Available-for-sale investments carried at fair value
Unquoted equities 44 44
Loans recelvable carried at amortised cost
Loans to joint ventures and associates (note 34) 05 04
Loans to other entihes 82 7
a7 41
Total investments 131 a5
18. Programme rights and other inventories
018 2014
Em Em
Programme rights for broadcast 314 725
Programmes in the course of production 178 132
Raw matenals and consumables 17 27
Work in prograss 14 21
Firished goods and goods for resale 150 121
673 102 6
19. Trade and other receivables
by 1] e
Em Em
Curront
Trade receivables 2181 182 0
Prepayments 133 275
Royally advances 103 112
Accrued income 656 556
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates (note 34) 246 194
Other recewvables 353 97
367 2 54

Included within Trade and other receivables is £27 1m (2014 £14 Om) due after more than one year

The net carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximates to their far value
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19 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Included in the Group s frade and other receivables at 31 March 2015 are balances of £21 7m (2014 £29 1m) which are past due at the reporting date
but are not imparred because the Group expects to recover these balances in full, and has hrstorical analysis to support the recovery profile The aged

analysis of these balances s as foliows

2018 214

£m Em

Up to 3 menths 167 235
3 to 8 months 29 35
Over 6 months 21 21
217 291

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit
was initally granted up to the reporting date Trade recevables are provided agamnst based on estmated irecoverable amounts, determined by
reference to past default experience of the counterparty and an analysis of the counterparty's financial situation The concentration of credit nsk I1s

imited due to the customer base being large and unrelated (see note 33)

Amounts charged to the impairment provision are written off when there 1s no expectation of recovery Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to the Income Statement The impairment prowsion stands at £1 2m at 31 March 2015 (2014 E3 6m)
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19 Trade and other receivables (continued)
The movement in the allowance for doubtfut debts 15 set out below
s W14
£m Em
Balance at the beginning of the year 36 93
Impairment losses recogrused 11 33
Amounts written off {07) (8 1}
Impaurment losses reversed {28) {0 9)
12 36
20 Trade and other payables
He e
m Em
Current
Trade payables 44 1 330
Rights creditors 106 0 868
Accruals 602 578
Deferred income 580 520
Amounts owed to ulbmate parent undertaking 476 438
Amounts owed to feilow subsidiary undertakings 160 g1
Amounis owed to joint ventures and associates {note 34) 34 04
Other payables including other tax and social secunty 699 347
405 2 3278
Non-current
TFrade and other payables 08 -
Accruals - 08
08 08
406 0 3284

Rughts creditors compnse royalty payments owing to producers of and contnibutors to television programmes, DVDs and cther media Other payables
nclude £0 8m relating to contingent consideration (2014 £0 5m) (see note 33)

The carmying amounts of trade and other payables approximate to their fair value

21. Assets held for sale

The asset classified as heid for sale in the current year relates to the Group's investment in the Temple Sireet associate (see note 16), which on
31 March 2015 was approved by the Board for disposal There were no assets classified as held for sale at 31 March 2014

01 014

m Em

Investments in joint ventures and associates 30 -
Total assats classifiod as held for sale 30 -
30 -

Net assats of disposal groups
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22 Provisions
Orerous
Proparty retated cantracts Othar Tolst
&m tm Em m

At 1 Apeil 2014 15 21 16 52
Additronal proviston in the year 21 13 12 48
Utihsation of provision ©1) 05 (14) 20)
Released to the Consolidated income statement (02) - 05 [(*lp]
Transfers 09 (0 9) - -
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses 01 - - 01
At 31 March 2015 43 20 09 72

Property-related prowisions include onerous leases in respect of properties held under non-cancellable leases, when the expected benefits to be

denved by the Group from subletting those properbes are lower than the unavoidable costs payable over the remaining term of the respective leases,

together with provisions for dilapidatrons in respect of leasehold properties

Prowisions for onerous contracts are recagnised when the expected benefits to be denved by the Group from a contract are lower than the

unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the cantract
Gther provisions pnmarily compnse restructunng provisions

Prowvisions are analysed between current and non-current as follows

ka1 014

Em Em

Current 53 47
Non-current _19 05
72 52
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23. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The Group's pnncipal sources of funding and the currencies in which funding ts denommated are summarnsed as follows
Bierng Indian Rupes Total Steriing todian Rupes Tatat
2018 2011 2018 2014 201 2014
£m tm &m &m L] Em
Unsecured borrowings at amortisad cost
Loans from related parties 1355 - 1355 987 - 987
Bank loans - 03 03 - 07 07
1355 03 1345.8 987 07 994
Total borrowings
Amount due for settlement wathin 12 months - 03 03 - 07 o7
Amount due for settiement after more than 12 menths 135 5 - 135 5 987 - 987
1355 03 1358 98 7 07 994

The Group's principal source of funding 18 a multi-currency loan facility of £202 2m (2014 £202 2m) wath BBC Commercial Holdings Limited (BBCCH),
its intermediate parent undertaking, of which £30 Om (2014 £30 Om) 1s available only on condition that an equivalent cash balance 15 maintaned The
loan facility expires on 30 September 2016 and attracts interest based on BBCCH's borrowing cost pius a margin of 1 0%

The Group also has a working capitaf foan facility in India of INR 120m (£1 3m (2014 £1 2m)}, wath an overdraft hmut withun this facility of INR 40m
{£0 4m (2014 £0 4m)) The loan faciity has no expiration date but can be called upon for repayment at any tme and therefore has been classed as
current The bafance attracts interest of base rate plus a margin

In addihion, the Group has a muiti-currency collechive net overdraft faciity with a mit of £2m and a base currency of GBP This attracts interest of 1%
above base rate if drawn down in GBP, and interest of the bank's currency overdraft rate plus a 1% margmn «f drawn down in other currencies As at 3t
March 2015 and 31 March 2014 the facility was unutised

There are no charges over cash at bank or other financial assets in respect of borrowings or other habilites (2014 None)
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24. Denvative financial instruments
Non-cumnt Currunt Mon-curment
aszata sssats  Currant Babilities ltblins Totsh
2018 tm Em Em tm Em
Dertvatives that are designated as cash flow hedges
Forward foreign currency cantracts 27 76 (8 6} an (KR}
Interest rate swaps - - - (0 6) (0 6)
27 75 (8 6) (5.3) (37
Derivatives that are not in a formal hedge relationship
Forward foreign currency contracts g1 a9 {11) (0 9) (10)
Embedded denvatives 01 - (0 5) - (0 4)
02 09 {16) {09} (14)
29 84 (10 2) {62) (51)
Nonctrment Currant Non-cument
anzuts aasts  Current |labilities Ilabliivies Total
14 £m Em Em £m £m
Dernvatives that ara designated as cash flow hedges
Forward foreign currency contracts 28 587 (0 5) on 79
Interest rate swaps - - - {07) (07)
23 57 (0 5) {0 8) 72
Derivatives that are not in a formal hedge relationship
Forward foreign currency contracts 06 38 0 5) ©1) 38
Interest rate swaps - - ()] - ©1)
Embedded dernvatives - - - {(11) {11
06 38 © €) (12 28
34 95 (11) (2.0) 98

Far value movements on derivative financial instruments that are not 1n a formal hedge relationship are recorded in the Consolidated income statement

within other gains and losses

The total notional prncipal amount of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 31 March 2015 was £358 6m (2014 £292 5m) The

hedged forecast transactions denominated :n forergn currency are expected to oceur at various dates in the future

The Group applies cash flow hedge accounting for trades taken out in respect of its forecast foreign currancy transactions Hedge accounting 1s only
appled where appropriate designation and documentation, and trades with parties external to the Group, exist Net losses (before tax) recognised in the

hedging reserve on forward foreign exchange contracts in cash flow hedge relatlonships at 31 March 2015 were £10 9m (2014 gans of £16 4m)

Future relevant amounts will be recogrised in the income statement in the penod when the hedged forecast transaction affects the income statement at

vanous dates over the next 36 months

The notional pnncipal amounts of the outstanding terest rate swap contracts at 31 March 2015 were £60 Om (2014 £100 Om) All outstanding interest

rate swaps mature by July 2016

The Group has reviewed contracts for embedded denvatives that are required to be separated from thesr host contracts Embedded denvatives are
recognised at their fasr value with subsequent changes to far value recorded in the iIncome statement
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25. Called up share capital

mE 014
&m Em
Authorised
1,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 10 10
Issuad, alloted, called up and fully paid
250,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 02 02

The Company has one class of ordinary shares, which camy no right to fixed mcome

26 Reserves

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve IS used to record the effective portion of cumulative net changes in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments, refated to
hedged transactions that have not yet occurred (net of tax) During the current year, gains of £6 2m were removed from the hedging reseves and
credited fo revenue in the income statement (2014 gams of £3 1m)

Translation reserve

The translation reserve compnses all foreign exchange differences arising since the transition to IFRS, from the transtation of the financial statements
of foreign operations, as well as from the translation of habilties that hedge the Group's net investment in foreign subsidianes Since 1 Apnil 2008,

£4 7m of exchange losses on foreign currency borrowangs have been offset in reserves against exchange gains on the related investment in overseas
subsidiaries

Retalned earnings

At 31 March 2015, the cumulative goodwill written off to reserves on acquisitions prior to 1 Apni 1998 amounted to £14 2m This amount 13 unchanged
from the prior year, and remained in equiy upon transition to IFRS as permitted by IFRS 1
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27. Disposals
The foilowing summanses the disposals of the Group for both the current and the prior year

BBC AMERICA

Cn 23 October 2014, BBC Worldwide sald a 48 9% stake in NVCA, formery a wholly-owned subsidiary of BBC Woridwide Amernicas Inc , to AMC
Networks inc ("AMCN?®) in retum for proceeds of $200m (£123 Om}, with BBCW retaining an investment of 50 1% in NVCA The $200m proceeds
compnsed $180m (£98 4m}) in cash and $40m (£24 6m) deferred consideration in the form of a six-maonth promussory note, due by 23rd Apnl 2015

The disposal was a sirategic move to take advantage of the greater negotiating power and sector knowledge of the larger US networks

While the Group retans a 50 1% shareholding in NVCA, AMCN has control over the key decision-making activities Thersfore, whilst the Group
retamns significant influence over NVCA, and has the right to vanable returns, it no longer has control, and hence the Group has decanschidated NVCA
from the date of the sale and accounts for its retained interest since that date as an associate

NVCA operates the US Tv Channel BBC AMERICA, which represented a significant proportion of both the Group's channels business (37 6% of
channels stalutory revenue in the year to 31 March 2014) and also s North Amencan operations (28 8% of North Amenca statutory revenue in the
year to 31 March 2014) However whilst material to the Group's results, NVCA and the disposal of the BBC AMERICA channels business have not
been treated as discontinued operations under IFRS 5 {"Non-Current Asseis Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”) as they do not represent the
disposal of either a separate major line of business or a separate geographical area of aperaton

The net assels of NVCA at the date of disposal were .

23 Getober 1014
Em
Property, plant and equipment 01
Programme nghts and other inventories 848
Trade and other receivables 220
Trade and other payables (157)
Cash and cash equivalents 01
613
Net gain on disposal
£m
Consideration for disposal 1230
Net assets disposed of {30 6)
Cumulative curmency transiation losses 61
Gain on disposal 863
Farr value of associate recognised 1199
Share of net assets reclassified to associates (30 7)
Gain on fair value uplift of associlate 892
Fair value of retained liabihities, and transaction costs, in respect of business disposal (59 8)
Net gain 1159
Satisfled by
Cash and cash equivalents 984
Deferred consideration 248
1230
Nat cash Inflow arising on disposal
Consideration received in cash 98 4
Less Cash and cash equivatents disposed of o1
Less Setitement of retained liabilities and transaction costs in respect of business disposal {33 8)
645
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27. Disposais (continued}

In the pnor year the followng disposals took place

Ragdoll

On 13 September 2013, the Group disposed of its interest in Ragdoll Worldwide Limited for cash consideration of £8 7m and a £3 S5m dividend
immedately prior to disposal resulting in a gain on disposal of £2 3m Net assets at the date of disposal were £9 9m

Big Talk

On 26 July 2013, the Group disposed of its interes! m Big Talk Productions Limited for cash consideration of £3 1m and £1 3m loan settlement,
resulting in a gam on disposal of £1 7m Net assets at the date of disposal were £1 5m

Haymarkat

On 12 August 2013, the Group disposed of its interest n BBC Haymarket Exiibibiens Limited for cash consideration of £0 1m resulling tn a gan ont
disposal of £0 1m Net assets at the date of disposal were £nil

28. Notes to the cash flow statement

018 2014

m Em
Profit before tax 2238 126 2
Ltess
Gains and losses on disposals (1159) {4 1)
Other gams and losses 57 93
Finance income (0 8) (04)
Finance expense 35 46
Operating profit 1163 135.6
Adjustments for
Share of results of joint ventures and associates {(excluding movements in prowisions for unrealsed profits) (36 4) {25 9)
Depreciation and imparrment of property, plant and equipment 80 77
Amortisation and imparment of intangible assets 117 4 108 1
Impairment of nvestments 21 28
Impairment loss recogrised on trade and other recevables 11 33
Reversal of imparment losses recognised on trade and cothar recevables (28) 09)
Net foreign exchange (gams)losses (05) 61
Increase mn provisions - 20
Cash flows bafore movaments In working capltal 2052 2388
Increase n trade and other recewvables (33 6) (197
Increase in programme nghts and other inventories (16 5) (121
Increase/(decrease) in trade and cther payables 62 4 (18 9)
"Cash generated from operations 2175 1881
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29. Commitments and contingent liabilities

mte w14
Em £m
Capital commitments
Distnbution rights 960 754
Property, plant and equipment 13 79
Intangible assets 63 06
103 8 839
Other financial commitments
Programme nghts for broadcast 15 168
Other commitments 29 2 327
307 495
Total unrecognised commitments 1343 1334

in addition to the above, the Group's share of commitments for programme acquisitions and other commitments in respect of its UKTV joint venture
amount to £20 8m and £119 2m, respectively (2014 £19 1m and £72 6m respeclively)

The Group has a number of contingent habdities ansig from litigation and from the rights of ds customers and suppliers to undertake routine audits
These anse from trading activities undertaken in the ordinary course of business BBC Worldwide makes specific provision for the best estimate of
any amounts which might be awarded as a result of these Proviston 1s only made to the extent that the Directors consider it probable that there will be
an outflow of economic benefits and the amount can be reliably estimated

The Group has given guarantees in refation to the BBC Commerctal Holdings Limited revolving credit facility agreement (see note 23) At 31 March
2015, total amounts drawn down under this facility were £135 5m (2014 £98 7m) In addition the Group has given guarantees (n relation to a US
private placement in the name of BBC Commeraal Holdings Limited At 31 March 2015, the total amount of this dedt was £175 2m (2014 £157 8)

The Group occasionally enters into contracts with other equity shareholders of its joint ventures and associates to purchase additional equity In some
cases, these contracts place an obligation on the Group to acquire further shares at the option of the counterparty to the contract The Group has not
recorded a labihty in respect of these confracts as the amounts payable in the event of exercise are based on a proxy for the market value of those
shares Amounts payable under such contracts are not expected to be matenal to the Group as a whole

30. Operating lease arrangements

At the balance sheet date, the Group had cutstanding commutments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,
which fall due as follows

s 2014

Em £Em

Within one year 80 130
In the second to fifth years inclusive 292 241
After five years 590 607
97 2 97 8

The majority of operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its properties The rent payable under leases 1s subject
to renegobation at the vanous intervals specified in the leases

65




BBC Worldwide Limited Annual Report and Financral Statements
Year ended 31 March 2015

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

31. Retirement benefits

The Group operates a number of own defined contnbution pension schemes The assets of those schemes are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds Pension costs, representing contnbutions payabie by the Group dunng the year, were £5 0 milton (2014
£4 7rmillion)

Many BBC Worldwide employees are members of the BBC Group’s pension schemes These compnse the BBC Pension Scheme (a defined benefit
scheme which 1s now closed to new members), a small unfunded plan (the unfunded scheme, which is closed to new members) and defined
contnbution schemes (LifePlan and the Group Personal Pension Scheme)

The BBC Pension Scheme provides benefits on a defined benefit basis funded from assets held in separate trustee-admimstered funds There are
four sections to the BBC Pension Scheme Oid Benefits and New Benefits, which both provide benefits based on final salary (subject to diffenng
inflation caps) Career Average Benefits 2006 (CAB 2006) and Career Average Benefits 2011 (CAB 2011) All sections ara now closed 10 new
antrants

BBC Worldwide, following the prowsions within IAS 19 Employee Benefits for accounting in respect of Group schemes, accounts for its paricipation
in the scheme as if it were a defined contnbution scheme  This 15 because there is no contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the net
defined benefit cost ta scheme participants The pension cost for this scheme therefore represents contrbutions payable by the Group to the scheme
and the costs amounted to £13 2 million in the year (2014 £7 8 milkon) No contnbutions were prepaid or accrued at 31 March 2015 (2014 Enit) The
contnbution amount payable by BBC Worldwide for a parbcular year is determined by the number of active members employed at the preceding
halance sheet date, calculated as a percentage of the total scheme

The BBC Pension Scheme was the main pension plan of the Group and aithough 1t covers the majonty of the current employees 1s now closed to new
entrants This plan provides pensionable salary related benefits on a defined benefit basis funded from assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds

The following habmties in respect of retirement benefits have been recorded in the financial statements of the BBC

2015 2014

&m £m
BBC Penston Scheme 9407 1.5085
Unfunded Scheme 75 72
Total 948 2 1,5157

The actuanal valuation for the BBC Pension Scheme was updated for [AS 19 purposes to 31 March 2015 by Towers Watson, consulting actuanes
Additional disclosure about the scheme and its financial position under IAS 1915 presented betow:

Scheme financial position

2015 2014
£m £m
Scheme assets* 127663 106842
Scheme habiities (13.7070) (12,192 7)
Deficat {9407) (1,508 5)

** excluding funds relating to addftional voluntary contributions (AVCs)
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31. Retirement benefits (continued)

Changes in the present value of plan liabilites

The table below illustrates the movement on the plan hiabilities dunng the year The most significant vanables which affect this are the additional year
of pension benefits eamed, interest charged on existing iabihties any gains or losses relating to partiipants leawving the pension scheme, changes in
assumptions made and benefits paid out durng the year

205 014
£m £m

At 1 April 12,1827 11,8098

Current service cost 1810 167 2
Past service cost 11 24
Administration costs 84 823
Interest on penstan plan labilites 5331 5231
Expenence gains ansing on plan habibties (317 4) {62 3)
Changes in assumptions undertying plan habilibes 1,499 4 114 1
as 11

Contributions by plan parbicipants
Benefits paid
At 31 March

(392 1) (371 0)
13,7070 121927

Changes In the fair value of plan assets

The lable below illustrates the movement on the plan assets durnng the year The most significant vanables which affect this are the additional year of
contributions made, changes in the value of the pension plan assets (including the nvestment return) and benefits paid dunng the year

Employee contabubions to the scheme are paid via a salary sacnfice arrangement and have therefore been treated as employer contnbutions

2018 2014
Em Em

At 1 April 10,6842 10,2011

Expected rate of return on plan assets 4738 453 5
Actuanal gans on plan assets 16725 1770
Contributions by employer 3274 2225

o8 11

Contributions by plan participants

Benefits paid (3592 2) (371 0)

At 31 March 12,7663 10,684 2

The allocation of assets by the Trustees 18 govemed by a need to manage nsk agamst the desire for hugh returns and any hquidity needs A high
percentage of assets are held in equities which the Trustees expect wall produce higher returns in the long term  For more information, including target
asset allocations, on the Scheme see http //www bbc co uk/mypenston

w1 2013 2014 2014

Em » Em *
Equity and poaled vehicles 3,568 0 278 3,480 4 326
Denvatives (817 8} (6 4) 203 02
Fixed intergst bonds - public sector 558 9 44 3827 36
Fixed interest bonds - other 10559 83 8637 81
index-linked bonds - public sector 43775 M43 25315 237
Property — UK 7431 58 65389 61
Praperty — overseas 4305 34 3746 35
Alternatives™ 2,494 0 195 1,964 7 184
Cash and other current assets 356 2 28 402 4 38
At 31 March 12 766 3 1000 106842 1000

*Alternatives include private equity debt and currency

The actual retum on scheme assets (being realised gaing from the receipt of iInvestment income such as dvidends and rent, transactions where
assets are sold and unrealised far value changes) in the year to 31 March 2015 was £2,102 Om (2014 £631 Om)
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31. Retirement benefits (continued)

Funding the Scheme

The 2013 actuanal valuation by Towers Watson of the pension scheme showed a funding shorifall of £2,054m Consequently a recovery plan was
agreed between the BBC and the pension scheme Trustees which details the contnbution amounts to be paid by the BBC over a 12 year penod

commencing 2014

As descnbed in note 4, additional contnbutions of £8 1m paid by the Group to the BBC in 2015 (2014 £2 3m) have been presented outside Headline
profit The Group payment for next year is expected to be £3 4m, reflecting the current recovery plan

The contnbubions to the scheme by members are mainly paid via a salary sacnfice arrangement These have been treated as employer contnbutions

The next formal actuarial vatuation Is expected to be performed as at 1 April 2016

Projected

p- 11 ms 2014

% % %

Employer 167 167 145
Employee (Cld and New Benefits) 75 75 75
Employee (Career Average Benefits 2006) 40 40 40
60 60 60

Employee (Career Average Benelfits 2011)

On the basis of pension assumptions made, the BBC Group expects to make contnbutions to the scheme totalling £128 5 milion m 2015/2016

Principal actuarlal assumptions

The calculation of the scheme kabilittes and pension charges, for {AS 19 purposes requires a number of assumptions, both financial and
dernagraphuc, to be made

The pnncipal financial assumptions used by the actuanes, at the balance sheet date were

o1 2014
% %
Rate of increase n salanes 10 10
Rate of increase i pension payments
0Old Benefits 29 34
New Benefits 27 32
Career Average Benefits (2006) 24 24
Career Average Benefits (2011) 18 23
Inflation assumption (RPI) 29 34
Inflation assumption (CPI) 19 24
Discount rate 34 44
The sensitnahes regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme's iabiliies are set out below
Impaci on mpact on
s Assungtios used schare Nabilies  schemne Eabillthes
Movement % Em
Discount rate 34% Decrease 0 1% 22 {308)
Discount rate 34% Increase 0 1% 17 230
Retail pnce inflation rate 29% Decrease 0 1% 18 245
Retatl price inflation rate 29% Increase 0 1% 18 (251)
Mortality rates See below Decrease 0 1% 35 477
Mortalily rates See below Increase 0 1% 36 (494)
tmpact on mpect on
me Assumption used shoris listRins schems Babllites
Movemant » £m
Discouni rate 44% Decrease 0 1% 21 (258)
Discount rate 4 4% increase 0 1% 16 195
Retail pnce inflation rate 4% Decrease 0 1% 18 215
Retail pnce inflation rate 4% Increase 0 1% 18 (220)
Mortality rates See below Decrease 0 1% 33 404
Mortahty rates See below Increase 0 1% 34 (418)
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31 Retirement benefits (continued)
The average life expectancy assumptions, for members after retrement at 60 years of age, are as follows

Principal demographic assumptions

e 014

Mumbar of years  Number of years

Retinng today
Male 275 274
Female 239 298
Retiring in 20 years
Male 294 293
Female 3109 318

The mortahty assumptions have been selected to reflect the characteristics and experience of the membership of the scheme and are based on those
used for the actuarfal iInvestigation which was camed out for funding purposes as at 1 Apnl 2013 The standard 'St* senes of tables, published by the
CM\, refiect recent research nto mortallty experience in the UK A subset of these tables has been used for males and females, with a multiplier of
122% for males and 107% for females Far the allowance for future Improvements, the CMI 2012 core projection has been adopted with a long term
trend of 1 25% for both males and ferales
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32. Capital management

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt which ncludes the borrowings disclosed n note 23 after deducting cash and cash equivalents
and equity atinbutable to equity holders of the parent, compnsing issued capital, reserves and ratained eamungs as detalled in the Consolidated
statement of changes in equity

The achvities of the BBC are informed by an agreement with the Secretary of State for Culture, Medra and Sport, which also stipulates borrowing
limits, both relative and absolute This agreement currently limits the consolidated net debt of the BEC's commercial subsidiaries to £350m The
Group’s share of this hmit 13 1n turn agreed with the Group's shareholder and informs the level of borrowangs avadable to the Group

The Group delivers iong-term value to its ultimate parent, the BBC, through cash returned in the farm of dwidends as a share of the Group's profils,
acquisition of BBC-commigsoned content or intellectual property, direct investment in BBC pregrammuing, production of ongina! content and growth in
the capital value of the BBC's equity n the Group The diwdend policy of the Group 15 agreed with the BBC so as {o achieve the opttmum balance:
between annual cash returns and invesimg for growth n programmung, intellectual property or other assets to buld value over the long term

The BBC Trust's pancipies require stnet compliance with the four Commercial Critena fit wath the BBC's pubic purposes, brand reputation and brand
values, commercial efficiency, and fair trading pohicy The Group's pohcy it making invesiment decisions is governed by the BBC Trust's principles
and commercial efficency of the investment The commercial efficiency of an investment 1s determined on a case-by-case basis, with respect to
financial metncs such as net present value ntema! rate of return, payback penad and profit margin

The Group s diversified portfolio of businesses means Ihat generaiisation of benchmarks 18 neither desirable nor possible Therefore, the Group
operates a framework for calculating nvestment discount rates that are tailored to each investment This framework applies approprate fisk
premiums to the discount rate in order to ensure alfl nsks relating to the investment are taken into account and that the required rate of retum is
commensurate with this leve! of nsk This in tum allows the BBC and BBC Worldwide to achteve the optimal allocation of capital and balance its short
term and long term return goals

33. Financial instruments and risk management

Financlal risk management objsctives

In the normal course of its actnaties, the Group 1S exposed o a vanety of financial nsks, including market nsk {manty currency risk, interest rate nisk
and price nsk}, credit nsk and iquidity nsk BBC Worldwide takes a nsk averse approach to cash and treasury management actvibes and seeks to
minimise the Group's exposure to volatiity in the financial markets The Group uses denvative financial Instruments to hedge certain nsk exposures in

accordance wth its hedging policy

The Group's financfal risk management operations and associated trade execution actvhes are performed by BBC Group Treasury All freasury
activities are governed within parameters defined formally in the policies agreed by the BBC Executive Board and BBC Worldwide Board In adddion,
treasury activities are routinely reported and are subject to review by management

The Group's financial instruments other than those used for treasury nsk management purposes, pnncipally compnse cash and cash equivatents, a
debt facility prowided by its parent, external borrowings and vanous items such as trade receivables and payables that anse directly from its
operallons The Group finances its operations from these financial Instruments The Group does not undertake speculative treasury transactions

Currency nsk

BBC Worldwide 15 exposed to foreign exchange nsk ansing from various currency exposures, principally in relation to the US doltar, the Euro and the
Austrakan dollar The Group generates a surplus in most currencles in which it operates The Group’s share of income from conbnuing cperations
generated outside the UK was 66 1% tn 2015 versus 65 1% m 2014

Foreign exchange transaction risk anses from recognised assets and liabilities and forecast future commerclal transactions that are denommated in a
currency that i1s not the transacting entity's functional currency Due to movements in exchange rates over ime, the amount the Group expects to
receive or pay when {t enters into a transacton may differ from the amount that it actually receives or pays when if settles the transaction A small
proportion of refated operating expenses will also be denominated in these foreign curencies prowiding some level of offset {o these revenue
exposures

The Group has implemented a hedging policy to mininuse volatility In its financial results The Group's palicy 1s to hedge the majonty of its forecast
net foreign currency trading covenng a pened of one year, and a propartion of forecast trading for a further year thereafter Forward currency contracts
altow the Group to seitle transactions at known exchange rates, and therefore to reduce uncertainty ansing from curmency nsk
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33. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Currancy nsk (continued)

The overall cost of a hedged transaction and the associated forward cumency contract in the incomne statement 1s fixed However, where contracts
span financial years and hedge accounting 1s not applied, the fair value of the forward cumency contract gives nse o gansftosses in each financial
year due to the timing difference between the recognition of such gains/flosses and the recognition of the associated hedged transaction The
gainsfdosses seen are therefore a result of market conditions as opposed to vanances in contract value

Some sales contracts also contain clauses whereby changes in currency rates outside of an agreed range impact on the contract pnce, In the majonty
of cases the value of the indwidual contracts and other features withun the contract hmit the curmency risk exposure to a level that 1s not significant to
the Group Such clauses have been separated from the host contracts and recorded as embedded derivatives The movement m farr values in these
derivatives 1s recorded through the income statement Further details of the embedded denvatives are given in note 24

Forelgn exchange transtatlon risk arises from the translation of overseas subsidianes' income statements and balance sheets into sterling Thus
translation currency nsk may be hedged by funding overseas investments with loans m the same funchional cumrency as the overseas investment No
such net mvestment hedges were in place at 31 March 2015 or 31 March 2014

The majonty of the forward foreign currency contracts entered into by the Group are designated as hedging instruments in effective cash flow hedges
Corresponding far value movements have, accordingly, been recorded within other comprehensive ntcome For forward foresgn currency contracts
not ¢esignated as hedging instruments movements in farr value are recorded directly i the incorme statement within ‘other gamng and losses’

The foliowang table shows the profit/(loss) and equity impact on the Group's derivative financlat instruments of a 10% weakening of Stering compared
to other foreign currency rates

s w014

&m fm
Forward foreign currency contracts {36 1) {25 2)
Embedded denvatives 05 {07)
Total impact on derivatives (35 6) (259)
Impact cn income statement {6 9} {10 §)
Impact on other comprehensive income 287) {15 4)
Total impact on comprehensive income {35 6} (259)

The same movement in currency rates would result in an ncome statement gan of £4 7m (2014 £2 1m) in respect of the Group’s interest-beanng
loans and borrowings and (ntragroup monetary assets and liabilities not ehminated on consolidation

Intarast rate risk

The Group's main exposure to interest rate fluctuations anses on external interest beanng habilihes and loans from its parent undertakings BBC
Worldwide borrows at floating rates of interest creating an exposure to cashflow interest rate nsk BBC Worldwide then use interest rate swaps, caps
and coliars to generate the desired inferest profile and to manage the Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuabons The Group uses mterest rate
swaps to fix interest rates so that greater certainty about the level of future interest payments can be achieved Interest rate swaps, caps and collars
are taken oul hased on projected borrowing requirements, therefore differences will cccur between the notional amount of swaps, caps and collars

and the actual borrowing requirements

If interest rates had been 1% higher and all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2015 wouid have
increased by £0 9m (2014 £06m) The incremental increase in profit 1s pnmanly attnbutable to the effect that such a change i interest rates would
have on the fair value of interest rate swaps, which fix al of the Group's edernal floating rate interest

Othor price risk
Other price risk is any price change other than those arising from changes in currency or interest rates

Cradit risk

Credit nsk 1s the nsk of financial foss to the Group f 8 custorner or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractuat obligations
Credit nsk anses from cash and cash equivalents, denvative financial instruments, available-for-sale finanaal assets and trade and other recervables
Group treasury policies require that cash and cash equivalents and denvative financial mstruments are held pnmarily wath banks of A+ rating or better

The Group's credit nsk managament policy in relation to trade receivables involves regularly assessing the financial reltabiity of customers, taking into
account several factors such as their financial position and historical performance Despite the existence of some key customers in major
geographies, there 1s no matenal concentration of cregit ngk wath respect to trade recewvables as the Group has a large number of customers,
geographically dispersed Credit terms, where given, are generally for a 30-day penod The carrying amount of financial assets included in the
financial statements represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit nsk in relation to these assels

The Group's other classes of financal assets do not contain impaired assets and are not past due
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Liguidity risk

Liqudity nsk 15 the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet its financiat obligatons as they fall due BBC Worldwade is subject to cellings imposed
on its borrowtngs by BBC Group, which in turn 1s subject to hmits set by the Secretary of Stale as descnbed in note 32 At 31 March 2015 the net
debt mit )imposed by BBC Group aon BBC Worldwitte was £172 2m (2014 £172 2m), with a gross debt firut of £202 2m (2014 £202 2m) subect to
an equivalent £30 Om (2014 £30 Om) cash balance being held These iimits are subject to review going forward

In order to comply with thus cetling together wath the terms of any indnadual debt instruments, BBC Worldwide manages its iquidity through a number
of measures, including regular cash flow reporting, forecasting, hedging agamnst foreign exchange fluctuations and proachvely managing working
capital

Matunty analysis of financial liabilitfes

The table below analyses the Group's financial habthties into refevant matunty groupings based on the remaining pernod to contractual matunty at the
balance sheet date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractuat undiscounted cash flows and will therefore not reconcile to the amounts
disclased in the balance sheet for borrowings, denvative financial Instruments and trade and other payables

Annual Report and Financial Statements
Year ended 31 March 2015

Dus In Dua aftar
lusn han Ous in Dua more than

1yt 10 I yeai 2153 yoars 3 yours Total
018 im £m m £m Em
Financiaf liabilltles at fair value through profit and loss
Derivative financial instruments 101 55 05 - 161
Embedded denvatives 05 - - 05
Other creditors 0s 04 - - 0g
Financial liablilities measured at amortisad cost
Bank loans 03 - - - 03
Loan from intermediate parent undertaking 20 1364 - - 1384
Trade and other payables 3472 08 - - 3480

Oue in Dus aftar

lsus than Due In Duu in move then

1 year 1to 2 ysars 1t0 3 yasrs 3 years Total
bal] Em (<] Em Em £m
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Dernivative financial instruments 05 04 - - 09
Embedded denvatives - 11 - - 11
Cther creditors 03 - 01 01 05
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Bank loans 07 - - - 07
Loan from intermediate parent undertaking 19 987 - - 1008
Trade and other payables 2756 o8 - - 276 4
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Categorisation of financial assets and liabilitles

Loans snd  Dertvatives wsed Loans avd  Devhratives used

Aveilabis-for-asie i for g Total forsale for bedglog Tot
;i s 215 2018 a4 M4 2014 1)
tm Em &m £ Em Em Em tm

Assots as per Balance Shact
Denvative financial instruments - - 12 112 - - 129 129
Embedded denvatives - - 01 g1 - - - -
Avallable-for-sale investments 30 - - 30 - - - -
Interests m joint ventures and associates - 1488 - 1488 - 128 - 128
Unquoted equities 44 - - 44 44 - - 44
Loans receivable - 87 - ar - 41 - 41
Trade and other receivables - 3538 - 3530 - 287 9 - 287 9
Cash and cash equivalents - 66 6 - 66 8 - 451 - 451
T4 578.0 13 596 7 44 3539 129 367 2

Other financisl Derivatives uzed

Giher financial  Oerivatives used

Hsbilithes for hadging Total labitiuies for hedging Tatal
019 218 k- 21§ 014 2014 Hiae

£m Em Em &m Em Em

Liabilithies as per Balance Sheot

Denvative financial instruments - 159 159 - 20 20
Embedded denvatives - 056 05 - 11 11
Bank lcans 03 - 03 o7 - a7
Loan from intermediate parent undertaking 1355 - 1355 987 - 987
Trade and other payables 348 0 - 480 2764 - 276 4
483 8 164 500 2 3758 31 3789

Non-denvative financial assets consist of cash at bank, short-term investments, available-for-sale investments trade recevables, other receivables
and accrued income Non-denvative financial habilies consist of borrowngs, trade payables, other payables and accruals

The fair values of all non-derivative financial instruments approximate to the carrying vatue in the Balance Sheet The foilloming methods and
asumptions have been used to determune far values

The fair values of cash at bank and bank loans approximate their camying vatues because of the short-term maturity of these instruments and

The fair value of trade and other recetvables and payables accrued income and accrued costs approximate therr carrying values (see notes 19
and 20 respectively)
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33. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Fair value hierarchy and valuation techniques

The following table provides an anatysis of financial nstruments that are measured subsequent to inhal recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels
1 to 3 based on the degree ta which the fair value Is observable

+ Level 1 farr value measurements are those derived from quoted market pnces (unadjusted) in acive markets for identical assets and ftabilities,

» Level 2 far value measurements are those derived frorn inputs other than quoted prices included within Leve! 1 that are observable for the asset
or hability, either directly (i @ as prices) or indirectly (i @ derived from pnces), and

* Level 3 far value measurements are those denved from valuation techmques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Loved 1 Level 2 Lovel 3 Totsl Lavel 1 Lavei 2 Lavei 3 Toisd
2018 015 Eal ] 018 014 e N4 W18
tm bm m £m £m tm £m Lm

Financlal assets at falr vatue through profit and loss

Derivative financtal instruments - 112 - 12 - 129 - 129

Embedded derivatives - o1 - 01 . . - -

Available-for-sale financial assets

Unguoted equities - - 44 44 - - 44 44
- 113 44 157 - 129 44 173

Financial kabilitias at fair value through profit and loss

Derwative financial instruments - {159) - (159) - (20) - (20)

Embedded denvatives - (0 5) - ©5) - (11 - an

Other payables - - {08 (0_8) - - 0 g (0 5)
- (16 4) {08 (17 2) - {31) 0 5) {38)

There were no transfers between levels dunng the year

For assets and habilibies that are recogmised in the financial statements on a recurring basrs, the Group determunes whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categaonsation (based on the lowest level input that 1s significant to the far value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting penod

The fair values of denvalive financial Instruments are calculated using quoted prices Where such prices are not available, a discounted cash flow
analysis 15 performed using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for non-optional denvatives, and option pricing models for
optional dervatives Foreign currency forward contracts ara measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yleld curves denved from quoted
interest rates matching the maturities of the contracts Interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and
discounted based on the applicable yeld curves derlved from quote Interest rates

Level 3 financial hiabilties recorded at fair value and included within olher payables relate ta conbngent consideration and in the prior year related to
written put options 1ssued to non-controling interests in the Group's subsidiaries  The fair value of such instruments {s calculated based on the stnke
price of the options and management's best esimate of the date a which the options will be exercised

Where the strike price of an optlon s based on the fair value of the undertying business, this has been estmated based on forecasts of future cash
flows prepared by management

The change in fair value of Level 3 financial nstruments 1$ reconciled as follows

Assels Lubiites FrIn) Asseis YT 214
Em £m Em n Em Em
QOpening balance 44 (05) 39 §1 {0 4) 47
Change in farr value recorded in other gains and losses - (0 2) 02) 11 - 11
Urwinding of discount recorded within finance expense - (0 1) (0 1) - {0 1) (01)
Settlements - - - {18) - (18
Closing balance 44 {0 8} 36 44 {0.5) 3p
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34. Related party transactions

Trading transactions
The related party transactions of the Group have been presented in accordance with (AS 24 Related Party Disclosures Related parties of BBC

Worldwide include its subsidiary, assocated and joint venture undertakings, its parent undertakings and fellow subsidiaries, and key management
personne! of the Group and their close family members Transactions between the BBC and BBC Worldwide Group pension schames are detarled in

note 31

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in
this note Amounts owed by and to the BBC, the intermediate parent undertaking and fellow subs:diary undertakings withun the 8BC Group are

reported n notes 19 and 20 respectively
The following table illustrates transactons with BBC Group entities during the year

ME n14
Em im

(11 3) (88 3)

Dividends paid
Interest costs (18) (17}
Acquisition of distnbution nghts (59 9) (52 1}
Royalties and other programme related fees {18 5) (237
Other expense (42 6) (22 4)
Pension top up 8 1) 23)
Ad sales commussion 171 182
Programme iicence income 169 93
Other income 79 42
(201 3) {157 8)

Other income and expense includes recharges of administrative and other similar costs including property recharges and amounts payable mn
accordance with service leve! agreements

The value of transactions conducted with joint ventures and associates was as follows

Covidends Dividands

incoma Expamree recaivabia tncome Expanse recey able

ms 2018 b0l 014 o4 2014

Mame of relsisd party Retztionship £m £m m Em Erm £
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Jont Venture 479 - 287 48 8 - 165
JV Programmes LLC Joint Venture - - 09 - 01 14
Other joint ventures Joint Venture 07 8 - 08 {18) -
New Video Channel Amenca LLC Associale 127 (36) 21 - - -
Other associates Associate 25 (14 7) 03 21 {12 9) 03
818 (18 1) 320 485 {14 8) 18 2

All transactions wath refated parties arise in the normal course of business on an arm's fength basis None of the balances are secured

The followang amounts were outstanding at the balance sheet date

Recaivables Payabivs Nai balance Raceivablis Paystibes Net bailence

018 01$ 018 14 2014 4

Name of eisisd party Rkt koncs hipy m m Em fm m m
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Jaint Venture 55 - 55 184 - 18 4
JV Programmes LLC Joint Venture - - - - - -
Other joint ventures Jomnt Venture - - - - 03) {0 3}
New Video Channel Amenca LLC Associate 174 33 141 - - -
Other associates Associate 22 (0 1) 21 14 01 13
251 (3 4) 217 198 {0 4) 194

At 31 March 2015 the Group also had an outstanding balance of £1 Om (2014 £1 Om) payable to a joint venture of the Group's uitimate parent in
respect of group relief This balance 18 included wthin other payables
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34 Related party transactions (continued)

Remuneration of key management personnel

The Group considers key management personnel as defined under IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (o be Directors of the Group, together with the
BBC Worldwide Executive Committee  Total emoluments for key management personnel were

2014 014

£m &m

Short-term employee benefits 56 57
Paost-employment benefits 04 04
Other long-lerm benefits 02 02
62 63

The above figures for emoluments include the remuneration of Directors (note 7)

35 Parent undertaking and controlling party
The Group's immediate parent is BBC Ventures Group Limited, which is in turn 100% owned by BBC Commercial Holdings Limited The ultimate

parent undertaking and controlling party s the British Broadcasting Corporation, which is incorporated in the United Kingdom by Royal Chaner The
largest group m which the results of BBC Worldwide are consolidated is that headed by the BBC The consoldated accounts of the BBC may be

obtained online at www bbc ¢o ukfannualreport

36 Events after the balance sheet date

There were no other events subsequent to the baiance sheet date details of which are required to be included in the financial statements
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2016 2014
rasiated
Note £m tm
Fixed assets
Goodwill c 122 138
Dugtribution nghts d 1852 164 2
Tangible fixed assets e 472 287
Investments f 1251 1216
37e7 3263
Current assets
Programme nghts and other stocks g 437 a3
Debtors
- amounts falling due within one year h 3725 3160
- amounts faling due after more than ocne year h 8¢ 78
Cash at bank and in hand 1630 53§
588 1 4096
Creditors amounts falling due within one year i (655 5) {432 2)
Net current liabllities (67 4) (22 8}
Total assets less current liabllitios 3122 3037
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 1 (1417 (101 5)
Provisions for labilites I (€63) 77
Nat assets 164 3 194 5
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital ! 02 02
Profit and ioss account m 164 1 104 3
164 3 194 5

Shareholder's funds

These financial statements of BBC Worldwide Limited, registered number 1420028, were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for i1ssue

on 8 June 2015, and were signed on its beha!f by

* The balance sheet at 31 March 2014 has been restated to show bank balances of £53 5m, previously offset aganst Bank ioans and overdrafi, ta

reflact bank offset arrangements

Andew Bott
Chief Financial Officer
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34. Related party transactions (continued)

Remunaeration of key management personnel

The Group considers key management personnel as defined under IAS 24 Relafed Party Disclosures to be Durectors of the Group, together wath the |
BBC Worldwide Executive Committee Total emoluments for key management personned were

me 014

£m im

Short-term employee benefits 58 57
Post-employment benefits 04 04
Other long-term benefits 02 02
82 6.3

The abave figures for emolurnents include the remuneration of Directors (note 7)

35. Parent undertalang and controlling party
The Group's immediate parent 1s BBC Ventures Group Limuted, which is in turn 100% owned by BEC Commercial Holdings Limited The ultimate

parent undertaking and controling party 1s the Bntsh Broadcasting Corporation, which 1s incorporated i the United Kingdom by Royal Charter The
largest group in which the results of BBC Worldwide are consolidated is that headed by the BBC The consolidated accounts of the BBC may be

obtained onhne at www bbe co uk/annualreport

36. Events after the balance sheet date

There were no other events subsequent to the balance sheet date detalls of which are required to be tncluded in the financial statements
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As at 31 March 2015

3] e
resiated
Nota Em Em_
Fixed assets
Goodwill [ 122 138
Destnbution rights d 1952 164 2
Tangible fixed assets e 472 267
Investments f 1251 1218
77 3263
Current asseis
Programme nghts and other stocks [} 437 323
Debtors
- amounts falling due within one year h 3725 3180
- amounts faling due after more than one year h 8¢ 78
Cash at bank and in hand 163 0 535
588 1 4096
Creditors amounts faling due within cne year ] (6555) (4322)
Net current Habéities {62.4) {22 8)
Total assets less current [labiities 23 3037
Credidors amounts failing due after more than ona year 1 (14t7)y (101 5)
Prowtstons for labilities ] 63} (77)
Not assets 164 3 194 8
Capntal and resorvos
Called up share capital [ 02 02
Profit and loss account m 164 1 194 3
Shareholder's funds 164 3 184 5

* The balance sheeat at 31 March 2014 has been restated to show bank balances of £53 Sm, previously offset against Bank Ioans and overdraft, to

reflect bank offset arrangements

These financial statements of BBC Worldwide Limited, registered number 1420028, were appraved by the Board of Directors and autherised for 18sue

on 9 June 2015, and wera signed on its behalf by

~——
S

i

Andew Bott
Chief Financial Officer
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Notes to the company financial statements

a. Prnincipal accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The separate financ:al statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 They have been prepared in accordance
with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) They are principally prepared under the histoncal cost convention Areas where an
alternative basis of accounting has been applied are identified in the accounting policies below Thasa policies have been applied consistently
throughout the year and the preceding year

The balance sheet at 31 March 2014 has been restated to show bank balances of £53 5m, previously offset against Bank loans and overdraft, to
reflect bank offset arangements

Going concern

The financial statements are presented on a going concern basis and under the histoncal cost accounting convention Further mformation about the
going concem assumption is given in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements

Investments

Fixed asset investments in subsidianes, joint ventures and associates are shown at cost less provision for impairment Investments are reviewed for
mpairment if there are indicators that the carrying value may not be recoverable Only dividends received and receivable are credited o the
Company's profit and loss account.

Foreign currency

The Company s presentational cumrency 15 sterling  Transactions in foreign currencies are transiated into stering at a monthly average axchange
rate

Monetary assets and liabilities denaminated in foreign currencies are translated into sterfing at the balance sheet date at the rate of exchange ruting
at that date Surpluses and deficits ansing from the translation of monetary assets and habities at these rates of exchange, together with exchange
differences ansing from trading, are included in the profit and loss account

Distnbution rights

Distnbution nghts represent nghts 1o programmes and associated intellectuat property acquired with the pnmary tntention of exploiting the nghts
cemmercially as part of the Group's long-term operations  Distnbution nghts are initially recogrised at acquisition cost or production cost, whan the
Group controls the respective assets and the nsks and rewards attached to them The carrying amount is stated at cost less accumulated
amartisation and pravision for impawment

Amartisation of distnbution nghts i charged to the income statement to match the average revenue profile of the programme genre over its
estimated average marketable life The expected lives of distribution nghts range from 1 to 10 years

Tangible fixed assats
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost after any provision for impairment, less accurnutated depreciation

Expenditure on fixed assets 1s capitahsed together with directly attnbutable costs incurred on capital projects Depreciation s charged so as to write
off the cost of assets to thewr residuai value, over their expected useful ives using the straght-line method Oepreciation commences from the date
an asset 13 brought into service

The useful lives for depreciation purposes for the pnnacipal categones of assets are
+ Short leasehold buldings Unexpired lease term

*  Plant and machinery 310 8 years
+ Fixtures and fithings 307 years
Leased assots

Operating leass rentals payable are recogrised on a straight-line basts over the term of the lease The Company has no finance leases

Impairment of fixed assets

The Campany reviews the carrying amounts of its fixed assets m accordance with FRS 11 imparment of Fxed Assefs and Goodwill whenever
events or changes in arcumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable  An impairment loss s recogrised in the profit and
loss account for the amouwnt by which the asset's camying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
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a. Principal accounting policies {continued)

Programme nghts and stocks

Stacks compnsing of merchandising, are stated at the lower of cost and net reaiisable value Programme nghts for broadcasting refer to the
programme nights acquired for the future broadcast on one of the Company's television channels The camymg amount is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation, and after wnting off the costs of programme nghts that are considered irrecoverable

Financial instruments

The Company has chosen to adopt FRS 26 Financial Instruments Recogrition and Measurement Policies apphed by the Company in respect of
financat mstruments are therefore consistent with those apphed by the Group Further details about the Group's financia! instrument policies and
thesr apphcation 1s provided in the note 1 to the Group finanaal statements

Provisions

A prowiston 15 recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive ocbligation ansing from past events and it 1s
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obkgation. Provisions, other than deferred tax, that are payable over a
number of years are discounted to net present value at the batance sheet date using a discount rate appropriate to the particular provision
concemed

Where the Company eniers into financia! guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies wthin its group, the Company

considers these to be Insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a
contingent hability until such time as It becomes probable that the Company will be requered to make a payment under the guarantee

Pension costs

For defined contnbution schemes the amount charged to the profit and loss account In respect of pension costs 1s the contnbutions payabie in the
year Drifferences between contributions payabie in the year and contnbutions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the
balance sheet

The Company also partcpates in the BBC Penston Scheme, a mulb-employer defined benefit scheme As there 1s no contractual agreement or

stated pohey for charging the net defined benefit cost to scheme participants, the Company has taken the exemphon in FRS 17 Refwement benefits
to account for its contributions to the schems as if it were a defined contnbution scheme

Taxation
Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foresgn tax, 18 provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax rs recogmsed in respect of all tming differences that have anginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date Timing differences
anise where transactions or events occurnng prior to the balance sheet date result in an obhgation to pay more tax, or a nght to pay less tax ina
future penod owing to differences between the Company's taxable profits and its profit for the year as stated in its financial statements

Except where otherwise required by accounting standards, futl provision without discounbing 18 made for all trrung differences that have ansen but
not reversed at the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are recogrised to the extent that, on the bas:s of all avalable evidence, it 13 more likely
than not that they will be recovered

Dividends on shares presented within shareholders’ funds

Dividends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only recogrised as a habiiity at that date to the extent that they are appropnately authonsed and are
no langer at the discretion of the Company Unpaid dividends that do not meet these cntena are disclosed in the notes to the Company financiat

statements
Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on the acquistion of business trade and assets, representing any excess of the fair value of the considerations given over the fair
value of the rdentifiable assets and liabilities acquired, s capitalised and wrten off on a straight-ine basis over its useful economic life, which is 10
years Provision s made for any impairment
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b. Profit for the year

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has elected not to present its own profit and less account for the year The Company
reported a profit for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 of £81 1m (2014 £62 7m) There have been no recogmised gans or losses in the cument or
praceding year other than the profit for the year and accordingly, no statement of recognised gains and fosses has been presented in these financial
statements

The auditor's remuneration for 2udit and other services 1s disclosed in note 6 of the consolidated financial statements

c. Goodwill
gm,
Cost
At 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 163
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2014 25
Charge for the year 16
41
Nat book value at 31 March 2015 122
Net book value at 31 March 2014 138
Goodwill arose in the year ended 31 March 2012 following the hive-up of trade and assets from the Company’s subsidiary, Bedder & Limited
d. Distnibution nghts
im
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2014 4773
Additiens 1410 |
* The balance sheet at 31 March 2014 has been restated to show bank balances of £53 5m, previcusly offset against Bank loans and_overdraft, (0 2) w
acgordance with bank offset amangements 6181 i
Amortisation
At 1 Apni 2014 3131
Charge for the year 1100
Fully amortised nghts wntten off {C2)
At 31 March 2015 4229
Nat book value at 31 March 2015 1952
Net book value at 31 March 2014 164 2
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e. Tangible fixed assets

Short Assats
lsasetiold Plant s Fixturss & under
buffdings Hachinery Fitings construction Tota
Em £m Em £m &m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2014 73 776 59 04 912
Additons 74 212 04 - 290
Transfer to completed assets - 04 - (0 4} -
Disposals {06) {14 9) {02) . (157)
At 31 March 2015 141 843 681 - 1045
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2014 61 529 55 - 845
Charge for the year 22 58 05 - 85
Disposals {0 B) (14 9) (02) - (157}
AL 31 March 2015 77 438 58 - 573
Net book value at 31 March 2015 LK) 4035 03 - 47 2
Net book value at 31 March 2014 12 247 04 04 267

The Company does not hold any assets under finance leases (2014 £rul)
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f. Investments
2618 2014
[<] £m
Subsid:anes 1019 106 8
Associates 140 102
92 46

Other investments

1251 1218

The Campany has investments in the followming subsidiaries, joent ventures and assaciates which pnncipally affected the profits or net assets of the Group
To avod a statement of excessive length details of iInvestrments which are not significant have been omitted

All ownership interests relate to ordinary share capital with a corresponding interest in voting nghts uniess otherwise stated

Towmiry of ICOFpOrLIoN of Twhenship
Note princips) business address Principal acthnty leberost
Subsidiary undertakings
BBC Worldwide Amencas Inc + USA Heiding company 100 0%
BBC Worldwide Australia Pty Limited - Austraha Programme distnbutor 100 0%
BBC Worldwde Canada Limited + Canada Programme distributor 100 0%
BBC Worldwide France San + France Pragramme distnbutor 100 0%
BBC Worldwide Germany GmbH + Germany Programme distributor 100 0%
BBC Worldwide Japan KK + Japan Programme distnbutor 100 0%
BBC Worldwide Productions LLC USA Content produchion 100 0%
BBC Worldwide Reality Productions LLC Usa Content production 100 0%
BBC Worldwide Channels Australasia Pty Lirmited Australia TV channel operator 100 0%
UK Programme Distribubon Limited * + England & Wales Programme chstributor 100 0%
Tonto Films & Television Limited + England & Wales Content production 100 0%
BBC Worldwide Australia Holdings Pty Limited + Australia Holding company 100 0%
2 entertain Limited + England & Wales Holding company 100 0%
2 entertain Video Limited England & Wales DVDAideo publisher 100 0%
Demon Music Group Limited England & Wales CD/music publisher 100 0%
Woridwide Channel Investments Limited + Engtand & Wales Haolding company 100 0%
Joint ventures
UKTV Madia Holdings Limited + England & Wales TV channel operator 50 0%
JV Programmes LLC USA Content creation 50 0%
Park Publishing Partnership Australa Magazine producer 50 0%
Sub-Zero Events Limited + England & Wales Live stage-performance operator 60 0%

+ Held directly by BBC Worldwde Limited

*  BBC Worldwide holds 93% of the ssued share capital but the non-controlling shareholders have no nght to distnbutions

On 23rd October 2014 the Group sold a 49 9% stake in New Video Channel Amenca LL.C, a former 100% subsidiary to AMC Networks inc ("AMCN®)
While the Group retains a 50 1% shareholding in NVCA, AMCN has control cver the key deaision-making activites of NVCA Therefore, whilst the Group
retains significant influence over NVCA, and has the nght to vanable retums, 1t no longer has control, and hence the Group has deconsolidated NVCA fram
the date of the sale and accounts for its retained interest since that date as an asscoiate Detarls of this transaction are given in note 27 to the consolidated

financial statements

The following subsidianes are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audtt of accounts under section 479A of the Act.

BBC Earth Productons {Life) Limited
2entertain Management Limited

BBC Video Limited

BBC Worldwide Investments Limited
MCI Music Putdishing Limited

Demen Music Groug Limited

Worldwide Channel Investments Limited
Bedder 6 Limited
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f. Investments (continued)

Country of Incorporation or Twiarship
Name Nots principal business addross Principal sctivity Intarest
Associates
Knowledge West Commurucatons Corporation * Canada TV channel cperator 50 0%
Baby Cow Productions Limited + England & Wales Content creation 250%
Burntng Bnght Produchons Limited + England & Wales Content creation 250%
Clerkenwell Fdms Limited + England & Wales Contant creation 250%
Shm Fem & TV Limited + Engtand & Wales Content creation 25 0%
Sprout Pictures (TV) Limited + England & Wales Content creation 25 0%
Temple Street Productions inc. + Canada Content creation 25 0%
Tower Productions GmbH + Germany Content creation 49 0%
Children's Character Books Limited + England & Wales Children’s bock publisher 25 0%
AudioGa Limited Engtand & Wales Audicbook pubhisher 14 0%
Educatianal Publishers LLP + England & Wales Educational product koansor 15 0%
Woodlands Baoks Limited + England & Wales Book publisher 15 0%
New Video Channel Amenca LLC Usa TV channel operator 50 1%
Lookout Point Limitad + England & Wales Content creation 35 0%
Curve Madia Limited + England & Wales Content creation 25 0%
Other Investment
Left Bank Pictures Limited + England & Wales Content creation 12 2%
+ Held directly by BBC Worldwide Limited
*  The shares held by the Group entitle it to 20% of voting nghts
Other
Em Em Em
Cost
At 1 April 2014 2125 120 62
Additons - 38 47
Disposals {2 4) - -
At 31 March 2015 2101 158 109
Provisions for impairment
At 1 Apni 2014 1067 18 16
Charge for the year 25 - 01
At 31 March 2015 1082 18 17
Net book value at 31 March 2015 1019 140 92
1068 102 4 6

Net book value at 31 March 2014
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g. Programme rights and other stock
2618 014
£m £m
Programme nghts for broadcashng 180 222
Programmes in the course of production 212 79
Work in progress - 03
Finishad goods for resale 45 19
437 323
h. Debtors
015 014
Em Em
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors 1085 BAO
Prepayments and accrued income a4 3 4139
Amounts owed by ultlimate parent undertaking 01 03
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 1829 1374
Amounts owed by fallow subsidiary undertakings : 15
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates 204 194
Denvative financial instruments 84 95
Corporation tax recoverable 24 93
Other debtors 58 B7
328 360
Amounts falling due after more than one year-
Denvative financial instruments 28 34
Deferred tax 61 44
89 T8
3814 3218
i. Creditors
2018 2014
restated +
£m £m

Amounts falling due within one year
Bank loans and overdraft

2407 1114

Trade creditors 369 227
Rights creditors 805 545
Accruals and deferred income 838 770
Amounts owed to ulimate parent undertaking 460 438
Amounts owed to subsidrary undertalangs 1309 982
Amounts owed to fellow subsidiary undertakings 121 39
Amounts owed to joint vertures and associates 04 02
Dervative finanaial mstruments 102 11
Other creditors including other taxes and soctal secunty 48 19 4
6555 4322
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Loan awed to intarmediate parent undertaking 1355 987
Accruals and deferred income - 08
Denvative financial instrurments 52 20
1417 13
797 2 5337

Total creditors

Details of bank loans and foans owed to the Company's intermediate parent undertaking are given in note 23 1o the consoldated financial statements

* The batance sheet at 31 March 2014 has been restated to show bank balances of £53 5m, previously offset agamst Bank loans and overdraft, to

reflect bank offset arrangements
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J- Provisions for liabilities and contingent liabilities

Onerous Other
Deferred tax contracts provisions Total
£m £m £m £m
Al 1 Apnl 2014 27 21 29 77
Provided dunng the year - - 16 16
Released in the yaar (0 5) - {7 {12)
Transfers - (0 5) 05 -
Utiised in the year - - {18) {18)
At 31 March 2015 22 16 25 83

Provisions for onerous contracts are recogrised when the expected benefits to be denved by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable
cost of meeting its obligations under the contract.

Other provisions primanly relate to rearganisation costs, property-related provisions including onerous, non-cancellable leases where the expected benefits
to be derived by the Company from subletting those properties ars tower than the unavaidable costs payable over the remaming term of the respectve
leases, and provistons for dilapidations in respect of leasehold properties

Further deferred contingent consideration may be payable 1n connectron with acguistions made by the Company No provision has been made where the
likehhood and magmtude of additional payments cannot be assessed with reasonable certainty

The Company and some of its subsichanes operate a cash pooling arrangement All the cash balances withun the podl belong te the legal entity fo which
they relate, although the Company has access to all funds and each cash pool parhcipant s jointly and severally liable for any overdraft balance

The Company and some of its fellow BBC Commercial Holdings subsidianes have given guarantees in relation to the BBC Commercial Holdings Limited
revolving credit facaity agreement At 31 March 2015 total amounts drawn down by the BBC Commercial Holdings Group under this faciity were £135 5m
(2014 £98 7m)

k. Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided as follows

Fixed assat  Derivalive

timing tuming
differences differences Tota!
Em Em Em
At 1 Aprd 2014 37 (20) 17
Charged to profit and loss {0 9} 31 22
At 31 March 2015 28 11 39
Deferred tax 18 recorded in the balance sheet as folfows
2015 2014
Em £m
Deferred tax assets 61 44
Deferred tax lrabyites (22) {27)
Net deferrod tax assot 39 17
l. Called up share capital
2015 2014
£m £m
Issued and fully paid
250,000 Ordinary shares of £1 each 02 02

The Company has one class of ordinary shares, which carry no nght to fixed income
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m. Reconciliation of movements in shareholder's funds
Profit and
Share capits! loss sccournt Totat
tm £m &m
At 1 Apnl 2013 a2 2199 2201
Profit for the year - 827 €27
Dividends paxd - (88 3) (88 3)
At 31 March 2014 02 194 3 194 §
Profit for the year - 811 811
Driidends paid - {111 3) (1113)
At 31 March 2015 02 164 1 164 3
n Financial commitments
Contracts placed for future capital expenditure not provided are as follows
018 014
&m £m
Tangible fixed assets 63 78
Distribution nghts 960 754
Total 1023 832
Future mimmum rental payments under non-cancellable operating leases, payable in the next year, are as follows
015 FIry
Land & Land &
bulldings Otiher Totat bulldings Dthar Total
£m Em &m £m £m £m
Leasas which expire
Within one year 01 06 07 S4 06 60
Between two and five years 06 - D5 04 06 10
After more than five years 22 13 35 02 06 ]
Total 29 19 48 60 18 78
The Company also has the fallowsng unprovided financial commitments
1618 014
m £m
Programme nghts for broadcast 15 65
Qther commitments 252 128
Total 267 193

© Related party transactions

The Group consolidated financal statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 contain related party disclosures Consequently the Company has taken
advantage of the exemption 1n FRS 8 Related Party Disclosures, not to disclose transactions with other members of the BBC Group

The value of transactions conducted with non wholly-owned subsidianes and with other related parties was as follows

=T BT

ms 1018 015 014 2014 014

Name of retated party p £m £m Em £m £m €n
UK Programme Distnbution Limited Subsidiary - - - 425 - -
- - - 425 - -
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Joint Venture 479 - 287 466 - 165
Other joint ventures Joint Venture - - - - o1 -
New Video Channel Amenca LLC Associats 112 - - - - .
Other associates Associate 08 14 2 01 19 {129} 03
599 14 2 288 485 {130) 168
599 142 288 910 {130) 16 8
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o Related party transactions (conbinued)
The following amounts were outstanding with related parties at the batance sheet date
Nt Nat balanco
2015 2015 018 24 2014 2014
Nams of reisted party Relationship Em £m £m £m Em €m
Bedder 6 Limited Subsidiary - - - - o (10)
UK Programme Distnbution Limited Subsidiary - - - 159 - 159
: - N 159 10 149
UKTV Media Holdings Limited Joint Venture 55 (03} 52 184 - 184
Other joint ventures Jont Venture - - . - 0 1) on
New Video Channel Amenca LLC Associate 128 - 128 - . -
Other associates Associate 18 {0 1) 17 14 {0 1) 13
201 {0 4) 197 198 02 196
201 (0 4) 197 37 {12} s |

At 31 March 2015, the Company also had an outstanding balance of £1 Om (2014 £1 0m) payable to a joint venture of the Company's ultmate parent in

respect of group relief This balance 13 included within other payables

p Postbalance sheet events

There were no events subsequent to the balance sheet date details of which are required to be included in the financal statements
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